
This Agenda is posted pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code 
 

Matters to Come Before a Meeting of the Board of Directors  
of Tarrant Regional Water District 

 
To Be Held the 21st Day of October 2025 at 9:00 a.m. 

Front Doors to the Main Admin Building at 800 East Northside Drive Will Open to 
the Public at 8:30 a.m. and Close Fifteen (15) Minutes After the Meeting Adjourns 

 
TRWD Board Room 

800 East Northside Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102 

 
PLEASE BE ADVISED THAT A QUORUM OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRWD 
WILL CONVENE ON THE ABOVE DATE AND TIME FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
CONSIDERING AND ACTING UPON THE MATTERS SET FORTH IN THIS AGENDA.  
THE LINK TO VIEW AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA INTERNET IS 
HTTPS://WWW.TRWD.COM/BOARDVIDEOS.  A RECORDING OF THE MEETING 
WILL ALSO BE AVAILABLE AT HTTPS://WWW.TRWD.COM/BOARDVIDEOS. 

              
 

1. Pledges of Allegiance 
 

2. Public Comment  
 
Citizens may present public comment at this time, limited to a total time of 
three (3) minutes per speaker, unless the speaker addresses the Board 
through a translator, in which case the limit is a total time of six (6) minutes. 
Each proposed speaker must have completed and submitted a speaker card 
prior to the commencement of the meeting, identifying any agenda item 
number(s) and topic(s) the speaker wishes to address with the Board. By 
law, the Board may not deliberate, debate, or take action on public comment 
but may place the item on a future agenda. 

 
3. Consider Approval of the Minutes from the Meetings Held on September 10, 

2025, and September 16, 2025 
 
4. Consider Approval of Consent Agenda 

All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be regular, routine, 
and ministerial items that require little or no discussion. Therefore, in the 
interest of efficiency there will be no separate discussion of these items and 
the board will act on them through one motion and vote. If a board member 
wishes for an item to be discussed and considered individually, upon the 
board member’s request the item will be removed from the consent agenda 
and considered separately. 
 



• Consider Approval of Capital Expenditures  
o One (1) Heavy Duty Haul Trailer 
o One (1) Heavy Duty Tractor with Boom Mower 
o One (1) Commercial Remote Controlled Slope Mower 
o Two (2) Surveillance Camera Tower  
o One (1) Heavy Duty Tandem Axle Dump Truck 
o One (1) Heavy Duty 4wd Tractor with Cab 
o Two (2) 4wd Crew Cab Utility Vehicle 
o One (1) Heavy Duty 24kwh EV 60” Zero Turn  
o One (1) 25’ Tandem Axle Trailer 
o One (1) Center Console Watercraft 
 

5. Consider Approval of Contract with J&S Valve Inc. for Manufacturing and 
Delivery of Five Large Diameter Butterfly Valves for the Cedar Creek, 
Richland-Chambers and Joint Pipeline Sections 1 & 6 - Jason Gehrig, 
Infrastructure Engineering Director 

 

6. Consider Approval of Contract with Val-Matic Valve & Mfg. Corp. for 
Manufacturing and Delivery of Eleven Large Diameter Butterfly Valves for the 
Cedar Creek, Richland-Chambers and Joint Pipeline Sections 1 & 6 - Jason 
Gehrig, Infrastructure Engineering Director 

 
7. Consider Approval of Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for Mary’s Creek 

Flood Control Reservoir Feasibility Assessment - Zachary Huff, Water 
Resources Engineering Director 

 
8. Consider Approval of Contract with Weaver Excavating & Septic LLC for 

George W. Shannon Wetlands Silt Removal from Sedimentation Ponds - 
Phase II of III - Darrell Beason, Chief Operations Officer 

 
9. Consider and Adopt Revisions to TRWD Board-Approved Fair Opportunities 

Purchasing and Contracting Policy - Stephen Tatum, General Counsel 
 
10. Discussion of Proposed Update to the TRWD General Ordinance - Stephen 

Tatum, General Counsel 
 
11. Consider Approval of Resolution Authorizing the Issuance, Sale, and 

Delivery of Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and 
Improvement District, Water Revenue ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, 
Pledging Revenues for the Payment of the Bonds, Approving an Official 
Statement, and Authorizing Other Instruments and Procedures Relating 
Thereto - Sandy Newby, Chief Financial Officer 

 
12. Consider Approval of Order Authorizing the Issuance of Tarrant Regional 

Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District, Unlimited Tax 
Refunding Bonds; Levying an Ad Valorem Tax in Support of the Bonds; 



Establishing the Procedures of Selling and Delivering the Bonds; and 
Authorizing Other Matters Related to the Issuance of the Bonds - Sandy 
Newby, Chief Financial Officer 

 
13. Consider Approval to Accept Grant from Texas Parks and Wildlife 

Foundation for Eagle Mountain Park Expenditures - Sandy Newby, Chief 
Financial Officer 

 
14. Presentations 

• Water Resources - Rachel Ickert, Chief Engineering Officer 

• Communications and Community Outreach Department Award 
Presentation - Mick Maguire, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
15. Executive Session under Texas Government Code:  
 

Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, for Private Consultation 
with its Attorney about Pending or Contemplated Litigation or on a Matter in 
which the Duty of the Attorney to the Governmental Body under the Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas Clearly 
Conflicts with this Chapter; and 

 
Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to Deliberate the Purchase, 
Exchange, Lease or Value of Real Property Related to (1) Panther Island, and 
(2) the Mary’s Creek Indirect Water Re-Use Pipeline Project; and  
 
Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, Regarding Personnel 
Matters Related to the Annual General Manager Performance Review 
 

16. Future Agenda Items 
 
17. Schedule Next Board Meeting 
 
18. Adjourn 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

HELD ON THE 10th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2025 AT 9:30 A.M. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

The call of the roll disclosed the presence of the Directors as follows:  
  

Present 
Leah King 

Paxton Motheral 
C.B. Team 

Skylar O’Neal (joined the meeting at 9:53 a.m.) 
Johnathan Killebrew 

 

 Also present were Dan Buhman, Alan Thomas, Darrell Beason, Lisa Cabrera, Ellie 

Garcia, Zach Hatton, Rachel Ickert, Laramie LaRue, Sandy Newby, and Stephen Tatum, 

of the Tarrant Regional Water District (District or TRWD). 

1. 

 All present were given the opportunity to join in reciting the Pledges of Allegiance 

to the U.S. and Texas flags.  

2. 

Sandy Newby, Chief Financial Officer, discussed the proposed Tax Year 2025 Tax 

Rate of .0265/$100 Valuation.  

3. 

There were no persons from the general public who requested to address the 

Board of Directors in advance of the meeting. President King kept the public comment 

item open from 9:31 p.m. to 9:41 p.m. to allow for any persons from the general public to 

request to speak. No requests were received. 

4. 

The Board next held an Executive Session commencing at 9:42 a.m. under Section 

551.071 of the Texas Government Code to Consult with Legal Counsel on a Matter in 



Which the Duty of Counsel Under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct 

Clearly Conflicts with Chapter 551, Texas Government Code; and Section 551.072 of the 

Texas Government Code to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real 

Property on Panther Island; and Section 551.076 of the Texas Government Code 

Regarding Security Devices or Security Audits.  

Director O’Neal joined the meeting at 9:53am. 

Upon completion of the executive session at 10:16 a.m., the President reopened 

the meeting.  

5. 

There were no future agenda items approved. 

6. 

The next board meetings was scheduled for September 16, 2025. 

7. 

There being no further business before the Board of Directors, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

                                   
President      Secretary 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

HELD ON THE 16th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2025 AT 9:00 A.M. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

The call of the roll disclosed the presence of the Directors as follows:  
  

Present 
Leah King 

Paxton Motheral 
C.B. Team 

Skylar O’Neal 
Johnathan Killebrew 

 

 Also present were Dan Buhman, Alan Thomas, Chris Akers, Susan Alanis, Darrell 

Beason, Lisa Cabrera, Ellie Garcia, Zachary Huff, Rachel Ickert, Amy Kaarlela, Courtney 

Kelly, Mick Maguire, Sandy Newby, Kathleen Ray, Nicole Rutigliano, Tony Shelly, 

Stephen Tatum, and Ed Weaver of the Tarrant Regional Water District (District or TRWD). 

1. 

 All present were given the opportunity to join in reciting the Pledges of Allegiance 

to the U.S. and Texas flags.  

2. 

There were no requests from the public to address the Board of Directors during 

the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

3. 

Director Team moved to approve the minutes from the meetings held on August 

12, 2025, and August 19, 2025. Director Killebrew seconded the motion, and the votes 

were 5 in favor, 0 against. It was accordingly ordered that these minutes be placed in the 

permanent files of the District.  

 



4. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Motheral moved to approve 

the Fiscal Year 2026 General Fund Budget of $32,000,000. The General Fund Budget 

consists of expenditures of $29,119,555 and capital reserves of $2,880,445. Funding for 

this item is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 General Fund Budget. Director Team 

seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

5. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to adopt the ad 

valorem tax rate of $.0265/$100 valuation, for tax year 2025. Director Motheral seconded 

the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

6. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Motheral moved to approve 

the Fiscal Year 2026 Governmental Contingency Fund Budget of $22,624,898. This 

budget consists of special projects expenditures of $14,578,200 and capital projects of 

$8,046,698. These expenditures are offset by expected revenues of $14,564,708 for 

special projects and $8,046,698 for capital projects. Funding for this item is included in 

the Fiscal Year 2026 Governmental Contingency Fund Budget. Director O’Neal seconded 

the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

7. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve the 

Fiscal Year 2026 Revenue Fund Budget of $199,734,474 offset by projected non-contract 

revenues of $12,981,958 for a proposed net revenue requirement from contract 

customers of $186,752,516. Funding for this item is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 



Revenue Fund Budget. Director Motheral seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in 

favor, 0 against.  

8.  

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve the 

consent agenda. Consent agenda items include: 

1) Joint-Funding agreement with U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) for Gage 

Network support services. This agreement, in an amount not-to-exceed 

$421,340, will fund stream gaging services provided by the USGS. The 

agreement has a total cost of $455,090. The USGS contribution is $33,750 

(7%) and the District is responsible for the remaining $421,340 for services 

provided during October 1, 2025, through September 30, 2026 period. Funding 

for this item is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 General Fund Budget and Fiscal 

Year 2026 Revenue Fund Budget. 

2) Contract amendment in an amount not-to-exceed $250,000 with PVS to furnish 

and deliver sodium hydroxide to Cedar Creek Lake Pump Station, Richland-

Chambers Lake Pump Station and Joint Cedar Creek Lake Pump Station, and 

contract amendment in an amount not-to-exceed $850,000 with Brenntag to 

furnish and deliver liquid chlorine to Richland-Chambers Lake Pump Station. 

The original contracts for these chemicals were approved by the Board in 

August 2022. These contracts included a 13-month initial term, with three (3) 

one-year renewal options. This is the third and final of three (3) one-year 

renewal options. Funding for these items is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 

Revenue Fund Budget.  



3) Contract amendment in an amount not-to-exceed $75,000/year with Brenntag 

to furnish and deliver liquid ammonium sulfate to Joint Cedar Creek Lake Pump 

Station. The original contract for this chemical was approved by the Board in 

March 2023 with a not-to-exceed amount of $150,000 for the initial term. This 

contract included an 18-month initial term, with three (3) one-year renewal 

options. This is the second of three (3) one-year renewal options. Funding for 

this item is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 Revenue Fund Budget. 

4) Contract amendment in an amount not-to-exceed $75,000/year with Univar to 

furnish and deliver salt to Joint Cedar Creek Lake Pump Station. The original 

contract for this chemical was approved by the Board in April 2023 with a not-

to-exceed amount of $400,000 for the initial term. This contract included 17-

month initial term, with three (3) one-year renewal options. This is the second 

of three (3) one-year renewal options. Funding for this item is included in the 

Fiscal Year 2026 Revenue Fund Budget. 

Director Killebrew seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

9. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to adopt the 

2025 Integrated Water Supply Plan prepared by Carollo Engineers which will guide the 

District’s efforts to meet the future water supply needs of its customers. Director Killebrew 

seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

10. 

With the recommendation of management, President King moved to approve a 

raw water supply option and contract with the Trinity River Authority of Texas. Funding 



for this item is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 Revenue Fund Budget. Director Motheral 

seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

11. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Killebrew moved to approve a 

contract in the amount of $127,474,740 with McKee Utility Contractors, LLC for 

construction of the Integrated Pipeline Section 19 Micro Tunnel Crossing Project. In 

addition, the General Manager or his designee is granted authority to execute all 

documents associated with the contract. Funding for this item is included in the Dallas 

Bond Fund Phase 3. Director Team seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 

0 against.  

12. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve an 

annual on-call service contract in an amount not-to-exceed $138,000 annually with an 

option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods with Hydros Consulting, Inc for 

technical support services. Funding for this item is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 

Revenue Fund Budget. Director O’Neal seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in 

favor, 0 against.  

13. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve a 

contract in an amount not-to-exceed $4,897,711 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for 

construction management and inspection services for the Fort Worth Operations 

Compound. Funding for this item is included in the Bond Fund. Director Killebrew 

seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 



14. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Motheral moved to approve 

adoption of the Panther Island Canal System Manual and delegation of authority to the 

General Manager or his designee to interpret Canal System Standards and approve 

waivers thereof that achieve overall objectives of the manual and do not conflict with City 

of Fort Worth requirements. Director Team seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in 

favor, 0 against.  

15. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to accept a grant 

in the amount of $20,000 from Texas A&M Forest Service which will be used to plant 

trees and install temporary irrigation. Director O’Neal seconded the motion, and the votes 

were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

16. 

With the recommendation of management, Director Team moved to approve a 

contract in the amount of $530,570.86 with Stovall Commercial Contractors LLC for 

removal and replacement of Eagle Mountain underground storage tanks. Funding for this 

item is included in the Fiscal Year 2026 Revenue Fund Budget. Director Killebrew 

seconded the motion, and the votes were 5 in favor, 0 against. 

 

The Board of Directors recessed for a break from 9:53 a.m. to 9:58 a.m. 
 

17. 

The Board next held an Executive Session commencing at 9:58 a.m. under Section 

551.071 of the Texas Government Code to Consult with Legal Counsel on a Matter in 

Which the Duty of Counsel Under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct 

Clearly Conflicts with Chapter 551, Texas Government Code; and Section 551.072 of the 



Texas Government Code to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, Lease or Value of Real 

Property on Panther Island. 

Upon completion of the executive session at 10:07 a.m., the President reopened 

the meeting.  

18. 

There were no future agenda items approved. 

19. 

The next board meeting was scheduled for October 21, 2025. 

20. 

There being no further business before the Board of Directors, the meeting was 

adjourned. 

 

                                   
President      Secretary 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 4 
 

DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Consent Agenda 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Management recommends approval of the Consent Agenda. 
             
 
Item:    Consider Approval of Capital Expenditures 
 
Vendors: Kirby-Smith Machinery, Tiger Corp/Bane Machinery, Kinloch Equipment, 

Wanco, Texas Kenworth Co. LLC, United Ag & Turf, Polaris Sales INC., 
LSM Outdoor Power, North Texas Trailers, Bass Pro Shop 

 

Amount: $732,890.89 Fiscal Year 2026 General Fund  
$415,158.68 Fiscal Year 2026 Revenue Fund 

  
Reviewed by: Construction and Operations Committee 
 

(1) Kirby-Smith Machinery 
• One (1) Heavy Duty Haul Trailer 
• Total expenditure amount: $361,763.00  

 
(2) Tiger Corp/Bane Machinery 

• One (1) Heavy Duty Tractor with Boom Mower 
• Total expenditure amount: $219,962.90 

 
(3) Kinloch Equipment & Supply 

• One (1) Commercial Remote Controlled Slope Mower 
• Total expenditure amount: $69,665.00 

 

(4) Wanco 
• Two (2) Surveillance Camera Tower  
• Total expenditure amount: $59,500  

 
(5) Texas Kenworth Co. LLC 

• One (1) Heavy Duty Tandem Axle Dump Truck 
• Total expenditure amount: $210,566.48 

 
(6) United AG & Turf 

• One (1) Heavy Duty 4wd Tractor with Cab 



• Total expenditure amount: $138,994.72 
 
(7) Polaris Sales Inc. 

• Two (2) 4wd Crew Cab Utility Vehicle 
• Total expenditure amount: $29,362.44 

 
(8) LSM Outdoor Power 

• One (1) Heavy Duty 24kwh EV 60” Zero Turn  
• Total expenditure amount: $21,999.99 

 
(9) North Texas Trailers 

• One (1) 25’ Tandem Axle Trailer 
• Total expenditure amount: $11,495.49 

 
(10) Bass Pro Shop 

• One (1) Center Console Watercraft 
• Total expenditure amount: $24,739.55 

 

                 
 
 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 

DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Contract with J&S Valve Inc. for Manufacturing 

and Delivery of Five Large Diameter Butterfly Valves for the Cedar 
Creek, Richland-Chambers and Joint Pipeline Sections 1 & 6 

 
FUNDING: Bond Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of a contract in an amount not-to-exceed 
$681,310 with J&S Valve Inc. to manufacture, assemble, and deliver five (5) 60-inch 
diameter butterfly valves, including one (1) to upsize and replace the City of Arlington’s 
JFK Water Treatment Plant tap off the Cedar Creek pipeline and four (4) for the Joint 
Pipeline Sections 1 & 6 project.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District uses large diameter butterfly valves throughout its water transmission 
system for isolation purposes, allowing for flexibility in operations and protection of staff 
performing maintenance efforts inside the pipeline. 
 
In preparation for the upcoming four-mile Cedar Creek Section II, Phase 2 Pipeline 
Replacement project, one (1) 60-inch diameter butterfly valve needs to be purchased for 
the City of Arlington’s JFK water treatment plant tap off the Cedar Creek pipeline. The 
customer tap will be upsized from the existing 48-inch diameter to 60-inch diameter, 
requiring an upsized butterfly valve.  
 
The Joint Pipeline Sections 1 & 6 Project will extend the Joint Pipeline from the Arlington 
Outlet to the Rolling Hills Booster Pump Station. As part of this project, the District will 
upsize four (4) existing butterfly valves from 48-inch diameter to 60-inch diameter to 
increase flow capacity into Lake Arlington, where both the City of Arlington and the Trinity 
River Authority have an intake for their respective water treatment plants.   
 
Given the lead-time required for large diameter butterfly valve manufacturing, the District 
needs to procure the butterfly valves in advance of these two pipeline projects to avoid 
disrupting the construction schedule. Construction is scheduled to begin in 2027. 
 
Notice to Proposers was advertised for the butterfly valves as per statute. Four proposals 
were received from companies that have a successful history of providing large diameter 
butterfly valves. The selection team evaluated the proposals and determined that J&S 
Valve submitted the proposal that provides the best value to the District for the 60-inch 



butterfly valves discussed above.  
 
This item was reviewed by the Construction and Operations Committee on October 15, 
2025. 
 
Submitted By: 
 
Jason Gehrig, P.E. 
Infrastructure Engineering Director 



kelly03
Snapshot



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
 

DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Contract with Val-Matic Valve & Mfg. Corp. for 

Manufacturing and Delivery of Eleven Large Diameter Butterfly 
Valves for the Cedar Creek, Richland-Chambers and Joint Pipeline 
Sections 1 & 6 

 
FUNDING: Bond Fund 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of a contract in an amount not-to-exceed 
$4,482,355 with Val-Matic Valve & Mfg. Corp. to manufacture, assemble, and deliver 
eleven (11) large diameter butterfly valves ranging in size from 72-inch to 108-inch 
diameter. These include two (2) 72-inch, two (2) 84-inch, three (3) 90-inch, one (1) 102-
inch, and three (3) 108-inch diameter butterfly valves.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District uses large diameter butterfly valves throughout its water transmission 
system for isolation purposes, allowing for flexibility in operations and protection of staff 
performing maintenance efforts inside the pipeline.  
 
In preparation for the upcoming four-mile Cedar Creek Section II, Phase 2 Pipeline 
Replacement project, one (1) 102-inch diameter butterfly valve needs to be purchased 
for installation near the inlet at the Kennedale Balancing Reservoir. 
   
As part of the upcoming nine-mile Cedar Creek Section IV, Phase 1 Pipeline 

Replacement project, two (2) 72-inch diameter butterfly valves need to be purchased for 

the Cedar Creek Lake pump station discharge header piping replacement. This project 

will also require one (1) 90-inch diameter butterfly valve to isolate the mainline for 

operations and maintenance in the Trinity River bottoms area.   

 
The Richland-Chambers Section V Pipeline requires two (2) 84-inch diameter butterfly 
valves to replace existing, original infrastructure that no longer meets service 
requirements, as identified by the District’s asset management program.   
 
The Joint Pipeline Sections 1 & 6 Project will extend the Joint Pipeline from Arlington 
Outlet to the Rolling Hills Booster Pump Station.  At the Rolling Hills Booster Pump 
Station, two (2) 90-inch and three (3) 108-inch diameter butterfly valves will be installed 
to connect the new pipeline to the facility.  These valves will improve operational 
flexibility, including additional operational control to bypass the pump station and 



increase flow capacity to Fort Worth’s Rolling Hills Water Treatment Plant.  Near the 
Arlington Outlet, one (1) 108-inch diameter butterfly valve will be installed. 
 
Given the lead-time required for large diameter butterfly valve manufacturing, the District 
needs to procure the butterfly valves in advance of these multiple pipeline projects to 
avoid disrupting construction schedules, with the first projects currently planned to start 
construction in 2027.   
 
Notice to Proposers was advertised for the butterfly valves as per statute. Four proposals 
were received from companies that have a successful history of providing large diameter 
butterfly valves. The selection team evaluated the proposals and determined that Val-
Matic Valve & Mfg. Corp. submitted the proposal that provides the best value to the 
District for the valves discussed above.  
 
This item was reviewed by the Construction and Operations Committee on October 15, 
2025. 
 
Submitted By: 
 

Jason Gehrig, P.E.  
Infrastructure Engineering Director  



kelly03
Snapshot



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
 

DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for 

Mary’s Creek Flood Control Reservoir Feasibility Assessment 
 
FUNDING:  Fiscal Year 2026 General Fund Budget - $350,000 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of a professional services agreement in an amount 
not to exceed $532,285 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) for the Mary’s Creek Flood 
Control Reservoir (MCFCR) Feasibility Assessment to advance the conceptual flood 
mitigation strategy identified in the Upstream Flood Mitigation Analysis (UFMA) study. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board approved the UFMA study in 2022, which identified the MCFCR, a reservoir 
on Mary’s Creek near the Tarrant–Parker County line, as the most cost-effective solution 
to reduce flood risk upstream of the Fort Worth Floodway. The MCFCR strengthens the 
District’s flood protection system by temporarily storing peak storm flows, reducing flood 
risk for hundreds of properties and further lowering the chances of a flood exceeding the 
capacity of the levees. It also offers recreational, environmental, and economic benefits. 
 
The District will contract with FNI, who completed the UFMA study, to build on prior work 
and evaluate potential barriers to implementation, providing confidence for land 
acquisition and future design phases. The project aligns with regional goals for flood 
mitigation, open space preservation, and partnership funding, and is supported by 
regional partners including Fort Worth, Benbrook, NCTCOG, Parker County, and Tarrant 
County. This project supports the District’s mission by providing reliable flood protection 
and enhancing community resilience through sustainable infrastructure and regional 
collaboration. 
 
Staff selected FNI based on its Demonstrated Competence Justification, which highlights 
the firm’s expertise in dam and reservoir design, prior UFMA work, and its ability to ensure 
continuity, reduce risk, and expedite delivery. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Construction and Operations Committee on October 15, 
2025. 
 
Submitted By:  
 
Zachary Huff 
Water Resources Engineering Director  



Demonstrated Competence Justification 
 

Project: Mary’s Creek Flood Control Reservoir (MCFCR) Feasibility Assessment 

Vendor: Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) 

Prepared by:  Craig Ottman 

Date: October 3, 2025 

Project Overview 

In 2022, the Board approved Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) to lead the Upstream Flood Mitigation 

Analysis (UFMA) study, which identified the Mary’s Creek Flood Control Reservoir (MCFCR), located near 

the Tarrant–Parker County line, as the most cost-effective solution to reduce flood risk upstream of the 

Fort Worth Floodway. The proposed reservoir enhances TRWD’s flood protection system by temporarily 

storing peak storm flows, thereby reducing flood risk for hundreds of properties and further lowering 

the chances of a flood exceeding the capacity of the levees. In addition to its flood mitigation function, 

MCFCR offers recreational, environmental, and economic benefits. 

The MCFCR Feasibility Assessment builds upon the UFMA study to evaluate implementation barriers and 

provide TRWD with the confidence to proceed with land acquisition and future design phases. 

Vendor Qualifications & Justification 

Demonstrated Competence 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) has successfully designed and permitted two of Texas’ newest large dams. 

Their expertise spans all required disciplines, including dam and reservoir design, permitting, and long-

term operations planning. FNI is also a recognized leader in working with the Texas Water Development 

Board (TWDB) through the Flood Infrastructure Fund (FIF) program. 

Continuity 

Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) has led the MCFCR initiative from its inception, including concept 

development, hydrologic and hydraulic modeling, and stakeholder coordination. Their deep institutional 

knowledge ensures consistency in technical execution, stakeholder engagement, and public 

messaging—minimizing project risk and maximizing schedule efficiency. FNI has participated in nearly all 

major stakeholder presentations, establishing trusted relationships and a unified project narrative. 

Transitioning to a new design team at this stage would disrupt these relationships and risk misalignment 

in both technical and strategic direction. 

 

The following tasks are a direct continuation of FNI’s prior work and represent nearly 50% of the Basic 

Services scope effort: 

 



• Task 4 – Hydrologic & Hydraulic Analysis and Design: FNI will evaluate alternative design flow 

sets endorsed by the City of Fort Worth and NCTCOG, incorporating them into the design as 

appropriate. These flow sets represent a new step toward standardizing regional hydrology, and 

FNI has played a leading role in their development. 

 

• Task 5 – Civil and Geotechnical Design: FNI will refine the conceptual embankment and spillway 

layout developed during the UFMA study, integrating stakeholder feedback related to the 

adjacent landfill and future utility infrastructure 

 

• Task 10 – Permitting Review: Building on its initial water rights review from the UFMA study, 

FNI will assess the feasibility of securing necessary permits, addressing the primary regulatory 

challenge identified in earlier phases. 

 

Impact of Delay 

Switching firms at this stage would introduce onboarding delays, disrupt established stakeholder 

relationships, and risk misalignment in technical approach. FNI’s continued involvement avoids 

redundant effort and ensures a seamless transition into design and permitting. 

Conclusion 

Continuing with FNI as the lead consultant will avoid delays and redundant onboarding efforts, leveraging 

their sophisticated modeling and deep familiarity with the project. Their team is already oriented to the 

modeling framework, design assumptions, and stakeholder expectations, ensuring a seamless transition 

into the next phase of design and permitting.   

 



 

   

   

 

ATTACHMENT SC 

MCFCR FEASIBILITY ASSESSMENT  

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CLIENT 

 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 

Tarrant Regional Water District (TRWD) previously contracted with Freese and Nichols, Inc. (FNI) to investigate 

the feasibility of upstream flood mitigation on Mary’s Creek. The previous study identified a potentially 

feasible location for a flood control reservoir that can reduce flood damage along Mary’s Creek and increase 

the level of protection provided by the existing Fort Worth Floodway levee system. The components of the 

project will be consistent with the configuration of the Mary’s Creek Flood Control Reservoir (MCFCR) 

developed during the previous February 2025 Upstream Flood Mitigation Analysis (UFMA). The purpose of 

this scope is to build upon the prior study to determine if there are any high-level factors that would prevent 

the project from moving forward. The expected outcome is to generate a level of confidence with the project 

partners to move forward with land acquisition if desired. Project components are generally described below. 

• Approximately 2,300-foot-long earthen embankment dam with a crest elevation of about 810 feet. 

The typical cross section consists of a clay core from a local borrow sources and zoned outer shells of 

embankment material.  

• An uncontrolled auxiliary spillway, consisting of an earthen open-cut channel approximately 395 feet 

wide in the left abutment at about elevation 793.6 feet. 

• A principal spillway with a 20-foot by 20-foot drop inlet intake tower and a low flow outlet consisting 

of 8-foot by 8-foot opening at the bottom with an invert elevation of 760 feet. The top of the tower 

will be open at the top elevation of 785 feet. 

• A principal spillway conduit consisting of a 14-foot by 14-foot horseshoe-shaped conduit through the 

embankment dam, which is connected to an exit channel that ties into Mary’s Creek downstream. 

 

This scope of services is based on the following assumptions: 

• The location and alignment of the dam centerline will generally be as described in the previous study. 

• Earthen embankment, principal spillway, auxiliary spillway, and low flow outlet will generally be as 

described above with some modifications that may occur as the design evolves. 

• Based on the previous study, the dam is assumed to be an intermediate sized, high hazard dam and 

will be required to pass the Probable Maximum Flood (PMF). Effective dam height will be determined 

in the current phase based on passing 100% of the PMF peak water surface elevation plus required 

freeboard. 

• FNI will identify potential conflicts, such as existing roads and utilities, related to the dam and 

reservoir and will work to avoid them where feasible. The resolution or relocation of these conflicts 

is not included in this contract. 

 

This scope of work includes the following tasks: 

 

Task 1 – Project Management and Meetings 

Task 2 – Topographic Survey 

Task 3 – Geotechnical Field Investigation 

Task 4 – Hydrologic & Hydraulic Analysis and Design 

Task 5 – Civil and Geotechnical Design 

Task 6 – Downstream Channel Design 

Task 7 – Preliminary Design Package 

Task 8 – Land Acquisition Strategy 

Task 9 – Funding Strategy 

Task 10 – Permitting Review 



 

   

   

 

ARTICLE I 

 

BASIC SERVICES:  FNI shall render the following professional services in connection with the development of 

the Project: 

 

Task 1 - Project Management and Meetings 

1. Project Management – FNI will provide Project Management services, including project 

coordination, routine communications with TRWD, and monthly status reporting. Assumes a 

Project Duration of 12 months for engineering analysis in basic services with an additional 12 

months for finalizing comments and coordinating with stakeholders which is associated with 

special services.  

2. Coordinate Quality Control (QC) / Quality Assurance (QA) by Senior Management and Technical 

Staff consistent with FNI’s established internal quality review processes. 

3. Project Meetings – FNI will coordinate and facilitate project meetings as follows: 

a. Kick-off meeting (in person) 

b. Up to eighteen (18) monthly progress meetings (Up to 4 in person; remainder virtual) 

c. Feasibility Assessment Review Meeting (in person) 

*Note: If additional entities become cost-share partners, TRWD may authorize additional 

meetings or coordination activities under Special Services to accommodate their input and review 

needs. 

Task 2 – Topographic Survey 

1. Incorporate topography or grading provided by TRWD that reflects proposed changes by 

developers in the project vicinity. Provided files are assumed to be compatible with AutoCAD Civil 

3D. No new survey will be performed. 

Task 3 – Geotechnical Field Investigation 

1. Travel to the site to identify exploratory boring locations. Check visually for underground utility 

markers, other existing construction, and accessibility and stake the borings. 

2. Call Texas811 utility system to mark utilities within an appropriate radius of the boring locations. 

3. Subcontract with a drilling contractor to drill a total of six (6) borings and excavate up to six (6) 

test pits. The borings will be located along the centerline, the upstream toe and downstream toe 

of the dam. The borings will range in depth from 60 to 70 feet. The test pits will be excavated in 

the auxiliary spillway and other potential on-site borrow areas. 

a. Soil samples at all locations will be collected intermittently using continuous flight or hollow-

stem augers and either split-spoon (Standard Penetration testing) or steel tube samples. 

b. Bedrock, in select borings, will be sampled by coring with an NX core barrel. Perform THD 

cone penetrometer tests on rock in the field at selected locations. 

c. Perform packer tests in the bedrock in selected borings to evaluate rock permeability. 

d. Observe and record water level during drilling and at completion. The boreholes will be 

backfilled with cement-bentonite grout to the ground surface at completion of field activities. 

4. Provide an Engineer or Geologist to coordinate the drilling, log the borings, record field test data, 

and handle and transport the samples. 



 

   

   

 

5. Select samples for laboratory testing, assign tests, deliver samples to a subcontracted laboratory, 

and review test results. Testing is expected to include classification tests (liquid and plastic limits 

and percent passing a #200 sieve or gradation), moisture content, dry unit weight, moisture-

density tests, crumb dispersion tests or double hydrometer tests, permeability tests and strength 

tests (triaxial tests, direct shear tests and consolidation tests). 

6. Prepare a technical memorandum in electronic format (PDF) that summarizes the geotechnical 

field investigation. The memorandum will include: 

a. Boring and test pit locations, boring logs, laboratory test results, and a key to symbols used. 

b. Discussion of subsurface conditions and soil properties indicated by the field and laboratory 

work, and the implications for design. 

c. General discussion of geology and soil encountered during the field investigation and 

laboratory testing and identify constraints of the project site from a geotechnical perspective 

as it relates to the proposed MCFCR. 

 

Task 4 – Hydrologic and Hydraulic Analysis and Design 

1. Update the rainfall models for the hypothetical frequency storm events from the February 2025 

UFMA to evaluate potential impacts to the principal spillway configuration. Utilize the updated 

rainfall in the HEC-HMS model to recompute inflows.  

2. Attend one (1) in-person meeting with City of Fort Worth (CFW) stormwater to discuss and obtain 

any previous hydrologic and hydraulic (H&H) modeling data related to the project. 

3. Attend one (1) hybrid meeting with Transportation and Stormwater Infrastructure (TSI) H&H team 

to discuss and obtain H&H modeling data related to the project. 

4. Perform a comparative analysis of Revised UFMA, CFW, and TSI hydrology sources using HEC-HMS 

and the February 2025 UFMA spillway configuration to evaluate MCFCR inflow and maximum 

pool elevations for the 100-, 200-, 500-, 1,000-year frequency events and PMF; summarize results 

in a technical memorandum. 

5. Facilitate (1) in-person meeting with TRWD, CFW, and other appropriate project partners to 

discuss the available hydrology options for the project. At this meeting, the group will determine 

one option, or a combination of options, to be designated as the official hydrology set for the 

project: the "MCFCR Design Hydrology." This set will be used for all subsequent design and 

analysis activities.  

6. From the MCFCR Design Hydrology, update principal and auxiliary spillway configurations to 

achieve similar performance for the 10, 50, and 100-year frequency events compared to the 

February 2025 UFMA modeling. Updates to the principal and auxiliary spillway may include 

alterations to the intake tower, orifice, and conduit. These will be evaluated based on the HEC-

HMS model only. 

7. Confirm the hydraulic elevations of the principal spillway, auxiliary spillway, and dam crest to be 

compliant with TCEQ dam safety requirements for Probable Maximum Flood (PMF), including 

suitable freeboard in accordance with the dam’s hazard classification and size. Flood routing from 

the previous project phase will be utilized. 

8. Perform the hydraulic analysis and preliminary design of the intake and outlet structures, 

including the stilling basin. 



 

   

   

 

9. Based on the upstream footprint of the reservoir flood pool, determine the limits of upstream 

water surface elevation increases resulting from the reservoir. Detailed modeling supporting an 

official Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) will be performed in future design phases as an additional 

service. 

10. Once proposed configuration of the principal and auxiliary spillways are complete, update the 

benefit-cost analysis from the previous phase based on the revised hydraulic results. 

11. Update UFMA report, from previous study phase, describing the design flood determination and 

related hydrologic and hydraulic analysis.  

12. Prepare technical memorandum in electronic format, (PDF) summarizing analysis and results for 

portions of the preliminary design of the auxiliary spillway and intake structure that are not 

covered by the H&H report for TCEQ. 

 

Task 5 – Civil and Geotechnical Design 

1. Attend one (1) in person meeting with TRWD and the City of Fort Worth to determine if a public 

road needs to be incorporated on the dam crest. The embankment crest width will be sized to 

reflect the need and size of roadway. Any roadway design is an additional service. 

2. If needed, update the dam alignment to avoid potential conflicts with existing Waste 

Management infrastructure or City of Fort Worth utilities. If needed, update utility relocations 

memo based on changes to the dam or input from the City of Fort Worth. 

3. Develop a typical section of the dam embankment. Develop a preliminary layout of the access 

road system needed for dam maintenance. Development of a typical section is based on the 

following assumptions. 

a. Minimum 3.5H:1V upstream and 3:1 downstream slopes. 

b. A clay core from local borrow sources and zoned outer shells of embankment material. 

c. Internal drainage system consisting of a chimney and blanket filter or drains. 

d. Soil Cement erosion protection of the upstream slope. 

e. Grass erosion protection of the downstream slope. 

4. Perform wave runup calculations to determine minimum required freeboard. 

5. Prepare a technical memorandum in electronic format (PDF) describing the preliminary 

embankment design. The memorandum will cover the following topics: 

a. Type of road (public or private) included on the embankment crest 

b. Updated dam alignment 

c. Typical embankment section 

d. Principal Spillway plan and profile  

e. Auxiliary Spillway plan and profile 

f. Wave runup calculations 

Task 6 – Downstream Channel Design 

1. No downstream channel design effort is included in this scope refer to additional services.   

  



 

   

   

 

Task 7 – Preliminary Design Package 

1. Prepare up to four (4) drawings to represent the preliminary design of the previously listed 

facilities. All drawings will be produced using AutoCAD Civil 3D. TRWD CAD and drawing standards 

will be utilized for the sheets. Submittals will be in electronic format (PDF). Anticipated sheets 

include: 

a. Overall Site Plan 

b. Embankment Plan and Profile 

c. Embankment Typical Section 

d. Principal Spillway Plan and Profile 

e. Auxiliary Spillway plan and profile 

2. Develop an opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC) based on the Preliminary Design 

Package. The OPCC will be developed in general accordance with AACE International cost 

estimating guidelines for a Class 4 estimate. 

3. Several technical memorandums will be prepared to document design efforts to date for each of 

the various components of the Preliminary Design Phase. Prepare an executive summary in 

electronic format (PDF) the references the completed technical memorandums to document the 

design completed at the time of the Preliminary Design package submittal. 

Task 8 – Land Acquisition Strategy 

1. No Acquisition strategies are included in this scope. Refer to additional services.   

Task 9 – Funding Strategy 

1. No funding strategies are included in this scope. Refer to additional services.   

Task 10 – Permitting Review 

1. Environmental Desktop review of Geotechnical test pit locations and borings to identify any 

environmental conflicts.  

2. Review the proposed project and potential need for a new water right authorization. Meet with 

TRWD and their legal counsel to discuss options. If needed, perform up to three Water 

Availability Model (WAM) runs using the existing Trinity River WAM to determine if there are any 

potential impacts to other water right holders. If needed, adjustments to environmental flow 

standards beyond what is in the existing Trinity River WAM would be additional services. Meet 

with TRWD and legal counsel to discuss the results and potential options to seek a water right. 

Additional support to pursue a water right and/or prepare a water right application would be 

additional services. 

3. Prepare a technical memorandum in electronic format (PDF) summarizing the permitting review 

performed under Basic Services. 

 

  



 

   

   

 

ARTICLE II 

 

SPECIAL SERVICES: Up to $100,000 may be allocated for unforeseen scope items, including partner-specific 

coordination tasks, reviews, deliverables, additional meetings, expanded review cycles, or incorporation of 

design criteria. Written authorization from TRWD must be provided before FNI may access these funds. 

 

Task 8S – Land Acquisition Strategy Special Services 

 

1. Provide up to three (3) strategies on land acquisition to help TRWD determine land to purchase 

and recommended easements for the identified project site. Strategies include recommended 

elevations for acquisition and timing. 

2. Meet up to two (2) times with up to four (4) key landowners with TRWD to discuss the project. 

FNI will prepare meeting minutes to be distributed by TRWD. 

3. Meet with TRWD and City of Fort Worth up to three (3) times to discuss the preferred land 

acquisition strategy. 

4. Prepare a technical memorandum in electronic format (PDF) summarizing the land acquisition 

strategy. 

*Note: If additional partners are added, TRWD may authorize expanded coordination meetings 

or strategy revisions under Special Services. 

 

ARTICLE III 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES: Any services performed by FNI that are not included in the Basic Services or Special 

Services described above are Additional Services.  Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized 

by Client, are described as follows: 

 

1. Development of the design, perform analysis and prepare contract documents beyond the 

preliminary level described in the above scope. 

2. Design of potential roadway on embankment crest for City of Fort Worth.  

3. Local borrow evaluation study to determine suitability for use in embankment. 

4. Funding Strategy Development  

5. Downstream channel design and geomorphic assessment 

6. Spillway erodibility analysis. 

7. Seepage and slope stability analyses 

8. Bid phase services. 

9. Construction phase services. 

10. Environmental Field Survey  

11. Topographic Survey 

12. Development of grant applications. 

13. Development of stormwater impact fees. 

14. Assistance with legal proceedings. 

15. Coordination with FEMA, including a CLOMR or LOMR. 

16. Coordination with landowners beyond the meetings described in the above scope. 

17. Boundary or easement surveys. 

18. Negotiation of easements or real property. 



 

   

   

 

19. Preparation of a Section 404 Application (Pre-construction Notification or Individual Permit), 

preparation of a compensatory mitigation plan, or conducting Texas Rapid Assessment Method 

(TXRAM). 

20. Coordination with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers per the Hydrologic Modeling Guidelines for 

Regulatory Permit Actions.  

21. Formal Section 7 Consultation with U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 

22. Conducting presence/absence surveys for protected species or preparing a Biological 

Assessment report. 

23. Preparation of an Aquatic Resources Relocation Plan (ARRP) or conducting mussel surveys. 

24. Phase II Environmental Site Assessment. 

25. Preparation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). 

26. Coordination with the General Land Office or Texas Parks and Wildlife Department regarding 

state-owned streambeds. 

27. Other environmental services not specifically defined in this scope of services. 

28. Application for water rights and legal consultation. 

29. Preparation of an Engineering Feasibility Report (EFR) (for Full FIF FMP Application) 

30. Environmental Determination Form (EDF) (for Full FIF FMP Application) 

 

  



 

   

   

 

ARTICLE IV 

 

TIME OF COMPLETION:  FNI is authorized to commence work on the Project upon execution of this 

Agreement and agrees to complete the basic services within 12 months from Notice to Proceed. An additional 

12 months has also been assumed for special services to finalize comments and coordinate with stakeholders.  

 

If FNI’s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule 

consistent with the number of days of delay.  These delays may include but are not limited to delays in Client 

or regulatory reviews, delays on the flow of information to be provided to FNI, governmental approvals, etc.  

These delays may result in an adjustment to compensation as outlined on the face of this Agreement and in 

Attachment CO.  

 

 

FEE SUMMARY:  Services will be provided on an hourly, not-to-exceed basis. Proposed hourly rates are 

provided in Attachment CO. 

BASIC SERVICES  

Task 1 - Project Management and Meetings  $        55,233 

Task 2 – Topographic Survey   $          5,585  

Task 3 – Geotechnical Field Investigation  $        86,595  

Task 4 – Hydrologic & Hydraulic Analysis and Design    $        85,761  

Task 5 – Civil and Geotechnical Design  $        32,375  

Task 6 – Downstream Channel Design  $                  -  

Task 7 – Preliminary Design Package    $        45,546  

Task 8 – Land Acquisition Strategy  $                  - 

Task 9 – Funding Strategy  $                  -  

Task 10 – Permitting Review   $        68,892  

TOTAL Basic Services  $      379,986 

SPECIAL SERVICES 

Special Services   $         100,000  

Task 8S – Land Acquisition Strategy  $        52,299 

Special Services Total $        152,299 

Overall Total   $       532,285 

 

**Note that budgets per task are provided for reference only and may be adjusted to better align with 

actual effort per task within basic services.  

 

ARTICLE V 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF CLIENT: Client shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the 

services of FNI: 

 

A. Client recognizes and expects that change orders may be required to be issued during construction. 

The responsibility for the costs of change orders will be determined on the basis of applicable 

contractual obligations and professional liability standards. FNI will not be responsible for any change 

order costs due to unforeseen site conditions, changes made by or due to the Client or Contractor, 



 

   

   

 

or any change order costs not caused by the negligent errors or omissions of FNI. Nothing in this 

provision creates a presumption that, or changes the professional liability standard for determining 

if, FNI is liable for change order costs. It is recommended that the Client budget a minimum of 5% for 

new construction and a minimum of 10% for construction that includes refurbishing existing 

structures. 

 

B. Designate in writing a person to act as Client’s representative with respect to the services to be 

rendered under this Agreement.  Such person shall have contract authority to transmit instructions, 

receive information, interpret and define Client’s policies and decisions with respect to FNI’s services 

for the Project. 

 

C. Provide all criteria and full information as to Client’s requirements for the Project, including design 

objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and 

expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction 

standards which Client will require to be included in the drawings and specifications. 

 

D. Assist FNI by placing at FNI’s disposal all available information pertinent to the Project including 

previous reports, drawings of existing utilities, and any other data relative to design or construction 

of the Project. 

 

E. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as 

required for FNI to perform services under this Agreement. 

 

F. The Client shall host stakeholder meetings at their facility. If a suitable on-site location is unavailable, 

the client shall be responsible for identifying, reserving, and funding an alternative venue that meets 

the needs of the meeting. Client is to provide any snacks or lunch, if requested.  

 

G. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents 

presented by FNI, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as Client 

deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a 

reasonable time so as not to delay, or cause rework in, the services of FNI. 

 

H. Provide such accounting, independent cost estimating and insurance counseling services as may be 

required for the Project, such legal services as Client may require or FNI may reasonably request with 

regard to legal issues pertaining to the Project including any that may be raised by Contractor(s), such 

auditing service as Client may require to ascertain how or for what purpose any Contractor has used 

the moneys paid under the construction contract, and such inspection services as Client may require 

to ascertain that Contractor(s) are complying with any law, rule, regulation, ordinance, code or order 

applicable to their furnishing and performing the work. 

 

I. Give prompt written notice to FNI whenever Client observes or otherwise becomes aware of any 

development that affects the scope or timing of FNI’s services, or any defect or nonconformance of 

the work of any Contractor. 

 

J. Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Attachment SC, Article III of this 

Agreement or other services as required. 

 

K. Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Article V. 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8 
 
DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of Contract with Weaver Excavating & Septic LLC 

for George W. Shannon Wetlands Silt Removal from Sedimentation 
Ponds - Phase II of III  

 
FUNDING: Fiscal Year 2026 Revenue Fund Budget - 500,000 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Management recommends approval of a contract in the amount of $366,477.47 with 
Weaver Excavating & Septic LLC of Eustace, Texas, to remove, haul and spread 30K 
cubic yards of silt from Sedimentation Pond #1 and #2 at the George Shannon Wetlands 
to the District’s Trinity River Pump Station compound.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

The George W. Shannon Wetlands at Richland-Chambers Reservoir serves as an 
important component in the District’s water supply system. The project was constructed 
in a phased approach with the final build-out, the Phase II Expansion completed in late 
2013. 
 

The intended function of the sedimentation ponds is to remove suspended sediment from 
incoming turbid Trinity River water. A total of five sedimentation ponds removes 
approximately 80% of sediment from the incoming water, prior to entering the wetland 
cells.  
 

Sedimentation Ponds 1 & 2 consist of approximately 15 total surface acres. A survey 
conducted in May of 2025 determined areas with up to 7-feet of sediment deposit. 
Removal of the accumulated sediment will return the pond to the original design volume 
for optimum functionality.  
 

The Request for Proposals was solicited per statute (Texas Local Government Code 
Chapter 252) and 3 proposals were received. The evaluation team determined that 
Weaver Excavating & Septic LLC submitted the proposal providing the best value to the 
District.   
 

This item was reviewed by the Construction and Operations Committee on October 15, 
2025. 
 
Submitted By:  
     

Darrell Beason     
Chief Operations Officer 



kelly03
Snapshot



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 9 

DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Consider and Adopt Revisions to TRWD Board-Approved Fair 

Opportunities Purchasing and Contracting Policy 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Management recommends approving changes to TRWD’s Fair Opportunities Purchasing 
and Contracting Policy to ensure compliance with federal law. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
District policies must be revised to ensure compliance with federal law. Accordingly, staff 
is proposing certain revisions in the attached Fair Opportunities Purchasing and 
Contracting Policy that would bring the policy into compliance with federal law.  

 
This item was reviewed by the Administration and Policy Committee on October 13, 2025. 
 
Submitted By:  
 
Stephen Tatum  
General Counsel  



kelly03
Snapshot



kelly03
Snapshot



kelly03
Snapshot



kelly03
Snapshot



kelly03
Snapshot



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 10 

DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion of Proposed Update to the TRWD General Ordinance 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
No action recommended. For discussion only.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The TRWD General Ordinance is the document by which the District regulates the water 
and land under its control and performs its duties as required by the general laws 
governing water control and improvement districts, which includes the Texas Constitution 
and the Texas Water Code. The current version of the General Ordinance (which also 
features an associated Commercial Facilities Ordinance) was first adopted by the TRWD 
Board of Directors in March 2002 and revised by action of the Board in November 2011.  
 
The proposed 2025 General Ordinance (attached) is a reorganization and modernization 
of the document. It includes notable additions of definitions, structured 
permit/licensing/enforcement processes, explicit new rules for modern issues (e.g., 
drones, invasive species, critical infrastructure), clarified GM authority, and clearer cross-
references to external law. Permit processes are more detailed and provide for 
administrative and technical review, amendments, revocations, and appeals. Permit 
Guidelines (still under development) for all permit and license types will provide 
standardized procedures for each permit and allow District staff to amend or update the 
Guidelines in response to changes in law or best practices.  
  
Overall, the goal of the 2025 General Ordinance is to provide a more concise, user-
friendly, and adaptable document reflecting best practices in public resource 
management and regulatory compliance. The proposed 2025 General Ordinance will be 
placed on the TRWD website for 30 days of public comment, then presented to the Board 
for further discussion and/or approval at the November 2025 regular Board meeting. 

 
This item was reviewed by the Administration and Policy Committee on October 13, 2025, 
and by the Construction and Operations Committee on October 15, 2025. 
 
Submitted By:  
 
Stephen Tatum  
General Counsel  



 

 

GENERAL ORDINANCE 

 

AS ADOPTED BY ITS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

ON 

 [---], 2025 

 

 

*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, 

editing, and approval, and should not be relied on or cited for any official use or 

legal purpose. *** 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- i - 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Section 1. TITLE AND SCOPE................................................................................................1 

Section 2. AUTHORITY ..........................................................................................................1 

Section 3. PURPOSE ................................................................................................................1 

Section 4. PRIOR ORDINANCE SUPERSEDED ...................................................................2 

Section 5. DEFINITIONS .........................................................................................................2 

Section 6. VIOLATIONS OF OR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS ORDINANCE ......9 

Section 7. APPLICABILITY OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL LAWS, RULES, AND 

REGULATIONS ......................................................................................................9 

Section 8. PERMITTING AND LICENSING ........................................................................10 

Section 9. PERMIT AND LICENSE ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE ...................17 

Section 10. DESIGNATION OF USE ON DISTRICT LAND OR DISTRICT WATER .........20 

Section 11. ABANDONMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY ...............................................22 

Section 12. DESTRUCTION OF DISTRICT PROPERTY .....................................................22 

Section 13. MODIFICATION OF DISTRICT LAND OR DISTRICT WATER, DREDGING, 

AND FILLING ......................................................................................................23 

Section 14. OBSTRUCTION OF NAVIGATION AND WATER FLOW ................................23 

Section 15. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES ..............................................................................23 

Section 16. RECREATIONAL FACILITIES ...........................................................................23 

Section 17. EVENTS ................................................................................................................24 

Section 18. ADVERTISEMENTS ............................................................................................24 

Section 19. BOATING, VESSELS, AND WATERCRAFT......................................................24 

Section 20. SURFACE WATER SPORTS AND SIMILAR ACTIVITIES ..............................26 

Section 21. WARNING SIGNS AND BUOYS ........................................................................26 

Section 22. DIVING, SWIMMING ..........................................................................................26 

Section 23. FIREARMS, OTHER WEAPONS, EXPLOSIVES, AND FIREWORKS ...........27 

Section 24. FISHING ................................................................................................................27 

Section 25. HUNTING .............................................................................................................27 

Section 26. MOTOR VEHICLES .............................................................................................28 

Section 27. POLLUTION PROHIBITED ................................................................................28 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- ii - 

Section 28. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES .................................................................................29 

Section 29. SANITATION ........................................................................................................32 

Section 30. RESTRICTED AREAS .........................................................................................33 

Section 31. MANAGEMENT PLAN, WATER CONSERVATION, AND DROUGHT ..........33 

Section 32. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES ............................................................................34 

Section 33. ENFORCEMENT ..................................................................................................34 

Section 34. SEVERABILITY .................................................................................................355 

Section 35. LEGAL NOTICES REQUIRED ...........................................................................35 

Section 36. PRESENT AND FUTURE DISTRICT LAND AND DISTRICT WATER ...........35 

Section 37. RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER LAWS ...................................................................35 

 

ATTACHMENTS [*STILL UNDER DEVELOPMENT] 

Attachment I   RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENT PERMIT GUIDELINES 

Attachment II COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION PERMIT GUIDELINES 

Attachment III COMMERCIAL OPERATING LICENSE GUIDELINES 

Attachment IV EVENT PERMIT GUIDELINES 

Attachment V RIGHT OF ENTRY PERMIT GUIDELINES 

Attachment VI ENCROACHMENT PERMIT GUIDELINES  

Attachment VII ON-SITE SEWAGE FACILITY PERMIT GUIDELINES 

Attachment VIII COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY GUIDELINES 

 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 1 - 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT  

GENERAL ORDINANCE 

REGULATIONS FOR WATER AND LAND UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF TARRANT 

REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

SECTION 1. TITLE AND SCOPE 

This General Ordinance (this “Ordinance”) shall be known and may be cited as the Tarrant 

Regional Water District General Ordinance. This Ordinance shall regulate and apply to all the 

water and associated land under the Control of the Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 

and Improvement District (the “District”). This Ordinance sets forth the rules and regulations under 

which the District will exercise and perform its duties by the general laws for water control and 

improvement districts.  

SECTION 2. AUTHORITY 

This Ordinance is promulgated under the authority of Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas 

Constitution, and operating under the powers and provisions of Chapter 31 of the Texas Parks and 

Wildlife Code; Chapter 340 of the General and Special Laws enacted by the 44th Legislature of the 

State of Texas and its Regular Session, now appearing as Sections 51.127, et seq., of the Texas 

Water Code, as amended; and also under the powers and provisions of Chapters 26, 49, 50, and 51 

of the Texas Water Code, as amended.  

SECTION 3. PURPOSE 

Section 3.01 The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish the rules and regulations 

that pertain and relate to: 

(a) Delivery of reliable, resilient supply of water to the public; 

(b) Reduction of the risk of flooding through dependable Control of 

infrastructure and operations; 

(c) Sustainment of our natural resources; and 

(d) Creation and maintenance of recreation opportunities around District 

infrastructure enhancing quality of life. 

Section 3.02 District staff shall review and revise this Ordinance as needed and 

present the revisions to the District Board of Directors for approval and adoption no more than 

every six years from the date of first adoption. 

Section 3.03 A District Officer shall have the authority to enforce provisions of this 

Ordinance relating to the laws, rules, and regulations of District Land and District Water as 

provided by the general laws for water Control and improvement districts. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 2 - 

Section 3.04 The District shall have the authority to employ and constitute its own 

law enforcement officers, to prevent and abate the commission of any offenses against the 

Ordinance, and against the laws of the State of Texas and federal law, when such offenses or 

threatened offenses occurs upon any District Land or District Water. 

SECTION 4. PRIOR ORDINANCE SUPERSEDED 

Section 4.01 The General Ordinance adopted by the District Board of Directors on 

March 19, 2002, and revised on November 15, 2011, is hereby repealed and replaced in its entirety 

as of the effective date herein.  

Section 4.02 The Commercial Facilities Ordinance adopted by the District Board of 

Directors on March 19, 2002, is hereby repealed and replaced in its entirety as of the effective date 

herein. 

SECTION 5. DEFINITIONS 

Section 5.01 As used in this Ordinance and all Guidelines, the following terms shall 

have the following meanings:  

(1) “Abode” includes a Watercraft if it is occupied by a Person for more than 

fourteen (14) cumulative days in any sixty (60) day period, or if it is occupied by a Person for more 

than thirty (30) nights in any ninety (90) day period.  

(2) “Airboat” means a shallow-draft boat driven by an airplane propeller and 

steered by an airplane rudder, including hovercraft and similar craft.  

(3) “Annual Operating License” means a license issued by the District in 

consideration of an annual fee for operation of a Commercial Facility.  

(4) “Boat” is defined as a Watercraft.  

(5) “Breach of License Regulations” means the commission of any act or 

maintenance of any condition without a required permit or license from the District, or violation 

of the terms of such permit or license.  

(6) “Breach of the Peace” includes acts causing (a) bodily harm or fear of bodily 

harm; (b) to deprive another Person of property lawfully in such Person’s possession or control; 

(c)  property damage; (d) to threaten to commit any one or more of the foregoing acts; (e) to 

encourage or aid another to commit any one or more of the foregoing acts; (f) to disregard any 

lawful request of any peace officer or other lawfully constituted law enforcement officer, District 

Peace Office, or District Officers; (g) to resist or interfere with any such officer engaged in the 

lawful discharge of official duties; (h) any act which reasonably should be anticipated to produce 

any of the foregoing; and (i) acts prohibited by Chapter 42 of the Texas Penal Code.  

(7) “Commercial Activity” means any operation, action, or activity for which a 

fee or other consideration is received in exchange for goods or services.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 3 - 

(8) “Commercial Construction Permit” means a permit for the expansion, 

reconstruction, Construction, Modification, alteration, renovation, or addition of a Commercial 

Facility on District Land or District Water issued by the District after reviewing an application and 

confirming compliance with this Ordinance. 

(9) “Commercial Facility” means any facility used for the conduct of 

Commercial Activities, including but not limited to: (a) water-based facilities for mooring, fueling, 

leasing, or servicing Watercraft, including Fuel Facilities; (b) docks, restaurants, breakwaters, 

piers, ramps, and anchoring facilities; and (c) Community Docks. 

(10) “Community Dock” is a dock or boat slip facility used exclusively by 

members of a development, property owners’ association, or multi-family residence complex.  

(11) “Construction” means erecting or installing structural, electrical, or 

plumbing components of an Improvement or Commercial Facility, including dredging, filling, and 

clearing. 

(12) “Control” means the area, land, or water overseen by the District by 

authority granted by statute but not to the exclusion of statutorily granted oversight concurrent 

with other jurisdictions or entities. 

(13) “Cove” means a sheltered recess in a reservoir shoreline less than six 

hundred (600) feet wide. 

(14) “District” means the Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and 

Improvement District.  

(15) “District Inspector” means a District employee responsible for inspecting 

Commercial Facilities, Improvements, and generally for compliance with this Ordinance on 

District Land and in District Water. 

(16) “District Land” includes all land owned or Controlled by the District, 

including, without limitation, District Parks, and all pipelines, flowage, and other easements held 

by the District. 

(17) “District Officers” include the General Manager, Deputy General 

Manager(s), Assistant General Manager(s), Executives, Chief Officers, Lake Supervisors, Lake 

Superintendents, Reservoir Managers, Inspectors, and District Peace Officers, and any of their 

respective authorized designees and agents.  

(18) “District Parks” include, without limitation, each of the following parks and 

associated trails/trailheads: (a) Eagle Mountain Park, located west of Morris Dido Newark Road 

and south of Peden Road; (b) Twin Points at Eagle Mountain Lake; (c) Marine Creek Lake; and 

(d) Airfield Falls Trailhead and Conservation Park at 200 Pumphrey Dr., Fort Worth, TX 76114. 

(19) “District Peace Officer” is a peace officer contracted or employed by the 

District in accordance with Section 49.216 of the Texas Water Code and licensed under the Texas 

Administrative Code, Title 37 – Public Safety, Part VII – Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 4 - 

Standards and Education, or any subsequent regulations adopted by the Texas Commission on Law 

Enforcement Standards and Education. 

(20) “District Water” includes all lakes, Reservoirs, rivers, streams, creeks, 

tributaries, sloughs, canals, watercourses, ditches, detention structures, sump areas, Floodways and 

all other bodies of water, natural or artificial, owned or Controlled by the District, including water 

held, diverted, stored, or otherwise Controlled pursuant to a state-granted water right.  

(21) “Drone” means an aircraft, or unmanned aircraft system (UAS), including 

all components (controller, camera, sensors), operated without the possibility of direct human 

intervention from within or on the aircraft.  

(22) “Encroachment” means the expansion, reconstruction, Construction, 

Modification, alteration, renovation, or addition to a new or existing Improvement or Commercial 

Facility located within a Right-of-Way located on District Land or District Water, including within 

a District pipeline Right-of-Way.  

(23) “Encroachment Permit” means a permit for the expansion, reconstruction, 

Construction, Modification, alteration, renovation, or addition to a new or existing Improvement 

or Commercial Facility located within a Right-of-Way located on District Land or District Water, 

including within a District pipeline Right-of-Way, issued by the District after reviewing an 

application and confirming compliance with this Ordinance. 

(24) “EPA” means the United States Environmental Protection Agency. 

(25) “Event” includes any gathering, activity, or occurrence on District Land or 

District Waters that involves public or private participation of greater than one hundred (100) 

Persons.   

(26) “Event Permit” means a permit issued by the District for the purpose of 

holding an Event on District Land or District Waters.  

(27) “Expansion” means increasing the water surface area occupied by a 

commercial facility. 

(28) “Facility” means each and every structure, Improvement, building, sign, 

pipeline, or fence owned, Controlled, or constructed by the District. 

(29) “Floodway” means the flood protection levees, channel improvements and 

associated diversion channels constructed on the Clear Fork and West Fork of the Trinity River by 

the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) after the flood of 1949, including subsequent 

additions. The Floodway extends from approximately 1,000 feet upstream of Meandering Road 

along the West Fork of the Trinity River to approximately 1,500 feet downstream of the Beach 

Street dam; and along the Clear Fork of the Trinity River beginning at State Highway 183 

southeasterly to the confluence of the West Fork of the Trinity River; or as otherwise determined 

by USACE. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 5 - 

(30) “Flood Flowage Boundary” refers to the designated area within District 

Land and District Water that is subject to flooding, and includes, without limitation, the following 

specific elevation lines, measured in feet above mean sea level known as elevation: (a) elevation 

325 feet upon the lands forming the margins of Cedar Creek Reservoir; (b) elevation 320 feet upon 

the lands forming the margins of Richland Chambers Reservoir; (c) elevation 668 feet upon the 

lands forming the margins of Eagle Mountain Lake; (d) elevation 851 feet upon the lands forming 

the margins of Lake Bridgeport; and (e) elevation 715 feet upon the lands forming the margins of 

Marine Creek Lake. 

(31) “Flotation Material” means encapsulated polystyrene foam used for 

flotation. 

(32) “Forbidden Zone” means areas where public entry is prohibited, including, 

without limitation, areas marked by Warning Signs or Buoys as forbidden or prohibited to public 

entry, and any dam or Facility.  

(33) “Fuel Facility” means a Commercial Facility designed for storing and 

dispensing fuel to motor vehicles, including Watercraft, on District Land or District Water, and 

includes all equipment and structures necessary for fueling operations, such as storage tanks, 

pumps, dispensing nozzles, and safety and spill prevention measures. Fuel Facility also includes 

any Commercial Facility that stores or possesses petroleum products or distillate.  

(34) “General Manager” is the Person employed by the District as its General 

Manager.  

(35) “Guidelines” means, as amended from time to time, the Residential 

Improvement Permit Guidelines, Commercial Construction Permit Guidelines, Commercial 

Operating License Guidelines, Event Permit Guidelines, Right of Entry Permit Guidelines, 

Encroachment Permit Guidelines, and On-Site Sewage Facility Permit Guidelines. 

(36) “Hazardous Waste” means, as defined by the EPA, waste exhibiting 

ignitability, corrosivity, reactivity, or toxicity, and includes waste that exhibits the characteristics 

of Hazardous Waste.  

(37) “Headway Speed” means the slowest possible speed a Watercraft may travel 

under power.  

(38) “Improvement” includes all structures, devices, contrivances, or objects 

placed on District Land or District Water.  

(39) “Inland Rules” means the U.S. Coast Guard Inland Navigation Rules.  

(40) “International Building Code” or “IBC” means the 2021 Code, as may be 

amended or restated from time to time, and as adopted in this Ordinance. 

(41) “International Fire Code” or “IFC” means the 2021 Code, as may be 

amended or restated from time to time, and as adopted in this Ordinance. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 6 - 

(42) “Lake Resident Water Conservation and Drought Management Plan” is a 

plan to conserve water and manage drought conditions.  

(43) “Landowner” means any Person that holds legal title to a parcel of land 

adjacent to a District Reservoir or Lot. This includes Persons who possess full ownership rights, 

including the right to use, lease, sell, or otherwise dispose of such property, subject to applicable 

laws and regulations. 

(44) “Lot” means a land parcel for private Improvements or Commercial 

Facilities and accessory uses, with open spaces. 

(45) “Modification” means changes to a structure’s Construction, flotation, 

anchorage, plumbing, or electrical services. 

(46) “National Electrical Code” or “NEC” means the 2023 Edition, as may be 

amended or restated from time to time by the North Texas Council of Governments, and as adopted 

in this Ordinance. 

(47) “Navigable Passage” means a space at least forty (40) feet wide and ten (10) 

feet deep for watercraft passage. 

(48) “NFPA” means the National Fire Protection Association. 

(49) “Noncomplying Facility” includes (i) any Improvement existing on the 

effective date of this Ordinance that is not permitted in accordance with this Ordinance, and (ii) 

any Improvement that is deemed by the District to be dilapidated, in disrepair, a Nuisance, a 

hindrance to operations, a hazard to navigation, or otherwise fails to comply with specifications of 

this Ordinance.  

(50) “Noncomplying Commercial Facility” includes (i) any Commercial Facility 

existing on the effective date of this Ordinance that is not licensed in accordance with this 

Ordinance, and (ii) any Commercial Facility that is deemed by the District to be dilapidated, in 

disrepair, a Nuisance, a hindrance to operations, a hazard to navigation, or otherwise fails to 

comply with specifications of this Ordinance.  

(51) “Nuisance” means acts impairing water quality or creating hazards, unsafe 

condition, or Breach of the Peace, and includes the definition of “nuisance” under Section 42 of 

the Texas Penal Code. 

(52) “One Hundred Year Flood Elevation” means the flood elevation with a 1% 

annual chance of occurrence as determined by the Federal Emergency Management Agency or 

other appropriate regulatory authority.  

(53) “On-Site Sewage Facility” or “OSSF” means a wastewater treatment 

system, including septic tanks or systems, utilized for the treatment of Sewage, greywater, and 

wastewater on District Land, and includes, but is not limited to, such facilities utilized personally 

by Landowners or commercially by communities or Commercial Facilities.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 7 - 

(54) “On-Site Sewage Facility Permit” or “OSSF Permit” means a permit for the 

expansion, reconstruction, Construction, Modification, alteration, renovation, or addition of an 

On-Site Sewage Facility issued by the District after reviewing an application and confirming 

compliance with this Ordinance.  

(55) “Ordinance” means this General Ordinance of the District adopted by the 

Board of Directors of the District on [___], 2025, as may be amended or restated from time to 

time.  

(56) “Parasail” includes any apparatus for gliding through the air behind a 

Watercraft.  

(57) “Person” includes individuals, partnerships, corporations, associations, or 

any other entity.  

(58) “Personal Floatation Device” or “PFD” means a device for buoyancy in 

water prescribed by the Coast Guard and approved as a Type I, II, III, or V device.  

(59) “Personal Watercraft” means a motor-propelled vessel operated by a Person 

sitting, standing, or kneeling on it. 

(60) “Reservoirs” include all ponds, lakes and earthen embankments, structures, 

dams, levees, machinery, devices and all other appurtenances thereto which are provided by, 

owned, or Controlled by the District, including Lake Bridgeport, Eagle Mountain Lake, Marine 

Creek Lake, Cedar Creek Reservoir, and Richland-Chambers Reservoir.  

(61) “Residential Improvement Permit” means a permit for the expansion, 

reconstruction, Construction, Modification, alteration, renovation, or addition of a non-

Commercial Activity Improvement on District Land or District Water issued by the District after 

reviewing an application and confirming compliance with this Ordinance. 

(62) “Restricted Areas” include areas marked by Warning Signs or Buoys 

restricting activity beyond that point, including all District critical infrastructure, dams, power 

plants, substations, and natural gas facilities, and the District Land surrounding them.  

(63) “Right of Entry Permit” means a permit authorizing entry of Persons on or 

over District Land or District Water on behalf of a third party for activities including, but not 

limited to, investigations, surveying, utility installation/maintenance, Construction, and/or 

Modifications issued by the District after reviewing an application and confirming compliance 

with this Ordinance.  

(64) “Right-of-Way” or “ROW” means portions of District Land which the 

District possesses a legal right to traverse, access, or utilize such area for transportation, utility, or 

other public or private purposes, including within a District pipeline Right-of-Way. 

(65) “Sewage” means water containing organic or inorganic contaminants.  

(66) “Shoreline” means the point where water touches land.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 8 - 

(67) “Special Operating License” means a license for the use of District Land or 

District Water for a specific commercial purpose for a designated period, not to exceed three (3) 

months issued by the District after reviewing an application and confirming compliance with this 

Ordinance. 

(68) “Special Permit” means a permit for the use of District Land or District 

Water for a purpose or activity not specifically addressed in this Ordinance and issued by the 

District after reviewing an application and confirming compliance with this Ordinance.  

(69) “Spill” means an unaccounted release of petroleum, chemicals, or sewage 

exceeding specified amounts. 

(70) “Spillway Elevation” means the contour elevation at which a Reservoir is 

at optimum capacity, and includes, without limitation, the following specific elevation lines, 

measured in feet above mean sea level known as elevation: (a) elevation 322 feet upon the lands 

forming the margins of Cedar Creek Reservoir; (b) elevation 315 feet upon the lands forming the 

margins of Richland Chambers Reservoir; (c) elevation 649.1 feet upon the lands forming the 

margins of Eagle Mountain Lake; (d) elevation 836 feet upon the lands forming the margins of 

Lake Bridgeport; and (e) elevation 687 feet upon the lands forming the margins of Marine Creek 

Lake. 

(71) “Surface Water Sports” include, without limitation, wakeboarding, 

kneeboarding, water skiing, bodyboarding, wakesurfing, tubing, hydrofoiling, wakeskating, 

skimboarding, and similar activities, including at all times a Watercraft is in tow of a Person. 

(72) “Temporary Operating License” means a license for a Commercial Facility 

deemed a Noncompliant Commercial Facility by the District, allowing operation while the 

Commercial Facility is brought back into compliance with this Ordinance.  

(73) “TCEQ” means the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.  

(74) “Toilet Facility” includes a Sewage disposal apparatus.  

(75) “Trespass” includes, but is not limited to, (i) the failure to leave District 

Land or District Water when ordered, (ii) the unauthorized entry into  Restricted Areas, (iii) the 

cutting, removal, or burning of any timber or other natural resource on District Land, and (iv) 

placing equipment, pipes, lines, or other extraction equipment in, under, or upon District Water or 

District Land for the unauthorized taking of District Water or other natural resources.  

(76) “Watercraft” includes any boat, Personal Watercraft, or device for floating 

and/or navigating on water.  

(77) “Wake” means operating a Watercraft to cause waves to crest.  

(78) “Warning Sign” or “Buoy” includes devices used to notify Persons of 

permissible or prohibited activities. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 9 - 

(79) “Waste Control Order” means an order from the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality (TCEQ) designating the District as an authorized agent to regulate on-site 

sewage facilities on a specific reservoir. Such orders incorporate TCEQ rules on abatement or 

prevention of pollution and prevention of injury for on-site sewage disposal systems. 

Section 5.02 In this Ordinance: 

(a) Terms defined in the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa; 

(b) All pronouns and their variations shall refer to the masculine, feminine, 

neuter, singular, or plural, as appropriate to the context; 

(c) The term “include” and its derivatives shall mean “include without 

limitation;” and 

(d) References to statutes or regulations shall refer to those statutes or 

regulations as currently amended, as well as any future amendments or superseding provisions. 

SECTION 6. VIOLATIONS OF OR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS ORDINANCE 

Section 6.01 Any Person who violates or fails to comply with any provision of this 

Ordinance, or the aiding and abetting of either, is guilty of a Class C Misdemeanor. Each twenty-

four (24) hour period of any violation constitutes a separate offense. Upon conviction, a violator 

is subject to punishment by penalty under the Texas Penal Code. In addition, a violator may be 

barred from the use of District Land and District Water. It is a defense to prosecution for a violation 

of this Ordinance that the Person had a current valid permit or license issued by a District Officer 

and was in compliance with the conditions of the permit or license; provided, however, the District 

may enjoin operations and/or void permits or license when actions or activities are in violation of 

the conditions of a permit or license issued by the District. The District may pursue enforcement 

in cooperation with a municipal, state, or federal entity with concurrent jurisdiction or 

independently. 

SECTION 7. APPLICABILITY OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL LAWS, RULES, 

AND REGULATIONS 

Section 7.01 This Ordinance and the terms, provisions, regulations, and requirements 

hereunder apply to all District Land and District Water, except that which is under the primary or 

exclusive control of any local, municipal, state or federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District will enforce all rights and remedies afforded to it under 

this Ordinance and applicable law.  

Section 7.02 The District has adopted a “see something, say something” policy, under 

which the District will report violations of all applicable local, municipal, state or federal laws, 

rules, and regulations. Pursuant to such policy, the District will work with local, municipal, state, 

and federal agencies to ensure compliance with such laws, rules, and regulations and to protect 

District Land and District Water. As part of the District’s policy, the District expects reciprocal 

notifications from local, municipal, state, and federal agencies to protect, preserve, and enhance 

District Land, District Water, and all Texas natural resources.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 10 - 

Section 7.03 All terms and provisions of the Texas Water Safety Act, along with all 

applicable laws, rules, and regulations promulgated by the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department 

pursuant to the Texas Water Safety Act, shall be applicable to District Water and, where 

appropriate, adjacent District Land. Additionally, all appropriate laws, rules, and regulations 

promulgated by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, including the provision of Permits, shall, where 

appropriate, be applicable to District Water and adjacent District Land. Furthermore, all applicable 

laws, rules, and regulations of the TCEQ shall also be applicable to District Water and District 

Land. 

SECTION 8. PERMITTING AND LICENSING 

Section 8.01 Permitting and Licensing Application Procedure. 

(a) This Section 8.01 sets forth the general permit or license application process 

for District permits and licenses, including a Residential Improvement Permit, Commercial 

Construction Permit, Annual Operating License, Temporary Operating License, Special Operating 

License, Event Permit, Right of Entry Permit, Encroachment Permit, and Sewage Facility Permit. 

Sections 8.02 through 8.11, along with the Guidelines attached hereto, provide specific 

requirements related to the permit or license and the application process.  

(b) A permit or license application shall be considered to have been filed on the 

date that it is received by the appropriate District department. District staff shall not accept a permit 

or license application that is incomplete. The appropriate District department shall review 

applications within a reasonable amount of time of receipt and declare the application either 

accepted for consideration or rejected. In the event the permit or license application is rejected, the 

applicant will be required to submit a new application for any further consideration. Acceptance 

of an application during the administrative review phase only indicates that the permit or license 

application contains all necessary information for consideration. Such acceptance is unrelated to 

the outcomes of subsequent phases of the application process.  

(c) The appropriate District department shall notify the applicant that their 

permit or license application has been accepted. Accepted applications shall proceed to the 

technical review phase. 

(d) District staff shall commence a technical review of a permit or license 

application after it is deemed administratively accepted. District staff shall consider any 

information submitted in the application. During the technical review phase, District staff shall 

notify the applicant of any additional information necessary to complete the review. The applicant 

shall provide the requested information as requested by District staff within the time period 

prescribed in the applicable Guideline, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the District. Once 

the applicant has submitted all required information, the District staff shall complete the technical 

review within a reasonable amount of time depending on the complexity of the request. 

(e) If the applicant fails to provide further information as requested by District 

staff within the prescribed time period, unless the time period is extended in writing by District 

staff, the permit or license application shall be deemed technically incomplete and rejected. There 

shall be no restriction on subsequent permit or license applications. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 11 - 

(f) Upon a determination that an application for a permit or license application 

is technically approved, a final permit decision shall be made in accordance with Section 8.01(i).  

(g) A permit or license application may be amended at any time prior to the 

issuance of a permit or license application for non-substantive changes. Non-substantive changes 

include slight alterations that do not change the size, footprint, or location of the permitted facility. 

Substantive changes may be proposed prior to the completion of the technical review phase. 

However, after completion of the technical review phase, substantive changes shall require a new 

permit or license application.   

(h) A permit or license application may be withdrawn at any time prior to the 

issuance of a permit or license. An applicant may request an extension of any deadline during the 

administrative review or technical review phases. Extension requests must be in writing and shall 

explain in detail the need for additional time. Such requests shall be subject to written approval by 

the District. 

(i) Upon completion of the technical review, District staff shall coordinate any 

necessary changes with the applicant and make a determination to approve, approve in part, or 

deny the permit or license application. If District staff approves the permit or license application 

in full or approves the permit or license application in part, District staff shall prepare and deliver 

the permit or license, either by mail or electronic transmission, to the applicant, which may include 

any conditions that the District deems appropriate. If District staff denies the permit or license 

application, District staff shall issue a letter notifying the applicant that the permit has been denied. 

The applicant shall have the time period prescribed in the applicable Guideline, unless otherwise 

authorized in writing by the District, to provide written comments, if any, to District staff. District 

staff shall then consider applicant’s comments and within a reasonable amount of time either issue 

a permit or license or reaffirm denial of such permit or license. A copy of the executed permit or 

license application shall be delivered, either by mail or electronic transmission, to the applicant.   

(j) The permittee’s rights to Construct, Modify, expand, or utilize the facility is 

limited by the terms and conditions set forth in the permit or license application.  

(k) Permits or license for activities on District Land or District Water will be 

issued only when such activities align with the public’s best interest, taking into account public 

safety, public access, environmental quality, navigational safety, and recreational enjoyment. 

Permits will not be granted if the proposed activity significantly impairs the shared use of District 

Water or District Land, contributes to environmental degradation, creates hazards to public safety, 

or provides exclusive benefits to any individual or entity at the expense of the general public. All 

proposed activities requiring permits or licenses will be assessed for their cumulative impact on 

the natural resources and the equitable use by the broader community of District Land and District 

Water. 

Section 8.02 Residential Improvement Permit.  

(a) A Residential Improvement Permit is required before Constructing new 

Improvements or Modifying existing Improvements on District Land or District Water. A 

Residential Improvement Permit is always needed for any Modification that changes the square 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 12 - 

footage of an existing Improvement. Residential Improvements are regulated by this Ordinance 

and the District’s Residential Improvement Permit Guidelines, which is incorporated herein by 

reference as if fully set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to 

time. 

(b) Only after compliance with this Section 8.02 and the Residential 

Improvement Permit Guidelines attached hereto may a Residential Improvement Permit be issued. 

The District may, in its sole and absolute discretion, waive the Residential Improvement Permit 

requirement if the proposed changes are deemed insignificant. Residential Improvement Permits 

are non-transferable and must be prominently displayed at the Construction site for which it was 

issued.  

(c) The permittee’s rights to Construct, Modify, expand, or utilize the facility is 

limited by the terms and conditions set forth in the Residential Improvement Permit.  

(d) If Construction cannot be completed within the time limits specified in the 

Residential Improvement Permit Guideline, the permittee may request an extension. Any 

extension, for a time period prescribed by the District following the expiration of the time limit set 

forth in the Residential Improvement Permit, may be granted at the sole discretion of the District. 

If an extension fee applies as set forth in the Guidelines, it must be paid before an extension may 

be granted. If an extension is granted and the applicant fails to complete Construction of the facility 

within the extended timeframe, then the Residential Improvement Permit shall be cancelled. If the 

applicant still desires to obtain a Residential Improvement Permit, the applicant shall be required 

to submit a new application and restart the process. 

Section 8.03 Commercial Construction Permit. 

(a) A Commercial Construction Permit is required before Constructing new 

Commercial Facilities or expanding, Modifying, removing, or reconstructing existing Commercial 

Facilities on District Land or District Water. A Commercial Construction Permit is always needed 

for any Modification that changes the square footage of a Commercial Facility or any Construction 

requiring a pump-out facility. Construction or Modification of a Commercial Facility is regulated 

by this Ordinance and the District’s Commercial Construction Permit Guidelines, which is 

incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be 

amended from time to time. 

(b) Only after compliance with this Section 8.03 and the Commercial 

Construction Permit Guidelines may a Commercial Construction Permit be issued. The 

Commercial Construction Permit Guidelines will provide details on the Administrative Review, 

Public Notice, Technical Review, and Final Approval process for obtaining a Commercial 

Construction Permit. Throughout the process, the Commercial Construction Permit will be 

reviewed for compliance with this Ordinance and the Commercial Construction Permit Guidelines.   

(c) The District may, in its sole and absolute discretion, waive the Commercial 

Construction Permit requirement if the proposed changes are deemed insignificant. Commercial 

Construction Permits are non-transferable and must be prominently displayed at the Construction 

site for which it was issued.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 13 - 

Section 8.04 Annual Commercial Operating License.  

(a) An Annual Operating License is required to operate a Commercial Facility 

on District Land or District Water. No Commercial Facility may operate on District Land or 

District Water without an Annual Operating License issued by the District. Commercial Activities 

are regulated by this Ordinance, the District’s Commercial Activity Guidelines, and the District’s 

Commercial Operating License Guidelines, each of which is incorporated herein by reference as 

if fully set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to time.  

(b) The District may only issue the Annual Operating License after: 

(1) Reviewing and processing the completed application in accordance 

with the Commercial Operating Guidelines attached hereto; 

(2) Inspecting the Commercial Facilities for compliance with this 

Ordinance; and 

(3) Receiving the required fee. 

(c) An Annual Operating License shall be renewed annually.  

(d) The owner’s right to operate the Commercial Facility is limited by the terms 

and conditions set forth in the Annual Operating License. 

(e) Commercial Facilities must be clean, attractive, and maintain operational 

safety, as determined by the District in its sole and absolute discretion. Noncompliant Commercial 

Facilities will be classified accordingly and will be subject to the requirements of Section 8.05. 

Section 8.05 Temporary Commercial Operating License. 

(a) Noncompliant Commercial Facilities must obtain a Temporary Operating 

License within thirty (30) days of notification by the District of the Commercial Facility being 

deemed a Noncompliant Commercial Facility. Commercial Activities are regulated by this 

Ordinance, the District’s Commercial Activity Guidelines, and the District’s Commercial 

Operating License Guidelines, each of which is incorporated herein by reference as if fully set 

forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to time. 

(b) The District may only issue the Temporary Operating License after:  

(1) Reviewing and processing the completed application in accordance 

with the Commercial Operating License Guidelines attached hereto; and 

(2) Receiving the required fee.  

(c) The owner’s right to operate the Commercial Facility is limited by the terms 

and conditions set forth in the Temporary Operating License. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 14 - 

(d) The Temporary Operating License is valid for a period set by the District, 

not to exceed one (1) year, to allow for necessary repairs. The District may renew the Temporary 

Operating License if the facility owner is making reasonable progress toward compliance. 

Section 8.06 Special Commercial Operating License.   

(a) A Special Operating License is required to operate a Commercial Activity 

on District Land or District Water. The Special Operating License is for Commercial Activities 

that will operate for a designated period, not to exceed three (3) months. No Commercial Activity 

may operate on District Land or District Water without a license issued by the District. Commercial 

Activities are regulated by this Ordinance, the District’s Commercial Activity Guidelines, and the 

District’s Commercial Operating License Guidelines, each of which is incorporated herein by 

reference as if fully set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to 

time.  

(b) The District may only issue the Special Operating License after: 

(1) Reviewing and processing the completed application in accordance 

with the Commercial Operating License Guidelines attached hereto; 

(2) Inspecting the Commercial Facilities for compliance with this 

Ordinance; and 

(3) Receiving the required fee. 

(c) The Special Operating License is valid for a designated period, not to 

exceed three (3) months. If the Commercial Activity is planned or reasonably expected to continue 

for longer than three (3) months, an Annual Operating License is required.  

(d) The owner’s right to operate the Commercial Facility is limited by the terms 

and conditions set forth in the Special Operating License. 

(e) Commercial Facilities must be clean, attractive, and maintain operational 

safety, as determined by the District in its sole and absolute discretion. Noncompliant Commercial 

Facilities will be classified accordingly and will be subject to the requirements of Section 8.05. 

Section 8.07 Event Permit. 

(a) An Event Permit is required for any Event on District Land, District Water, 

and/or District Parks. Events are regulated by this Ordinance and the District’s Event Permit 

Guidelines, which is incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein, as currently in 

effect and as it may be amended from time to time. The District Manager may, in its sole discretion, 

designate a particular site for any Event. The District may only issue an Event Permit after:  

(1) Reviewing and processing the completed application in accordance 

with Section 8.01; and 

(2) Receiving the required fee.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 15 - 

(b) The permittee must have the Event Permit posted or in their possession at 

all times during the Event. The permittee’s rights to host the Event is limited by the terms and 

conditions set forth in the Event Permit. 

Section 8.08 Right of Entry Permit. 

(a) A Right of Entry Permit is required for any Person entering District Land, 

District Water, and/or District Parks on behalf of a third party for activities such as investigations, 

surveying, utility installation/maintenance, Construction, and/or Modifications. The Right of Entry 

Permit requirement ensures all activities conducted on District Land or District Water are done in 

compliance with this Ordinance and any property rights held by the District, as applicable. Entry 

on or over District Land, District Water, or District Parks is regulated by the District, this 

Ordinance, and the District’s Right of Entry Permit Guidelines, which is incorporated herein by 

reference as if fully set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to 

time. The District may only issue a Right of Entry Permit after reviewing and processing the 

completed application in accordance with Section 8.01.  

(b) The permittee must have the Right of Entry Permit posted or in their 

possession at all times during the conduct of the permitted activities. Failure to do so may result 

in revocation of the Right of Entry Permit and cessation of activities.  

(c) The rights of the permittee are limited by the terms and conditions set forth 

in the Right of Entry Permit.  

Section 8.09 Encroachment Permit. 

(a) An Encroachment Permit is required before Constructing new 

Improvements or Commercial Facilities, or Modifying existing Improvements or Commercial 

Facilities, within the limits of any Right-of-Way located on District Land or District Water, 

including pipeline Right-of-Ways. Encroachments are regulated by this Ordinance and the 

District’s Encroachment Permit Guidelines, which is incorporated herein by reference as if fully 

set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to time. The District 

may issue Encroachment Permits in its sole and absolute discretion.  

(b) Only after compliance with this Section 8.09 and the Encroachment Permit 

Guidelines may an Encroachment Permit be issued. The Encroachment Permit Guidelines will 

provide details on the application process.  

(c) The District reserves the right to approve or deny, in its sole and absolute 

discretion, any Encroachment Permit application.  

Section 8.10 On-Site Sewage Facility Permit. 

(a) An OSSF Permit is required before Constructing new, or Modifying 

existing, OSSFs on lands subject to the District’s OSSF Waste Control Order. OSSFs are regulated 

by this Ordinance and the District’s OSSF Permit Guidelines, which is incorporated herein by 

reference as if fully set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to 

time. The District may issue OSSF Permits in its sole and absolute discretion.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 16 - 

(b) Only after compliance with this Section 8.10 and the OSSF Permit 

Guidelines may an OSSF Permit be issued. The OSSF Permit Guidelines will provide details on 

the application process and requirements.  

(c) A permit is required for constructing or placing any container or OSSF on 

lands subject to the District’s OSSF Permit Guidelines. A non-refundable permit application fee is 

required before Construction. The permit is valid for one (1) year from the date of issuance. If final 

inspection is not completed to the District’s satisfaction within such time, the permit will terminate, 

and a new application with all appropriate fees and documents must be submitted. 

(d) The District reserves the right to approve or deny, in its sole and absolute 

discretion, any OSSF Permit application. 

(e) Failure to repair a malfunctioning OSSF, or to take adequate measures to 

abate an immediate health hazard caused by such a system, after notice from the District, is a 

violation of this Ordinance. 

Section 8.11 Special Permit. A Special Permit is required for activities not 

specifically addressed in this Ordinance but which involve the private or commercial use of 

District Land or District Water. To obtain a Special Permit, a Persons should submit an application 

pursuant to and in accordance with the Event Permit Guidelines, which shall apply to the Special 

Permit application process. The District may only issue a Special Permit after reviewing and 

processing the completed application in accordance with Section 8.01.  

Section 8.12 Permit and License Fees. 

(a) The District will periodically set fees for permits and licenses obtained for 

use of District Land or District Water. These fees are set to cover the District’s administrative costs. 

Fees are as set forth in the appropriate permit or license Guidelines. 

(b) Permit or license fees set by the District are in addition to and separate from 

any lease fees for District Land where a Commercial Facility is located. 

(c) All fees must be paid before a permit or license is issued, unless a written 

alternative payment schedule is agreed upon. 

(d) The District may change the amount of fees at any time in their sole and 

absolute discretion. Fee increases by the District take effect on March 1 each year, with permittees 

and licensees notified by August 1 of the previous year. The amount of such fees shall be as set 

forth in the Guidelines, as amended from time to time.  

Section 8.13 Permit and License Guidelines.  The District’s Board of Directors may 

consider updates to the Guidelines every two (2) years. The Guidelines may be amended by the 

District or its representatives from time to time without notice. Always check the District’s website 

or the applicable District department for the most recent version of the Guidelines.  



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 17 - 

SECTION 9. PERMIT AND LICENSE ENFORCEMENT AND COMPLIANCE 

Section 9.01 A Person’s application for and acceptance of any permit or license 

constitutes the permittee’s acceptance of the provisions of this Ordinance.  

Section 9.02 The issuance of any permit or license is at the sole discretion of the 

District. The District assumes no responsibility or liability for the issuance of any permit or license, 

or the design of Improvements or Commercial Facilities. All Improvements and Commercial 

Facilities shall be constructed and maintained at the sole risk and expense of the Person 

constructing them. 

Section 9.03 Any wharf, dock, boathouse, or similar structure deemed by the District 

a Noncomplying Facility or abandoned must be repaired by and at the expense of the owner to 

meet District standards, or the permit may be revoked, and the structure removed at the owner’s 

expense.  

Section 9.04 Any raw water intake for purposes other than (1) irrigating a Shoreline 

single-family residence, or (2) fish cleaning stations, requires a Residential Improvement Permit 

and water use contract with the District. 

Section 9.05 Fuel Facilities are not allowed on any Non-Commercial Facilities or 

Watercraft. 

Section 9.06 Failure to comply with permit or license terms constitutes a Breach of 

License Regulations and may result in permit or license revocation and penalties in accordance 

with this Section 9. The District will notify the permittee of non-compliance, allowing at least five 

(5) days to comply before revocation. The District may charge fees for inspection time if 

Construction is non-compliant. The District reserves the right to remove Improvements or 

Commercial Facilities at the owner’s expense. 

Section 9.07 The General Manager may adopt or amend rules governing the 

Construction or Maintenance of Improvements on District Land or District Water. 

Section 9.08 Any Improvement existing on the effective date of this Ordinance that 

is not permitted in accordance with this Ordinance will be designated as a Noncomplying Facility. 

Noncomplying Facilities are subject to the following: 

(a) A Noncomplying Facility may not be enlarged or altered without the 

appropriate permit. Ordinary maintenance and repairs are permitted without a permit; 

(b) If a Noncomplying Facility requires substantial replacement, it cannot be 

reconstructed without the appropriate permit. Whether or not the Noncomplying Facility needs 

substantial replacement or ordinary maintenance and repairs is subject to determination by the 

District Manager, in their sole and absolute discretion;  

(c) If a Noncomplying Facility is moved, it must be repaired to comply with 

this Ordinance; and 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 18 - 

(d) If a Noncomplying Facility becomes a hindrance, Nuisance, or hazard, the 

owner must remove it at the owner’s expense. If the owner fails to do so, the District may remove 

it and recover costs from the owner. 

(e) The District is not liable for the removal of any Noncomplying Facility.  

Section 9.09 Inspections.  To ensure compliance with the permitting and licensure 

requirements set forth under Section 8, District Inspectors will: 

(a) Inspect the Commercial Facility before issuing an Annual Operating 

License, Temporary Operating License, or Special Operating License; 

(b) Before issuance, and at any time after the issuance, of a Commercial 

Construction Permit or Residential Improvement Permit; and 

(c) Inspect Improvements and Commercial Facilities from time to time without 

prior notice during normal business hours. 

Section 9.10 Suspension or Revocation of Permits and Licenses. 

(a) A license or permit issued by the District may be suspended or revoked if: 

(1) It was issued based on incorrect information; 

(2) The Improvement, Commercial Facility, or activity violates this 

Ordinance or any law; 

(3) Required fees are unpaid; 

(4) Entry by a District Inspector is denied; 

(5) Work or operations continue after a Stop Work Order; 

(6) Illegal or offensive activities occur on the premises; 

(7) Applicable insurance requirements are not maintained; or 

(8) Construction does not comply with District approved plans, this 

Ordinance, or applicable building code(s). 

(b) If Construction is not compliant, the District will notify the owner, operator, 

or contractor, who will have five (5) business days to comply before fees are charged or the 

Commercial Construction Permit is revoked in accordance with Section 9.11(c).  

(c) If a license or permit is suspended or revoked, the licensee or permittee can 

appeal to the District by notifying the General Manager within fourteen (14) calendar days of the 

decision. The District will address the appeal within thirty (30) calendar days and may consider 

any information pertaining to the license or permit provided by the licensee or permittee. After 

consideration, the District’s decision on the revocation is final and not appealable. If the license or 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 19 - 

permit is revoked, the facility must be removed from District Land or District Water by the owner, 

or the District may remove such facility at the owner’s expense without liability to the owner. 

(d) The District may waive certain requirements of this Ordinance in its sole 

and absolute discretion. 

(e) The District may charge fees for additional District Inspector review time. 

Such fees shall be as set forth in the Guidelines.  

Section 9.11 District’s Right to Entry, Inspection, and Information.  

(a) To conduct inspections or enforce this Ordinance, the District Inspector or 

its authorized representatives may enter any part of a Commercial Facility during normal business 

hours, presenting credentials and requesting entry. They may use any boat ramp or docking service 

without charge. Denying access can lead to immediate revocation of any District-issued license or 

permit. 

(b) Commercial Facilities must provide names and addresses of all boat storage 

lessees to the District upon request. 

Section 9.12 Stop Work Order.  If Construction work violates this Ordinance, District 

Inspectors may issue a written Stop Work Order to those involved. Failure to comply can result in 

immediate revocation of any District-issued license or permit. 

Section 9.13 Improperly Permitted or Un-Permitted Construction.  Construction or 

Modification of a Commercial Facility or Residential Improvement without a properly issued and 

valid permit, or continuing such Construction after a Stop Work Order, is a violation of this 

Ordinance subject to enforcement by the District. Such Person committing any such Construction 

violation is guilty of a Class C Misdemeanor and subject to enforcement by District Officers under 

Section 6 of this Ordinance. 

Section 9.14 Noncomplying, Dilapidated, Abandoned, or Nuisance Commercial 

Facilities. 

(a) Noncomplying Commercial Facilities must obtain a Temporary Operating 

Permit in accordance with Section 8.05 of this Ordinance.  

(b) Notwithstanding any provision in this Ordinance, the District has the sole 

discretion to deny or revoke a Commercial Facility’s Annual Operating License if, after inspection, 

the District determines that:  

(1) The Commercial Facility is a Noncomplying Commercial Facility;  

(2) That the Commercial Facility permit would cause or contribute to 

unsafe Watercraft traffic or congestion on District Waters; or 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 20 - 

(3) That the applicant or owner of the proposed Commercial Facility 

has not shown sufficient financial ability to complete or operate the facility satisfactorily 

or in compliance with the ordinance or applicable law. 

(c) Any Commercial Facility deemed a Noncomplying Commercial Facility 

must be repaired by the owner to comply with this Ordinance, or it will be demolished or removed 

by the District at the facility owner’s expense. The District shall have no liability to the owner for 

the removal of any such facility. 

SECTION 10. DESIGNATION OF USE ON DISTRICT LAND OR DISTRICT 

WATER 

Section 10.01 Designation of Use. 

(a) The General Manager of the District is authorized to designate: 

(1) Areas of a Reservoir exclusively for swimming, fishing, water 

skiing, operation of Watercraft, or a combination of such activities; 

(2) Areas where the operation of certain Watercraft is prohibited or 

restricted, or where speed is restricted; 

(3) Areas of District Land exclusively for walking, running, hiking, 

biking, camping, and/or launching Watercraft; 

(4) Areas that restrict or allow the use of livestock, horses, or pets (other 

than service animals); 

(5) Areas that restrict the operation, use, or parking of vehicles; 

(6) District Parks;  

(7) The hours of use for specific venues; 

(8) Areas for fire use, outdoor cooking, or where such activities are 

prohibited; 

(9) Areas where other activities are prohibited for safety, operational, 

sanitary, or other reasons; and 

(10) Restricted Areas, Forbidden Zones, and Facilities. 

(b) The location of such areas shall be clearly marked by Warning Signs or 

Buoys in accordance with Title 31, Chapter 55, Subchapter G of the Texas Administrative Code, 

with signs indicating the boundaries, limits, and purposes of such designations. No Person shall 

engage in any activity in violation of these designated boundaries, limits, or purposes. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 21 - 

(c) This Section 9 does not apply to Watercraft owned or operated by the 

District, the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department, or any other governmental agency performing 

official duties. 

(d) The General Manager is also authorized to designate areas on or around the 

Reservoirs or other District Water or District Land for public waterfowl hunting. If the General 

Manager so designates hunting areas, a map showing such areas will be available at the appropriate 

District department or on the District’s website. 

Section 10.02 Regulation of Activities In, On, Upon, or Adjacent to District Land or 

District Water. 

(a) No Person may possess or transport any exotic aquatic plant or animal, 

whether or not listed as harmful or potentially harmful by the Texas Parks and Wildlife 

Department, to, from, in, or onto any District Water or District Land. This includes, but is not 

limited to, plants such as hydrilla, water hyacinth, and giant salvinia; fish such as tilapia and Asian 

carps (including grass, silver, and bighead carp); and zebra mussels. 

(b) All Persons leaving or approaching any District Water must drain all water 

from their Watercraft and onboard receptacles, including live wells, bilges, motors, and any other 

receptacles or water-intake systems that come into contact with the water. No Watercraft may be 

placed in or on any District Water unless the Watercraft and its trailer have been cleaned, drained, 

and rinsed, and either dried completely for at least five (5) days or thoroughly washed with hot (at 

least 140 degrees Fahrenheit), soapy water using a high-pressure washer. However, a Watercraft 

and its associated trailer used in a particular Reservoir may be used in that same Reservoir without 

being dried or washed as provided above. A Watercraft and its trailer may not be cleaned in or on 

any District Water or District Land following use in non-District reservoirs. 

(c) No Person who owns, controls, or operates property along the Shoreline of 

any District Water may cause vegetation (including trees), soil, rocks, Improvements (including 

retaining walls), or other materials to fall, slide, or otherwise enter District Water. However, natural 

shoreline erosion that is not caused by, or the result of, non-natural Improvements or landscaping 

installed by the Landowner shall not constitute a violation of this Ordinance. Such Persons must 

remove any such material from District Water immediately, and no later than seven (7) days after 

the District requests removal, at such Persons sole cost, risk, and expense. If they fail to do so, the 

District may remove the material, and the Person shall be liable to the District for the cost. The 

District reserves discretion to enforce in a civil legal proceeding or under Section 6.  

(d) No Person shall operate, or cause to be operated, a Drone over any District 

Land or District Water that contains any of the following: 

(1) A District Facility; 

(2) A water intake structure or facility for the transfer or conveyance of 

water; 

(3) A pump station and related facilities; 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 22 - 

(4) A water storage tank; 

(5) A balancing or other Reservoir office; 

(6) A pipeline; 

(7) A dam, spillway, or emergency spillway; 

(8) A supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) facility; 

(9) Communications facilities, including cellular or radio towers; 

(10) A District law enforcement facility; or 

(11) Any facilities defined as “critical infrastructure” under Chapter 423 

of the Texas Government Code or similar state or federal law. 

(e) The General Manager is authorized to adopt and amend rules and 

regulations for the installation, operation, maintenance, and removal of Buoys on District Waters. 

SECTION 11. ABANDONMENT OF PERSONAL PROPERTY  

Section 11.01 No Person shall abandon personal property on District Land or District 

Water. 

Section 11.02 If personal property, including any motor vehicle, is left unattended for 

more than forty-eight (48) hours on any District Land or District Waters, it shall be deemed 

abandoned. This rule does not apply to facilities properly permitted under Section 8. 

Section 11.03 Abandoned personal property may be impounded by the District and 

held in its custody, or, at the District’s discretion, by another governmental or private entity. 

Abandoned property may be reclaimed by paying (a) fees imposed by the entity holding the 

property, and (b) all other costs incurred by the District in recovering and storing the property. 

Section 11.04 Abandoned personal property impounded under this Section 11 that is 

not reclaimed within ninety (90) days from the date of impoundment may be sold, released, or 

otherwise disposed of by the District or another governmental entity in compliance with applicable 

law, including Chapter 683 of the Texas Transportation Code, without the District being liable to 

the owner. The District or entity may do so at its discretion, with or without notice. 

SECTION 12. DESTRUCTION OF DISTRICT PROPERTY 

Section 12.01 It is unlawful to destroy, damage, deface, remove, render inefficient, or 

relocate any District property, facilities, Improvements, or installations—such as Warning Signs, 

Buoys, bollards, signs, railings, lights, fencing, or warning devices—on District Land or District 

Water. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 23 - 

SECTION 13. MODIFICATION OF DISTRICT LAND OR DISTRICT WATER, 

DREDGING, AND FILLING 

Section 13.01 Any modification of the natural topography, terrain, or surface 

vegetation of District Land or District Waters, including filling or excavation, is prohibited unless 

plans and specifications have been approved by the District and authorized by a written permit or 

other authorization from the General Manager. If modifications are made contrary to the approved 

plans, the modifier may be required to restore the District Land or District Waters to their original 

condition at their own cost, risk, and expense. The District assumes no responsibility or liability 

for the plans, design, or modifications approved or authorized. 

SECTION 14. OBSTRUCTION OF NAVIGATION AND WATER FLOW 

Section 14.01 No Person shall anchor, construct, or maintain any Watercraft or floating 

or fixed structure on or in the District Water that prevents, impedes, or interferes with safe 

navigation or access to District Water by the public. No Person shall construct or maintain in the 

District Water any fence, pump, pipe, or similar device that changes the normal movement of water 

and/or wind currents or otherwise interferes with the normal movement of water and floating 

debris. 

Section 14.02 All floating or fixed structures of any type on the District Water shall be 

adequately marked or lighted so as not to create a safety hazard for the public. 

SECTION 15. COMMERCIAL ACTIVITIES 

Section 15.01 General.  All Commercial Activities on District Water or District Land 

are regulated by this Ordinance and the Commercial Activities Guidelines, which is incorporated 

herein by reference as if fully set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from 

time to time, and require proper permitting or licensure in accordance with Section 8. Some 

Commercial Activities may require an additional or separate operating permit due to their nature. 

The issuance of any additional or separate permit, and the fee charged, will be at the sole discretion 

of the General Manager. 

SECTION 16. RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 

Section 16.01 The General Manager is authorized to adopt and amend rules and 

regulations for all District recreational facilities, including trails and trailheads on District Parks. 

Section 16.02 In addition to the rules and regulations for District Land set out in this 

Ordinance, the following rules shall apply to District Parks: 

(a) District Parks are open from thirty (30) minutes before sunrise until thirty 

(30) minutes after sunset. Outside of this time, District Parks will be closed, and no Persons may 

enter into or remain in District Parks, unless with written permission from the General Manager 

or the time has been extended or reduced by order of the General Manager; 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 24 - 

(b) No Person under the age of sixteen (16) is allowed in District Parks unless 

accompanied by a competent adult over the age of eighteen (18). Persons are responsible for their 

minor children at all times while in or on District Parks; 

(c) Camping in District Parks is prohibited except with a Special Permit; 

(d) District Officers may order any Person to leave District Parks. Failure to 

comply may result in the Person being charged with Trespass; and 

(e) No Person may disturb, remove, or damage any vegetation or wildlife 

within District Parks, this includes cutting, picking, or uprooting plants and feeding or harassing 

wildlife.   

SECTION 17. EVENTS 

Section 17.01 Events with less than 100 Persons will be considered a social gathering 

and do not require a permit issued by the District. However, organizers of such Events are required 

to provide notice to the District of such Event. The District Manager may, in its sole discretion, 

designate a particular site for any Event.  

Section 17.02 Events with greater than 100 Persons, whether or not considered a 

Commercial Activity, must submit an application to the District for an Event Permit in accordance 

with Section 8.07. The District Manager may, in its sole discretion, designate a particular site for 

any Event. 

SECTION 18. ADVERTISEMENTS  

Section 18.01 No private or commercial notices, signs, or advertisements shall be 

placed on or in District Land or District Water without the prior written permission of the General 

Manager.   

SECTION 19. BOATING, VESSELS, AND WATERCRAFT 

Section 19.01 Watercraft on District Waters must be equipped and operated in 

accordance with all applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations, as may be amended 

from time to time, including, without limitation, the following:  

(a) Inland Rules; 

(b) Texas Water Safety Act, Chapter 31; 

(c) Texas Parks and Wildlife Code;  

(d) Texas Water Code, Title 2, Chapter 26; and  

(e) Texas Administrative Code, Title 30, Chapter 321, Subchapter A. 

Section 19.02 Additional rules for operating Watercraft on District Waters include: 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 25 - 

(a) Watercraft deemed unseaworthy by the District or other authorities cannot 

operate on District Waters. The District is not responsible for the condition or operation of any 

Watercraft. All Watercraft must be properly documented by the United States. 

(b) Motors or engines on Watercraft must have an efficient muffler to prevent 

excessive noise and smoke. Outboard motors must discharge exhaust gases underwater or be 

muffled to reduce noise. Inboard motors must condense and silence exhaust gases with water 

circulation. No Watercraft may be operated in a manner that creates a Nuisance. All Watercraft 

must be compliant with EPA standards to prevent leaks of Hazardous Materials in or on District 

Waters and District Land.  

(c) Watercraft with a Toilet Facility must: (1) receive and pass inspection by 

the District Manager, (2) display at all times an inspection decal issued by the District, and (3) pay 

any fees assessed by the District Manager for such inspection and decal. Inspections occur at 

designated times and places, with notice given to owners. Operating without a valid decal after the 

inspection period is a violation. A Justice of the Peace may dismiss charges for expired decals if 

corrected before the hearing. Transferring decals between Watercraft without permission is strictly 

prohibited. 

(d) No Sewage from Watercraft Toilet Facilities may be emptied into District 

Waters. Toilet Facilities must have a holding tank for Sewage removal to approved onshore 

facilities, constructed to withstand corrosion and minimize rupture risk, and properly vented. 

(e) Airboats are prohibited in or on District Waters without a Special Permit 

from the General Manager. 

(f) Watercraft cannot serve as an Abode without Special Permit from the 

General Manager. 

(g) Use of sirens or flashing lights by Watercraft is prohibited, except for those 

operated by District Officers or law enforcement. 

(h) Watercraft cannot tow Parasails on District Waters without a Special Permit. 

(i) Persons cannot position themselves to be hanging or dangling over the bow, 

stern, or sides of a moving Watercraft. 

(j) Operators must obey all Wake and Warning Signs and Buoys. 

(k) Watercraft must not exceed Headway Speed under bridges or overpasses. 

(l) Watercraft must stay at least 100 feet from Facilities, Restricted Areas, and 

Forbidden Zones. 

(m) Watercraft must stay at least 100 feet from other Watercraft at greater than 

Headway Speed. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 26 - 

(n) Watercraft must stay at least 200 feet from swimming areas, boathouses, 

docks, fishermen, Shorelines, or Buoy-marked lines, except for launching and loading, at greater 

than Headway Speed. 

(o) No Person shall moor Watercraft to Buoys closer than 100 feet to 

Shorelines, docks, or boathouses, or to Buoys marked “non-anchor.” 

(p) Watercraft must be fastened to an anchorage or removed from the water to 

prevent drifting. 

(q) Abandoned or adrift Watercraft will be taken by the District, which will 

have a lien for fees and expenses incurred by the District in recovering such Watercraft. Watercraft 

left unattended for more than thirty-six (36) hours are considered abandoned, except when properly 

secured at permitted facilities. Abandoned Watercraft will be disposed of according to Chapter 683 

of the Texas Transportation Code. This Section 19.02(q) does not apply to Watercraft properly 

secured at a permitted marina, pier, dock, boathouse, or other properly permitted facility. 

SECTION 20. SURFACE WATER SPORTS AND SIMILAR ACTIVITIES 

Section 20.01 Watercraft engaging in Surface Water Sports at greater than Headway 

Speed, as well as such Person engaging or participating in the Surface Water Sport, must not 

approach closer than 200 feet to docks, Improvements, Facilities, swimming areas, other 

Watercraft, fishermen, or the Shoreline. 

Section 20.02 The use of Watercraft and engagement of Surface Water Sports are not 

permitted on Marine Creek Lake except in designated areas designated by the General Manager of 

the District. 

Section 20.03 All Persons riding or operating Watercraft or participating in Surface 

Water Sports on District Water must comply with state laws regarding Personal Floatation Devices 

(PFDs). 

Section 20.04 All Surface Water Sports, including, but not limited to, windsurfing, 

wing foiling, canoeing, kayaking, paddleboarding, jet boarding, and similar activities must comply 

with this Ordinance.  

SECTION 21. WARNING SIGNS AND BUOYS 

Section 21.01 No Persons other than the District Manager, District Officers, and/or its 

employees performing their duties shall place, alter, move, or remove Warning Signs, Buoys, or 

markers located on District Water. 

SECTION 22. DIVING, SWIMMING   

Section 22.01 No Person is permitted to wade, swim, dive, snorkel, or participate in 

similar activities within 100 feet of Watercraft launching areas in District Waters, except within 

Buoyed swimming areas. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 27 - 

Section 22.02 No Person wading, swimming, diving, or snorkeling in District Waters 

shall be more than 100 feet from the Shoreline or a Watercraft, except within Buoyed swimming 

areas. 

Section 22.03 Any Person wading, swimming, diving, or snorkeling in District Waters 

must comply with all Warning Signs, Buoys, and other District rules or regulations applicable to 

the water or the District park or land where they entered. 

SECTION 23. FIREARMS, OTHER WEAPONS, EXPLOSIVES, AND 

FIREWORKS  

Section 23.01 Except as provided for shotguns and bow fishing by the Texas Parks and 

Wildlife Department approved equipment, no Person may shoot, fire, or discharge a firearm, 

explosive device, fireworks, pellet gun, BB gun, compound bow, crossbow, longbow, slingshot, or 

any other impact device in, on, across, or along any District Land or District Waters, except by 

Special Permit issued by the General Manager of the District. 

Section 23.02 The unauthorized or illegal use of firearms, fireworks, or explosives of 

any type are prohibited on District Water and District Land. 

Section 23.03 Commercial fireworks may be discharged only by Special Permit or 

written authorization from the General Manager. Other fireworks must not be used dangerously 

over District Land or District Water. 

Section 23.04 This Section 23 does not apply to District Peace Officers or 

representatives of the District or the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department in the discharge of their 

official duties. 

SECTION 24. FISHING 

Section 24.01 All federal and state laws, as well as all rules and regulations established 

by the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department regarding fishing, apply to District Waters. 

SECTION 25. HUNTING 

Section 25.01 No hunting is allowed on District Land and District Water without the 

prior written permission of the General Manager.  

Section 25.02 All federal and state laws, as well as all rules and regulations established 

by the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department regarding hunting, shall apply to District Land and 

District Waters.   

Section 25.03 The use of shotguns is only allowed when used in the hunting of 

waterfowl during the season open to such hunting and only upon District Land and District Waters 

expressly designated for such public hunting by the District and located below the Spillway 

Elevation at each Reservoir.  When the use of shotguns is allowed, only steel shot may be used. 

Lead shot is prohibited at all times on any District Land and District Water.   



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 28 - 

SECTION 26. MOTOR VEHICLES 

Section 26.01 All motor vehicles operating on District Land shall be confined to 

designated roads and parking areas, except in designated special-use areas. All motor vehicles 

operated on District Land shall be licensed for street use and operated by Persons with valid 

driver’s licenses. No motor vehicles may be operated below the conservation pool for all District 

Waters.  

Section 26.02 The District Manager may issue a permit to allow the operation of utility 

terrain vehicles, all-terrain vehicles, recreational off-highway vehicles, and golf carts on 

designated District Land. Such vehicles shall be operated by Persons with a valid driver’s license. 

Section 26.03 All motor vehicles shall be operated in a reasonable and prudent manner 

not to exceed the posted speed limit. 

SECTION 27. POLLUTION PROHIBITED 

Section 27.01 The District maintains surveillance programs on watersheds draining 

into District Waters and pursues a water quality control program. Any detection or report of 

pollution from oil, gas, Sewage, Hazardous Waste, garbage, sediment, or other unpermitted 

discharges will be promptly investigated and reported to local, state, and federal governmental 

agencies, including the City of Fort Worth, the Texas Department of State Health Services, the 

Texas Railroad Commission, TCEQ, EPA, and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 

Section 27.02 The District has adopted the following rules: 

(a) No person may discharge, apply, or permit the discharge or application of 

any chemical, pesticide, or other pollutant onto District Land or District Water or within five stream 

miles upstream of the Spillway Elevation of any District Reservoir as provided under the TCEQ 

Watershed Rule (30 Texas Administrative Code Section 311.61) where such discharge is 

reasonably likely to enter District Water, either directly or via surface flow without substantial 

natural filtration or dilution. 

(b) The use of chemicals, including pesticides, on District Land or District 

Water at or below the Spillway Elevation of a Reservoir is prohibited without a written permit 

from the General Manager. A report detailing the chemical type, target vegetation, application 

method, dose, estimated dispersion, and potential threat to humans or wildlife is required. 

(c) No paint or residue resulting from paint application or removal activities 

shall be allowed to enter District Land or District Water, whether intentional or accidental. 

(d) No oil, gas, Sewage, Hazardous Waste, garbage, sediment, or other 

unpermitted discharge shall be allowed to flow into or upon District Land or District Water, 

whether intentional or accidental. 

(e) The District will report any pollution to the responsible party, who must 

immediately remove the pollutants at their own expense. The District may pursue enforcement in 

cooperation with a municipal, state, or federal entity with concurrent jurisdiction or independently. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 29 - 

If the responsible party fails to take remedial action, the District may do so and seek reimbursement 

for all incurred costs. Violations of this Section 27 are punishable as provided in Section 6 of this 

Ordinance. 

(f) The District’s Water Quality Guidance Manual, which requires compliance 

with TCEQ regulations, is incorporated herein. 

SECTION 28. PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 

Section 28.01 Pursuant to the authority granted by Sections 51.127 and 25.004 of the 

Texas Parks and Wildlife Code, the following activities are prohibited on District Waters, District 

Land, and any such lands which are located and conditioned as to cause them to drain to District 

Waters or Floodway: 

(a) Littering, illegal dumping, improper disposal of waste, and/or vandalism; 

(b) Operating generators in the District public use areas in a manner that 

disturbs others; 

(c) Campfires in areas not designated for such activity by the District; 

(d) Possessing or using glass containers of any kind in or on District Land or 

District Waters; 

(e) Feeding any feral or wild animal in or around District Land or District 

Waters; 

(f) Placing, dumping, abandoning or leaving any animal on District Land or 

District Waters;  

(g) Range or graze any livestock on District Land or District Waters without 

written permission from the District; 

(h) Bringing pets or domesticated animals into any public use area and the 

District trail systems unrestrained or on a leash longer than ten (10) feet (other than official service 

and assistance animals trained to provide aid), Persons responsible for the pet or domesticated 

animal shall be responsible for removing any waste produced, the waste shall be deposited into an 

approved trash/waste container; 

(i) Allowing pets or domesticated animals into a designated swimming area; 

(j) Bringing livestock, including horses, into the District Parks, unless written 

permission is granted by the District; 

(k) Discharging fireworks or detonating explosives, unless written permission 

is granted by the District; 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 30 - 

(l) Using any device constructed and operated to launch projectiles on or over 

the District Land or District Waters; 

(m) Fishing from all public boat ramps and courtesy docks, unless otherwise 

designated; 

(n) Diving or jumping into District Waters from a height of twenty (20) feet or 

more, and climbing or rappelling on the District Land; 

(o) Diving or jumping into District Waters from a public highway, roadway 

bridge, railroad bridge, water intake structure, utility tower, or any other structure that is not 

privately owned; 

(p) Operating vehicles off-road on the District Land or District Waters, except 

as specifically authorized by the District; 

(q) Using all-terrain vehicles, dirt bikes, golf carts, UTVs or other vehicles not 

licensed by the State of Texas for use on public roadways, in the District public use areas and on 

the District Land or District Waters, without the prior written permission of the District Manager; 

(r) Locating or constructing Improvements or structures on the District Waters 

or District Land to include placement of privately owned buoys without written permission from 

the District; 

(s) Dredging, filling or otherwise altering or reconfiguring the beds of District 

Waters, or excavating, filling, or reshaping of the District Land without written permission from 

the District; 

(t) Installing or constructing a residential boat ramp and/or rail system; 

provided, however, boat ramps and rail systems in place prior to this date of this Ordinance may 

remain in place, subject to the provisions of Section 9.09 as a Noncomplying Facility. Any boat 

ramp or rail system installed or constructed in violation of these regulations is subject to immediate 

removal; 

(u) Installing or constructing a commercial boat ramp and/or rail system not 

developed in accordance with an authorized Commercial Activity permit; provided, however, the 

District reserves the right to deny the installation or Construction of a commercial boat ramp 

associated with a Commercial Activity permit. Any boat ramp or rail system installed or 

constructed in violation of these regulations is subject to immediate removal; 

(v) Aviation activities, including landing and take-off, are not allowed on 

District Land or District Waters, except by Special Permit issued by the District Manager or  in 

cases of emergency  services; 

(w) Stopping, standing, or parking a vehicle where a posted sign prohibits 

stopping, standing, or parking; 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 31 - 

(x) Any Commercial Activity without the appropriate permit in or upon District 

Land or District Waters; and 

(y) Publishing or displaying private notices, advertisements, or signs, other than 

no trespassing/private property signs, on District Waters and District Land, except by specific 

written permission of the District. 

Section 28.02 Prohibited Use of Drones.  

(a) Critical Infrastructure Facilities. No person shall launch, land, or operate a 

Drone over or within 400 feet horizontally of any District Land or District Water that contains any 

of the following: 

(1) A District Facility; 

(2) A water intake structure or facility for the transfer or conveyance of 

water; 

(3) A pump station and related facilities; 

(4) A water storage tank; 

(5) A balancing or other Reservoir office; 

(6) A pipeline; 

(7) A dam, spillway, or emergency spillway; 

(8) A supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) facility; 

(9) Communications facilities, including cellular or radio towers; 

(10) A District law enforcement facility; or 

(11) Any facilities defined as “critical infrastructure” under Chapter 423 

of the Texas Government Code or similar state or federal law. 

(b) Interference with Security or Operations. It shall be unlawful to operate a 

Drone in a manner that interferes with, disrupts, or obstructs the normal operation, maintenance, 

or security of a critical infrastructure facility. 

(c) Image Capture Restriction. No person shall intentionally capture images, 

video, or data of critical infrastructure facilities for surveillance, reconnaissance, or mapping 

purposes without prior written authorization, unless otherwise authorized under federal or state 

law. 

(d) Public Safety Areas & Emergency Operations. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 32 - 

(1) No person shall launch, land, or operate a Drone within 400 feet of 

any active public safety area, including but not limited to: 

(i) Police or law enforcement incident scenes 

(ii) Fire suppression or hazardous materials operations 

(iii) Traffic accidents or crash investigations 

(iv) Disaster response or rescue efforts 

(2) It shall further be unlawful to operate a Drone in a manner that 

interferes with first responders or emergency management operations during a declared 

emergency, evacuation, or disaster response. 

(e) This Section 28.02 shall not apply to: 

(1) Law enforcement, fire, emergency management, or search and 

rescue personnel acting within the scope of official duties. 

(2) Operators acting under written authorization from the District.  

(3) Operations authorized by the FAA under 14 CFR Part 107 waiver, 

Certificate of Authorization, or other federal authorization. 

(f) Penalties for violations of this Section 28.02 shall include: 

(1) Each act of operation constitutes a separate offense. 

(2) Drones operated in violation of this ordinance may be subject to 

seizure in accordance with applicable law. 

SECTION 29. SANITATION 

Section 29.01 Sanitation activities are regulated by this Ordinance and the District’s 

On-Site Sewage Facility Permit Guidelines, which is incorporated herein by reference as if fully 

set forth herein, as currently in effect and as it may be amended from time to time. This Section 29 

incorporates by reference all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and orders from any federal, state, 

or local governmental agency with jurisdiction over District Waters and District Land. Violations 

of the District’s On-Site Sewage Facilities Ordinance or any other applicable laws subject the 

violator to civil and criminal penalties as provided in 30 Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 285, 

and this Ordinance. 

Section 29.02 It is prohibited to leave dead animals, vegetation, grass clippings, brush, 

tree trimmings, food, garbage, trash, beverage or food containers, cigarette butts, bodily waste, 

wastewater, gray water, or any decaying matter on or in District Land or District Waters. 

Section 29.03 Discharging or releasing any type of garbage, trash, beverage 

containers, or bodily waste into District Waters is prohibited. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 33 - 

Section 29.04 It is prohibited for any Person or enterprise to throw or release any type 

of refuse on or into District Land or District Water. 

Section 29.05 Placing or operating any slaughterhouse, facility for killing or 

processing animals, feedlot, or enclosure that could pollute the air or District Land or District 

Water is prohibited. 

Section 29.06 Refuse, including garbage, rubbish, and litter, must be deposited 

onshore in approved receptacles, maintained properly, and disposed of to prevent public health 

Nuisances and possible contamination of District Waters or District Land. 

Section 29.07 Non-commercial fish cleaning stations are allowed but must operate 

without creating a Nuisance. All refuse from these stations must be disposed of to prevent 

contamination of District Water or District Land. 

SECTION 30. RESTRICTED AREAS 

Section 30.01 Access to all Restricted Areas is limited to authorized personnel only. 

Public use of such critical infrastructure for recreational purposes and fishing would interfere with 

the proper conduct of District business and the lawful use of District critical infrastructure. 

Section 30.02 The General Manager is authorized to close areas of District Land to the 

public and to restrict activities in certain areas to help ensure the safety and health of the public 

and to secure and preserve property, Facilities, and Improvements. The General Manager is 

authorized to designate certain areas of the District Water as restricted to fishing, swimming or 

other activities. Areas that are restricted will be designated by Warning Signs or Buoys. 

Section 30.03 No Person shall enter into such Restricted Areas or engage in any 

activity that violates a posted prohibition, restriction, sign, or buoy. 

Section 30.04 Commercial filming on District Water or District Land, including the 

use of Drones, is prohibited without a Special Operating License from the District. 

Section 30.05 This Section 30 shall not apply to the District-authorized operations, 

maintenance, patrol, or rescue activities. 

SECTION 31. MANAGEMENT PLAN, WATER CONSERVATION, AND 

DROUGHT 

Section 31.01 To reduce water loss and waste in District Water, improve water use 

efficiency, and extend current water supplies during droughts or shortages, the District has adopted 

a Lake Resident Water Conservation and Drought Management Plan. 

Section 31.02 All Shoreline residents of District Waters must comply with the Lake 

Resident Water Conservation and Drought Management Plan, as amended from time to time. 

Section 31.03 The General Manager of the District may adopt, publish, and enforce 

rules, codes, ordinances, or orders to prevent waste or unauthorized use of District Water. These 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 34 - 

may be amended as needed and are incorporated herein. The General Manager may also 

recommend that District customers adopt similar measures. 

Section 31.04 In addition to other penalties in this Ordinance, the District may 

terminate any license, permit, or authorization issued to Shoreline residents for using District 

Waters for irrigation if they fail to comply with the Lake Resident Water Conservation and Drought 

Management Plan, including restrictions on frequency, time of day, or day of the week. 

SECTION 32. EMERGENCY PROCEDURES  

Section 32.01 To protect properties and ensure public welfare, access to District Land 

and District Waters may be restricted at the discretion of the General Manager. 

Section 32.02 Watercraft or Persons found on District Waters or District Land during 

restricted times, without prior consent from the General Manager or a lawful reason, will be 

charged with Trespassing. 

Section 32.03 District Officers responding to emergencies are authorized to act 

effectively to address the situation. Emergencies include obstructions, contamination, or hazards 

to water quality, navigation, or use of District Waters or District Land. Actions are considered 

“effective” if they contribute to preserving lives or property. This Section 32 takes precedence over 

other District ordinances and conflicting laws. The District and its Personnel are not liable for 

failing to use ordinary care in emergencies. Personnel should use a reasonable speed, with marked 

District vehicles or Watercraft if available, and take measures to prevent property destruction or 

injury. 

SECTION 33. ENFORCEMENT  

Section 33.01 The Board of Directors of the District is authorized under Section 

49.216 of the Texas Water Code to contract for or employ District Peace Officers. Section 49.216 

grants each District Peace Officer the authority to make arrests when necessary to prevent or abate 

the commission of (a) any offense against this Ordinance when the offense or threatened offense 

occurs on any land, water, or easement owned or Controlled by the District, (b) any offense 

involving injury or detriment to any property owned or Controlled by the District, and (c) any 

offense against the laws of the State of Texas.  District Peace Officers also possess additional 

powers granted by the Texas Water Code, Texas Penal Code, or any other law. Failing to obey 

lawful instructions or warnings from District Peace Officers or District Officers is a violation of 

this Ordinance and is punishable as outlined in Section 6. 

Section 33.02 A District Peace Officer who arrests or issues a citation for a violation 

of this Ordinance may provide the alleged violator with a written notice to appear before a Justice 

of the Peace Court with jurisdiction over the offense within fifteen (15) days. The Person arrested 

or cited must sign the notice, promising to appear as required. After signing, the Person may be 

released. Failing to appear in court constitutes a violation of this Ordinance, and a warrant for 

arrest may be issued. 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 35 - 

SECTION 34. SEVERABILITY  

Section 34.01 If any section, paragraph, or provision of this Ordinance is declared 

invalid by a court, the remaining parts that still provide a workable plan to achieve the Ordinance’s 

purposes will remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 35. LEGAL NOTICES REQUIRED  

Section 35.01 All non-penal provisions of this Ordinance are immediately effective. 

However, penal provisions will be suspended until they are published once a week for two (2) 

consecutive weeks in a newspaper with general circulation in the area where District Land or 

District Water is located, as required by the Texas Water Code. 

SECTION 36. PRESENT AND FUTURE DISTRICT LAND AND DISTRICT 

WATER 

Section 36.01 All provisions of this Ordinance apply to any and all District Land and 

District Water, including all lakes, Reservoirs, or other bodies of water constructed, operated, or 

maintained by the District, whether currently existing or constructed or acquired in the future. 

SECTION 37. RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER LAWS 

Section 37.01 When regulations or restrictions in this Ordinance differ from those 

imposed by any governmental authority, the more restrictive or higher standards will govern, 

unless they are inconsistent with this Ordinance, in which case the provisions of this Ordinance 

will prevail. 

 

**** 



*** This document is a draft and is not final. It is subject to further revision, editing, and approval, and 

should not be relied on or cited for any official use or legal purpose. *** 

- 36 - 

As evidence of the enactment hereof on [____], 2025: 

 

WITNESS the signing hereof by Leah King, President of the Board of Directors, and attestation 

by C.B. Team, Secretary of the Board of Directors, with the District’s seal. 

 

       

Leah King, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

C.B. Team, Secretary  



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 11 
 
DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 

ISSUANCE, SALE, AND DELIVERY OF TARRANT REGIONAL WATER 
DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, 
WATER REVENUE ECP SERIES A REFUNDING BONDS, PLEDGING 
REVENUES FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS, APPROVING AN 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AND AUTHORIZING OTHER INSTRUMENTS 
AND PROCEDURES RELATING THERETO 

 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of a resolution authorizing the issuance, sale, and 
delivery of the Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District, 
Water Revenue ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, pledging revenues for the payment of 
the bonds, approving an official statement, and authorizing other instruments and 
procedures relating thereto. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The resolution authorizes the sale of ECP Series A (Enterprise Fund) Refunding Bonds 
to refund any ECP Bonds outstanding under the District’s Extendable Commercial Paper 
Financing Program. This resolution gives the District the flexibility to refund the 
Extendable Commercial Paper Bonds (“ECP”) to long-term fixed rate bonds at any time 
over the next 12 months. This Resolution is necessary should the District need quick 
access to the bond market if the ECP Bonds are no longer marketable at a cost effective 
interest rate. The decision to refund will depend on the market conditions, costs and/or 
market accessibility. There are currently no outstanding ECP Bonds issued on this 
program.  
 
The District’s financial advisors and Bond Counsel have advised the District on the need 
for this resolution.  Please see attached the resolution for the sale. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Finance Committee on October 13, 2025. 
 
Submitted By: 
 
Sandy Newby 
Chief Financial Officer 



 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE, AND DELIVERY OF TARRANT 
REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, WATER 
REVENUE ECP SERIES A REFUNDING BONDS, PLEDGING REVENUES FOR THE PAYMENT 
OF THE BONDS, APPROVING AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AND AUTHORIZING OTHER 
INSTRUMENTS AND PROCEDURES RELATING THERETO 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS     § 

COUNTY OF TARRANT     § 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT § 

 

WHEREAS, Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District, 
(formerly known as "Tarrant County Water Control and Improvement District Number One") (the 
"Issuer" or the "District") is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, being a conservation and 
reclamation district created and functioning under Article 16, Section 59 of the Texas Constitution, 
pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas, including Chapters 49 and 51, Texas Water Code, and 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 268, Acts of 1957, 55th Legislature of Texas, Regular Session, as 
amended (collectively the "District Act"); and 

WHEREAS, among other bonds, pursuant to a Master Resolution Establishing the Tarrant 
Regional Water District, A Water Control and Improvement District, Extendable Commercial Paper 
Financing Program And Authorizing Water Revenue Bonds - Extendable Commercial Paper Mode, 
adopted on June 21, 2016 (the "Master Resolution"), the Issuer has previously authorized to be 
outstanding the following described junior lien bonds: 

Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue 
Bonds - Extendable Commercial Paper Mode, Series A (Tax-Exempt) and 

Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue 
Bonds - Extendable Commercial Paper Mode, Series A (Taxable), in the original principal amount not to 
exceed $400,000,000 (collectively, the "ECP Series A Bonds"); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer now desires to authorize refunding bonds to refund all or part of the of the 
outstanding ECP Series A Bonds (the "Refundable Bonds"), and those Refundable Bonds designated by 
the Authorized Officer in the Approval Certificate, each as defined herein, the "Refunded Bonds"; and 

WHEREAS, the issuance of the Bonds and the application of the proceeds of the Bonds to refund 
the Refunded Bonds, which consist of bonds in an extendable commercial paper mode, makes it 
impracticable to determine the maximum amount by which the aggregate amount of payments to be made 
under the Bonds exceeds the aggregate amount of payments that would have been made under the terms 
of the Refunded Bonds for purposes of Section 1207.008(a)(2), Texas Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer will authorize the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds (hereinafter defined) 
pursuant to the District Act and Chapters 1207 and 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended; and 



 

2 

WHEREAS, the meeting was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and purpose 
of said meeting was given pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TARRANT 
REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

Section 1. AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE BONDS. Bonds of the Issuer are 
hereby authorized to be issued for the purpose of obtaining funds (i) to refund a portion of the Issuer's 
outstanding Refundable Bonds, and (ii) to pay costs of issuance of such bonds. 

Section 2. DESIGNATION OF THE BONDS. Each bond issued pursuant to this 
Resolution shall be designated: "TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER 
CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, WATER REVENUE ECP SERIES A 
REFUNDING BOND." Initially there shall be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder a single fully 
registered bond, without interest coupons, payable in installments of principal (the "Initial Bond"), but 
the Initial Bond may be assigned and transferred and/or converted into and exchanged for a like 
aggregate amount of fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, having serial maturities, and in 
the denomination or denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple of $5,000, all in the manner 
hereinafter provided. The term "ECP Series A Refunding Bonds" as used in this Resolution shall 
mean and include collectively the Initial Bond and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor, as well as 
all other substitute bonds and replacement bonds issued pursuant hereto, and the term "ECP Series A 
Refunding Bond" shall mean any of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 

Section 3. INITIAL DATE, DENOMINATION, NUMBER, MATURITIES, INITIAL 
REGISTERED OWNER, AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE INITIAL BOND. (a) As authorized 
by Chapters 1207 and 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended, the General Manager, the Deputy 
General Manager, and the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer are each hereby designated as an 
"Authorized Officer" of the Issuer, and each is hereby authorized, appointed, and designated as the 
officer or employee of the Issuer authorized to act on behalf of the Issuer, which actions shall be 
evidenced by a certificate executed by such Authorized Officer (the "Approval Certificate") for a 
period not to extend beyond October 21, 2026, in selling and delivering the ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds, determining which of the Refundable Bonds shall be refunded and constitute "Refunded 
Bonds" in this Resolution and carrying out the other procedures specified in this Resolution, 
including the use of a book-entry only system with respect to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds and 
the execution of an appropriate letter of representations if deemed appropriate, the determining and 
fixing of the date and the date of delivery of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, any additional or 
different designation or title by which the Bond shall be known (including, if the ECP Series A Bonds 
are issued on a taxable basis, inclusion of an appropriate designation as such), the price at which the 
ECP Series A Refunding Bonds will be sold (but in no event less than 95% of the principal amount of 
the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds), the principal amount (not exceeding $400,000,000) of the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds, the amount of each maturity of principal thereof, the due date of each 
such maturity (not exceeding thirty years from the date of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds), the 
rate of interest, to be borne by each such maturity (but in no event to result in the net effective interest 
rate on the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds exceeding 10% per annum), the initial interest payment 
date, the date or dates of any optional redemption thereof, any mandatory sinking fund redemption 
provisions, and approving modifications to this Resolution and executing such instruments, 
documents and agreements as may be necessary with respect thereto, and all other matters relating to 
the issuance, sale and delivery of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds and the refunding of the 
Refunded Bonds. 

(b) The Initial Bond is hereby authorized to be issued, sold, and delivered hereunder as a single 



 

3 

fully registered Bond, without interest coupons, in the denomination and aggregate principal amount set 
forth in the Approval Certificate (not exceeding $400,000,000), numbered TR-1, payable in annual 
installments of principal to the initial registered owner thereof or to the registered assignee or assignees of 
said Bond or any portion or portions thereof (in each case, the "registered owner"), with the annual 
installments of principal of the Initial Bond to be payable on the dates, respectively, and in the principal 
amounts, respectively, and may and shall be prepaid or redeemed prior to the respective scheduled due 
dates of installments of principal thereof, all as set forth in the Approval Certificate. 

(c) The Initial Bond (i) may, and if so provided in the Approval Certificate, shall be prepaid or 
paid on the respective scheduled due dates of installments of principal thereof, (ii) may be assigned and 
transferred, (iii) may be converted and exchanged for other bonds, (iv) shall have the characteristics, and 
(v) shall be signed and sealed, and the principal of and interest on the Initial Bond shall be payable, all as 
provided, and in the manner required or indicated, in the FORM OF INITIAL BOND set forth in this 
Resolution. 

Section 4. INTEREST. The unpaid principal balance of the Initial Bond shall bear 
interest from the date of delivery (the "Issue Date") of the Initial Bond to the Underwriters (as defined 
in Section 31 hereof) to the respective scheduled due dates, or to the respective dates of prepayment 
or redemption, of the installments of principal of the Initial Bond, and such interest shall be payable 
in the manner, at the rates, and on the dates, respectively, as provided in the Approval Certificate and 
the FORM OF INITIAL BOND set forth in this Resolution. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



4 

 

*  From Approval Certificate. 
 

Section 5. FORM OF INITIAL BOND. The form of the Initial Bond, including the 
form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas to be 
endorsed on the Initial Bond, shall be substantially as fol1ows, with blank or bracketed information to 
be completed or deleted based upon the Approval Certificate: 

NO. TR-1 FORM OF INITIAL BOND 

 

$_____________* 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF TEXAS 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, 

A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT,  
WATER REVENUE ECP SERIES A REFUNDING BOND 

 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (the "Issuer"), being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to: 
_____________________________________* or to the registered assignee or assignees of this Bond or 
any portion or portions hereof (in each case, the "registered owner") the aggregate principal amount of 
_____________________________________* in annual installments of principal due and payable on 
March 1 in each of the years, and in the respective principal amounts, as set forth in the following 
schedule: 

Year* 
 Principal 

Amount* 
 

Year* 
 Principal 

Amount* 

       

       

 
and to pay interest, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months, from 
the date of initial delivery of this Bond to the Underwriters (as defined in the Bond Resolution 
(hereinafter defined)), on the balance of each such installment of principal, respectively, from time to time 
remaining unpaid, at the rates as follows: 

Year*  Rate*  Year*  Rate* 

       

       

 

with said interest being payable semiannually on each March 1 and September 1, commencing 
_______________*, while this Bond or any portion hereof is outstanding and unpaid. 

THE INSTALLMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OF AND THE INTEREST ON this Bond are payable 
in lawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The 
installments of principal and the interest on this Bond are payable to the registered owner hereof through 
the services of BOKF, NA, which is the "Paying Agent/Registrar" for this Bond. Payment of all principal 



5 

 

* From Approval Certificate.  
**  From Approval Certificate, if applicable 
 

of and interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner hereof 
on each principal and/or interest payment date by check, dated as of such date, drawn by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the Issuer required by the resolution authorizing the 
issuance of this Bond (the "Bond Resolution") to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such 
purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United 
States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each such principal and/or interest payment date, to the 
registered owner hereof, at the address of the registered owner, as it appeared at the close of business on 
the 15th day of the month next preceding each such date (the "Record Date") on the Registration Books 
kept by the Paying Agent/ Registrar, as hereinafter described. The Issuer covenants with the registered 
owner of this Bond that on or before each principal and/or interest payment date for this Bond it will 
make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the "Interest and Redemption Fund" created by the 
Bond Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all 
principal of and interest on this Bond, when due. 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the Paying 
Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such 
payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on 
which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same force 
and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

THIS BOND has been authorized in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Texas in the principal amount of $_________*, for the purpose of obtaining funds (i) to refund a portion 
of the Issuer's outstanding "Tarrant Regional Water District, A Water Control and Improvement District, 
Water Revenue Bonds - Extendable Commercial Paper Mode, Series A (Tax- Exempt)" and "Tarrant 
Regional Water District, A Water Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds - Extendable 
Commercial Paper Mode, Series A (Taxable)" and (ii) to pay costs of issuance of this Bond. 

ON _________1, ________*, or any date thereafter, the unpaid installments of principal of this 
Bond may be prepaid or redeemed prior to their scheduled due dates, at the option of the Issuer, with 
funds derived from any available source, as a whole, or in part, and, if in part, the Issuer shall select and 
designate the installment or installments of principal, and the amount that is to be redeemed, and if less 
than a whole principal installment is to be called, the Issuer shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call 
by lot or other customary method of random selection the portion of the principal installment to be 
redeemed (only in an integral multiple of $5,000), at the redemption price of the principal amount to be 
prepaid or redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date fixed for prepayment or redemption. 

**[THE PRINCIPAL INSTALLMENTS OF THIS BOND maturing on March 1, _______   and 
March 1, _______ are subject to mandatory prepayment or redemption prior to maturity in part, at a price 
equal to the principal amount of this Bond or portions hereof to be prepaid or redeemed plus accrued 
interest to the date of prepayment or redemption, on March 1 in the each of years and in the amounts as 
follows: 

 

 

 

  



5 

 

* From Approval Certificate.  
 
 

Principal Installment due on March 1, _________ 

Year* 
 

Amount* 
   
   

 

Principal Installment due on March 1, _________ 

Year* 
 

Amount* 
   
   

 

The amount of any principal installment of this Bond required to be prepaid or redeemed pursuant 
to the operation of such mandatory prepayment or redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option 
of the Issuer, by the principal amount of such principal installment of this Bond which, at least 50 days 
prior to the mandatory prepayment or redemption date (1) shall have been acquired by the Issuer at a price 
not exceeding such principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, (2) shall have 
been purchased by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the Issuer at a price not exceeding such 
principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of purchase, or (3) shall have been prepaid or redeemed 
pursuant to the optional prepayment or redemption provisions and not theretofore credited against a 
mandatory prepayment or redemption requirement.] 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any such prepayment or redemption a written 
notice of such prepayment or redemption shall be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered 
owner hereof. By the date fixed for any such prepayment or redemption due provision shall be made by 
the Issuer with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required prepayment or redemption 
price for this Bond or the portion hereof which is to be so prepaid or redeemed, plus accrued interest 
thereon to the date fixed for prepayment or redemption. If such written notice of prepayment or 
redemption is given, and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, this Bond, or 
the portion thereof which is to be so prepaid or redeemed, thereby automatically shall be treated as 
prepaid or redeemed prior to its scheduled due date, and shall not bear interest after the date fixed for its 
prepayment or redemption, and shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the 
registered owner to receive the prepayment or redemption price plus accrued interest to the date fixed for 
prepayment or redemption from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds provided for such payment. 
The Paying Agent/Registrar shall record in the Registration Books all such prepayments or redemptions 
of principal of this Bond or any portion hereof. 

THIS BOND, to the extent of the unpaid principal balance hereof, or any unpaid portion hereof in 
any integral multiple of $5,000, may be assigned by the initial registered owner hereof and shall be 
transferred only in the Registration Books of the Issuer kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the 
capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution. 
Among other requirements for such transfer, this Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying 
Agent/ Registrar for cancellation, together with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with 
guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment by the initial 
registered owner of this Bond, or any portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000, to the 
assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or portions hereof is or are 
to be transferred and registered. Any instrument or instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar may be used to evidence the assignment of this Bond or any such portion or portions 
hereof by the initial registered owner hereof. A new bond or bonds payable to such assignee or assignees 



 

7 

(which then will be the new registered owner or owners of such new Bond or Bonds) or to the initial 
registered owner as to any portion of this Bond which is not being assigned and transferred by the initial 
registered owner, shall be delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this 
Bond or any portion or portions hereof, but solely in the form and manner as provided in the next 
paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of this Bond or any portion hereof. The registered 
owner of this Bond shall be deemed and treated by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar as the 
absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including payment and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the 
extent of such payment, and the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice 
to the contrary. 

AS PROVIDED above and in the Bond Resolution, this Bond, to the extent of the unpaid 
principal balance hereof, may be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of 
fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the assignee or assignees duly designated in 
writing by the initial registered owner hereof, or to the initial registered owner as to any portion of this 
Bond which is not being assigned and transferred by the initial registered owner, in any denomination or 
denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000 (subject to the requirement hereinafter stated that each 
substitute bond issued in exchange for any portion of this Bond shall have a single stated principal 
maturity date), upon surrender of this Bond to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in 
accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the Bond Resolution. If this Bond or any portion 
hereof is assigned and transferred or converted each bond issued in exchange for any portion hereof shall 
have a single stated principal maturity date corresponding to the due date of the installment of principal of 
this Bond or portion hereof for which the substitute bond is being exchanged, and shall bear interest at the 
rate applicable to and borne by such installment of principal or portion thereof. Such bonds, respectively, 
shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity on the same dates and for the same prices as the 
corresponding installment of principal of this Bond or portion hereof for which they are being exchanged. 
No such bond shall be payable in installments, but shall have only one stated principal maturity date. AS 
PROVIDED IN THE BOND RESOLUTION, THIS BOND IN ITS PRESENT FORM MAY BE 
ASSIGNED AND TRANSFERRED OR CONVERTED ONCE ONLY, and to one or more assignees, but 
the bonds issued and delivered in exchange for this Bond or any portion hereof may be assigned and 
transferred, and converted, subsequently, as provided in the Bond Resolution. The Issuer shall pay the 
Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and charges for transferring, converting, and 
exchanging this Bond or any portion thereof, but the one requesting such transfer, conversion, and 
exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. The 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such assignment, conversion, or exchange (i) 
during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the 
opening of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any 
Bond or portion thereof called for prepayment or redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its 
prepayment or redemption date. 

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for this Bond is changed by the Issuer, resigns, or 
otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that it promptly will 
appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will cause written notice 
thereof to be mailed to the registered owner of this Bond. 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 
authorized, issued, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to be performed, 
exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this Bond have been 
performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a special obligation of the 
Issuer which, together with other outstanding bonds of the Issuer, and the interest thereon, are secured by 
and payable equally and ratably on a parity from a first lien on and pledge of the "Pledged Revenues," as 
defined in the Bond Resolution, which include the "Net Revenues of the District's Water System," as 



 

8 

defined in the Bond Resolution, which specifically include certain amounts to be received by the Issuer (i) 
pursuant to the "Tarrant County Regional Water Supply Facilities Contract," dated August 29, 1979, 
among the Issuer and the Cities of Fort Worth and Mansfield, Texas, the "Tarrant County Regional Water 
Supply Facilities Supplemental Contract For Trinity River Authority of Texas," dated as of March 12, 
1979 between the Issuer and Trinity River Authority of Texas, and the "Tarrant County Regional Water 
Supply Facilities Amendatory Contract", dated September 1, 1982, among the Issuer, the Cities of Fort 
Worth, Arlington, and Mansfield, Texas, and Trinity River Authority of Texas, which last named 
amendatory contract consolidates the previous contracts between such parties with respect to the Issuer's 
Water System into one instrument and sets forth the entire agreement between such parties with respect to 
the Issuer's Water System, and (ii) pursuant to contracts with other water customers of the Issuer. 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond Resolution, to 
issue Additional Bonds payable from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of the "Pledged Revenues" 
on a parity with this Bond. 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution, with the approval of the 
owners of 51% of the outstanding bonds secured by a first lien on the Pledged Revenues, subject to the 
restrictions as stated in the Bond Resolution. 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this Bond 
or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source whatsoever 
other than specified in the Bond Resolution. 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby acknowledges 
all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms and provisions, 
acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in the official 
minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between the registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the manual or 
facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and countersigned with the 
manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary or other authorized officer of the Board of Directors of the 
Issuer, has caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Bond 
and has caused this Bond to be dated as of ________*,_____. 

 

xxxxxxxxxxxx  xxxxxxxxxxxxx 
Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

 

(DISTRICT SEAL)   

 

 

 

 



 

9 

FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE OF THE 

COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS: 

COMPTROLLER'S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE: REGISTER NO. 

I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved by the 
Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

Witness my signature and seal this 

 

 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas 

(COMPTROLLER'S SEAL) 

 

Section 6. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE ECP SERIES A REFUNDING BONDS.  

Registration, Transfer, Conversion and Exchange; Authentication. (a) The Issuer shall keep or 
cause to be kept at the principal corporate trust office of BOKF, NA, Dallas, Texas (the "Paying 
Agent/Registrar") books or records for the registration of the transfer, conversion and exchange of the 
ECP Series A Refunding Bonds (the "Registration Books"), and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying 
Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such 
registrations of transfers, conversions and exchanges under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer and 
Paying Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such registrations, 
transfers, conversions and exchanges as herein provided. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain and 
record in the Registration Books the address of the registered owner of each ECP Series A Refunding 
Bond to which payments with respect to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds shall be mailed, as herein 
provided; but it shall be the duty of each registered owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing 
of the address to which payments shall be mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless 
such notice has been given. To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, all transfers of 
ECP Series A Refunding Bonds shall be made within three business days after request and presentation 
thereof. The Issuer shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business hours of 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the Registration Books 
confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their inspection by any other entity. 
The Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and charges for making such registration, 
transfer, conversion, exchange and delivery of a substitute ECP Series A Refunding Bond or ECP Series 
A Refunding Bonds shall be paid as provided in the FORM OF ECP Series A Refunding Bond set forth in 
this Resolution. Registration of assignments, transfers, conversions and exchanges of ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds shall be made in the manner provided and with the effect stated in the FORM OF ECP 
Series A Refunding Bond set forth in this Resolution. Each substitute ECP Series A Refunding Bond shall 
bear a letter and/or number to distinguish it from each other ECP Series A Refunding Bond. 

 



 

10 

An authorized representative of the Paying Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such 
ECP Series A Refunding Bond, date and manually sign the Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication 
Certificate, and no such ECP Series A Refunding Bond shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding 
unless such Certificate is so executed. The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel all paid ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds surrendered for conversion and exchange. No additional ordinances, orders, or 
resolutions need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body or person so 
as to accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange of any ECP Series A Refunding Bond or portion 
thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the printing, execution, and delivery of the 
substitute ECP Series A Refunding Bonds in the manner prescribed herein, and said ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds shall be of type composition printed on paper of customary weight and strength. 
Pursuant to Subchapter D, Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, the duty of conversion and exchange 
of ECP Series A Refunding Bonds as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon the Paying Agent/Registrar, and, 
upon the execution of said Certificate, the converted and exchanged ECP Series A Refunding Bond shall 
be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same manner and with the same effect as the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds which initially were issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution, approved by the 
Attorney General, and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts. 

Payment of ECP Series A Refunding Bonds and Interest. The Issuer hereby further appoints the 
Paying Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds, all as provided in this Resolution. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep 
proper records of all payments made by the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar with respect to the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds. 

In General. The ECP Series A Refunding Bonds (i) shall be issued in fully registered form, 
without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such ECP Series A Refunding Bonds to be 
payable only to the registered owners thereof, (ii) may, and if so provided in the Approval Certificate, 
shall be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, (iii) may be transferred and assigned, (iv) may be 
converted and exchanged for other ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, (v) shall have the characteristics, (vi) 
shall be signed, sealed, executed and authenticated, (vii) shall be payable as to principal and interest, and 
(viii) shall be administered and the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Issuer shall have certain duties and 
responsibilities with respect to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, all as provided, and in the manner and 
to the effect as required or indicated, in the FORM OF ECP Series A Refunding Bond set forth in this 
Resolution. The ECP Series A Refunding Bonds initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Resolution 
are not required to be, and shall not be, authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each 
substitute ECP Series A Refunding Bond issued in conversion of and exchange for any ECP Series A 
Refunding Bond or ECP Series A Refunding Bonds issued under this Resolution the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall execute the PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION 
CERTIFICATE, in the form set forth in the FORM OF ECP Series A Refunding Bond. 

Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the registered owners of the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds that at all times while the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds are outstanding the 
Issuer will provide a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other 
agency to act as and perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds under this Resolution, and that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one entity. The Issuer reserves 
the right to, and may, at its option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 120 days written 
notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 60 days prior to the next principal or 
interest payment date after such notice. In the event that the entity at any time acting as Paying 
Agent/Registrar (or its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method) should resign or otherwise 
cease to act as such, the Issuer covenants that promptly it will appoint a competent and legally qualified 
bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act as Paying Agent/Registrar under this 
Resolution. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar 
promptly shall transfer and deliver the Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other 



 

11 

pertinent books and records relating to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, to the new Paying 
Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the Issuer. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
the Issuer promptly will cause a written notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to 
each registered owner of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, by United States mail, first-class postage 
prepaid, which notice also shall give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar. By accepting the 
position and performing as such, each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the 
provisions of this Resolution, and a certified copy of this Resolution shall be delivered to each Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 

Reporting Requirements of Paying Agent/Registrar. To the extent required by the Code and the 
regulations promulgated and pertaining thereto, it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent/Registrar, on 
behalf of the Issuer, to report to the owners of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds and the Internal 
Revenue Service (i) the amount of "reportable payments," if any, subject to backup withholding during 
each year and the amount of tax withheld, if any, with respect to payments of the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds and (ii) the amount of interest or amount treated as interest on the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds and required to be included in gross income of the owner thereof. 

Book-Entry Only System. The ECP Series A Refunding Bonds issued in exchange for the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds initially issued to the purchaser specified herein shall be initially issued in the 
form of a separate single fully registered ECP Series A Refunding Bond for each of the maturities thereof. 
Upon initial issuance, the ownership of each such ECP Series A Refunding Bond shall be registered in the 
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of Depository Trust Company of New York ("DTC"), and except as 
provided in subsection (f) hereof, all of the outstanding ECP Series A Refunding Bonds shall be 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. 

With respect to ECP Series A Refunding Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of DTC, the Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to 
any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest on the 
ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the Issuer and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the 
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a 
Bondholder, as shown on the Registration Books, of any notice with respect to the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any 
other person, other than a Bondholder, as shown in the Registration Books of any amount with respect to 
principal of, premium, if any, or interest on, as the case may be, the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, the Issuer and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each ECP Series A 
Refunding Bond is registered in the Registration Books as the absolute owner of such ECP Series A 
Refunding Bond for the purpose of payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest, as the case may 
be, with respect to such ECP Series A Refunding Bond, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption 
and other matters with respect to such ECP Series A Refunding Bond, for the purpose of registering 
transfers with respect to such ECP Series A Refunding Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds only 
to or upon the order of the respective owners, as shown in the Registration Books as provided in this 
Resolution, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid 
and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Issuer's obligations with respect to payment of principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on, or as the case may be, the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds to the extent 
of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than an owner, as shown in the Registration Books, shall 
receive an ECP Series A Refunding Bond certificate evidencing the obligation of the Issuer to make 
payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest, as the case may be, pursuant to this Resolution. 



 

12 

Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has 
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions in this 
Resolution with respect to interest checks being mailed to the registered owner at the close of business on 
the Record Date, the word "Cede & Co." in this Resolution shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

Successor Securities Depository; Transfers Outside Book-Entry Only System. In the event that 
the Issuer or the Paying Agent/Registrar determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its 
responsibilities described herein and in the representation letter of the Issuer to DTC and that it is in the 
best interest of the beneficial owners of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds that they be able to obtain 
certificated ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, the Issuer or the Paying Agent/Registrar shall (i) appoint a 
successor securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such 
successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate ECP Series A Refunding Bonds to such 
successor securities depository or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC 
of ECP Series A Refunding Bonds and transfer one or more separate ECP Series A Refunding Bonds to 
DTC Participants having ECP Series A Refunding Bonds credited to their DTC accounts. In such event, 
the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Registration 
Books in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the 
successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Bondholders transferring or 
exchanging ECP Series A Refunding Bonds shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this 
Resolution. 

Payments to Cede & Co. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Resolution to the contrary, 
so long as any ECP Series A Refunding Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, all payments with respect to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, or as the case may be, 
such ECP Series A Refunding Bond and all notices with respect to such ECP Series A Refunding Bond 
shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the representation letter of the Issuer to 
DTC. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



13 

 

* From Approval Certificate. 
** From Approval Certificate, if applicable.  

Section 7. FORM OF ECP SERIES A REFUNDING SUBSTITUTE BONDS. The 
form of all ECP Series A Refunding Bonds issued in conversion and exchange or replacement of any 
other ECP Series A Refunding Bond or portion thereof, including the form of Paying 
Agent/Registrar's Certificate to be printed on each of such ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, and the 
Form of Assignment to be printed on each of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, shall be, 
respectively, substantially as follows, with blank or bracketed information to be completed or deleted 
based upon the Approval Certificate, and with such appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as 
are permitted or required by this Resolution. 

 

FORM OF ECP SERIES A REFUNDING SUBSTITUTE BOND 

THE FOLLOWING TWO BRACKETED PARAGRAPHS ARE TO BE DELETED IF BOND IS 
NOT BOOK ENTRY ONLY: 

[Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company, 
a New York corporation ("DTC") to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange, or 
payment, and any Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such other name as is 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to Cede & Co. or to such 
other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR 
OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL 
inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

As provided in the Indenture referred to herein, until the termination of the system of book-entry-
only transfers through DTC, and notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture to the contrary, this 
Bond may be transferred, in whole but not in part, only to a nominee of DTC, or by a nominee of DTC to 
DTC or a nominee of DTC, or by DTC or a nominee of DTC to any successor securities depository or any 
nominee thereof.] 

NO. ____  PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
$_____________* 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA STATE OF TEXAS 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, 

A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT,  
WATER REVENUE ECP SERIES A REFUNDING BOND [TAXABLE*] 

 
 

INTEREST RATE  MATURITY DATE ISSUE DATE CUSIP NO. 
%  _______________*  

 

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A 
WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (the "Issuer"), being a political subdivision of 
the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to CEDE & CO. or to the registered assignee hereof (either 
being hereinafter called the "registered owner") the principal amount of 
________________________DOLLARS and to pay interest thereon, calculated on the basis of a 360-day 
year composed of twelve 30-day months, from the Issue Date specified above, to the Maturity Date 
specified above, or the date of redemption prior to maturity, at the interest rate per annum specified 



14 

 

* From Approval Certificate. 
** From Approval Certificate, if applicable.  

above; with interest being payable semiannually on each March 1 and September 1, commencing 
__________*, except that if the date of authentication of this Bond is later than the first Record Date 
(hereinafter defined), such principal amount shall bear interest from the interest payment date next 
preceding the date of authentication, unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date 
(hereinafter defined) but on or before the next following interest payment date, in which case such 
principal amount shall bear interest from such next following interest payment date. 

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Bond is payable in lawful money of the United 
States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The principal of this Bond shall be paid to the 
registered owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at maturity or upon the date fixed 
for its redemption prior to maturity, at the principal corporate trust office of BOKF, NA, Dallas, Texas, 
which is the "Paying Agent/Registrar" for this Bond. The payment of interest on this Bond shall be made 
by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner hereof on each interest payment date by check 
dated as of such interest payment date, drawn by the Paying Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, 
funds of the Issuer required by the resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the "Bond 
Resolution") to be on deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; 
and such check shall be sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage 
prepaid, on each such interest payment date, to the registered owner hereof, at the address of the 
registered owner, as it appeared at the close of business on the 15th day of the month next preceding each 
such date (the "Record Date") on the Registration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as 
hereinafter described. However, notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, (1) the payment of such 
interest may be made by any other method acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and requested by, 
and at the risk and expense of, the registered owner hereof and (2) upon the written request, and at the risk 
and expense of, the registered owner of any Bond of this Series in the amount of $1,000,000 or more, 
delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar not less than 15 days prior to any interest payment date, payment 
of the interest due on such Bond on such date shall be paid on such date by wire transfer to any 
designated account in the United States of America which has available to it the wire service facilities of 
the Federal Reserve Bank. Any accrued interest due upon the redemption of this Bond prior to maturity as 
provided herein shall be paid to the registered owner at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar upon presentation and surrender of this Bond for redemption and payment at the principal 
corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar. The Issuer covenants with the registered owner of 
this Bond that on or before each principal payment date, interest payment date, and accrued interest 
payment date for this Bond it will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the "Interest and 
Redemption Fund" created by the Bond Resolution, the amounts required to provide for the payment, in 
immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Bonds, when due. 

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday, 
Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the Paying 
Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such 
payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on 
which banking institutions are authorized to close; and payment on such date shall have the same force 
and effect as if made on the original date payment was due. 

THIS BOND is one of an issue of Bonds dated as of _______*, _____, authorized in accordance 
with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas in the principal amount of $_______* for the purpose 
of obtaining funds (i) to refund a portion of the Issuer's outstanding "Tarrant Regional Water District, A 
Water Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds - Extendable Commercial Paper Mode, 
Series A (Tax-Exempt)" and "Tarrant Regional Water District, A Water Control and Improvement 
District, Water Revenue Bonds - Extendable Commercial Paper Mode, Series A (Taxable)" and (ii) to pay 
costs of issuance of the Bonds. 



15 

 

* From Approval Certificate. 
** From Approval Certificate, if applicable.  

ON _________ 1, _____,* or any date thereafter, the outstanding Bonds may be redeemed prior 
to their scheduled maturities, at the option of the Issuer, with funds derived from any available source, as 
a whole, or in part, and, if in part, the Issuer shall select and designate the maturity, or maturities, and the 
amount that is to be redeemed, and if less than a whole maturity is to be redeemed, the Issuer shall direct 
the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot or other customary method of random selection the Bonds or 
portions thereof to be redeemed (provided that the Bonds to be redeemed only in integral multiples of 
$5,000), at the redemption price of the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption. 

**[THE BONDS maturing on March 1, _______  and March 1, ________(the "Term Bonds") are 
subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity in part, by lot or other customary random method 
selected by the Paying Agent/Registrar, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Term 
Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date, on June 1 in each 
of the years and in the principal amounts as follows: 

Term Bonds maturing on March 1, _________ 

Year 
 

Amounts 
   
   

Term Bonds maturing on March 1, _________ 

Year 
 

Amounts 
   
   

 

The principal amount of the Term Bonds of a maturity required to be redeemed pursuant to the 
operation of such mandatory redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the option of the Issuer, by the 
principal amount of the Term Bonds of such maturity which, at least 50 days prior to the mandatory 
redemption date (1) shall have been acquired by the Issuer at a price not exceeding the principal amount 
of such Term Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar for cancellation, (2) shall have been purchased and canceled by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the request of the Issuer at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Term 
Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of purchase, or (3) shall have been redeemed pursuant to the 
optional redemption provisions and not theretofore credited against a mandatory redemption 
requirement.] 

DURING ANY PERIOD in which ownership of the Bonds is determined by a book entry at a 
securities depository for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity and bearing the 
same interest rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and bearing such interest rate 
shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the Issuer and the securities depository.

 

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or portions thereof prior 
to maturity at the option of the Issuer, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the registered owner appearing on 
the Registration Books at the close of business on the day next preceding the date of mailing of such 
notice; provided, however, that any notice so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly 
given and the failure to receive such notice, or any defect therein shall not affect the validity or 



16 

 

 
  

effectiveness of the proceedings for the redemption of any Bond at the option of the Issuer. By the date 
fixed for any such redemption due provision shall be made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
payment of the required redemption price for the Bonds or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed, 
plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption. If such written notice of redemption is 
mailed and if due provision for such payment is made, all as provided above, the Bonds or portions 
thereof which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their 
scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they shall 
not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the registered owner to receive the redemption 
price plus accrued interest from the Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds provided for such payment. If 
a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed a substitute Bond or Bonds having the same maturity date, 
bearing interest at the same rate, in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of 
$5,000, at the written request of the registered owner, and in aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the registered owner upon the surrender thereof for 
cancellation, at the expense of the Issuer, all as provided in the Bond Resolution.  

THIS BOND OR ANY PORTION OR PORTIONS HEREOF IN ANY INTEGRAL MULTIPLE 
OF $5,000 may be assigned and shall be transferred only in the Registration Books of the Issuer kept by 
the Paying Agent/Registrar acting in the capacity of registrar for the Bonds, upon the terms and 
conditions set forth in the Bond Resolution. Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, 
this Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, together with proper 
instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof in any integral 
multiple of $5,000 to the assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond or any such portion or 
portions hereof is or are to be transferred and registered. The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on 
this Bond shall be executed by the registered owner or its duly authorized attorney or representative, to 
evidence the assignment hereof. A new Bond or Bonds payable to such assignee or assignees (which then 
will be the new registered owner or owners of such new Bond or Bonds), or to the previous registered 
owner in the case of the assignment and transfer of only a portion of this Bond, may be delivered by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar in conversion of and exchange for this Bond, all in the form and manner as 
provided in the next paragraph hereof for the conversion and exchange of other Bonds. The Issuer shall 
pay the Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and charges for making such transfer, but the 
one requesting such transfer shall pay any taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with 
respect thereto. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make transfers of registration of this 
Bond or any portion hereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record 
Date and ending with the opening of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, 
(ii) with respect to any Bond or any portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 
days prior to its redemption date. The registered owner of this Bond shall be deemed and treated by the 
Issuer and the Paying Agent/Registrar as the absolute owner hereof for all purposes, including payment 
and discharge of liability upon this Bond to the extent of such payment, and the Issuer and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

ALL BONDS OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered bonds, without interest 
coupons, in the denomination of any integral multiple of $5,000. As provided in the Bond Resolution, this 
Bond, or any unredeemed portion hereof, may, at the request of the registered owner or the assignee or 
assignees hereof, be converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of fully 
registered bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the appropriate registered owner, assignee, or 
assignees, as the case may be, having the same maturity date, and bearing interest at the same rate, in any 
denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000 as requested in writing by the 
appropriate registered owner, assignee, or assignees, as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set forth in 
the Bond Resolution. The Issuer shall pay the Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and 



17 

 

 
  

charges for transferring, converting, and exchanging any Bond or any portion thereof, but the one 
requesting such transfer, conversion, and exchange shall pay any taxes or governmental charges required 
to be paid with respect thereto as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege of conversion and 
exchange. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such conversion and exchange 
(i) during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the 
opening of business on the next following principal or interest payment date, or, (ii) with respect to any 
Bond or portion thereof called for redemption prior to maturity, within 45 days prior to its redemption 
date.

IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the Issuer, resigns, or 
otherwise ceases to act as such, the Issuer has covenanted in the Bond Resolution that it promptly will 
appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and promptly will cause written notice 
thereof to be mailed to the registered owners of the Bonds. 

IT IS HEREBY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Bond has been duly and validly 
authorized, issued, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things required or proper to be performed, 
exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization, issuance, and delivery of this Bond have been 
performed, existed, and been done in accordance with law; that this Bond is a special obligation of the 
Issuer which, together with other outstanding bonds of the Issuer, and the interest thereon, are secured by 
and payable equally and ratably on a parity from a first lien on and pledge of the "Pledged Revenues," as 
defined in the Bond Resolution, which include the "Net Revenues of the District's Water System," as 
defined in the Bond Resolution, which specifically include certain amounts to be received by the Issuer (i) 
pursuant to the "Tarrant County Regional Water Supply Facilities Contract", dated August 29, 1979, 
among the Issuer and the Cities of Fort Worth and Mansfield, Texas, the "Tarrant County Regional Water 
Supply Facilities Supplemental Contract For Trinity River Authority of Texas," dated as of March 12, 
1979 between the Issuer and Trinity River Authority of Texas, and the "Tarrant County Regional Water 
Supply Facilities Amendatory Contract," dated September 1, 1982, among the Issuer, the Cities of Fort 
Worth, Arlington, and Mansfield, Texas, and Trinity River Authority of Texas, which last named 
amendatory contract consolidates the previous contracts between such parties with respect to the Issuer's 
Water System into one instrument and sets forth the entire agreement between such parties with respect to 
the Issuer's Water System, and (ii) pursuant to contracts with other water customers of the Issuer. 

THE ISSUER has reserved the right, subject to the restrictions stated in the Bond Resolution, to 
issue Additional Bonds payable from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of the "Pledged Revenues" 
on a parity with this Bond. 

THE ISSUER also has reserved the right to amend the Bond Resolution, with the approval of the 
owners of 51% of the outstanding bonds secured by a first lien on the Pledged Revenues, subject to the 
restrictions stated in the Bond Resolution. 

THE REGISTERED OWNER hereof shall never have the right to demand payment of this Bond 
or the interest hereon out of any funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any source whatsoever 
other than as specified in the Bond Resolution. 

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Bond, the registered owner thereby acknowledges 
all of the terms and provisions of the Bond Resolution, agrees to be bound by such terms and provisions, 
acknowledges that the Bond Resolution is duly recorded and available for inspection in the official 
minutes and records of the governing body of the Issuer, and agrees that the terms and provisions of this 
Bond and the Bond Resolution constitute a contract between each registered owner hereof and the Issuer. 

 



18 

 

 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed with the facsimile 
signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and countersigned with the facsimile 
signature of the Secretary or other authorized officer of the Board of Directors of the Issuer, and has 
caused the official seal of the Issuer to be duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Bond. 

xxxxxxxxxxxx  xxxxxxxxxxxxx 
Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

 

(DISTRICT SEAL)   

 

FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE PAYING 
AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 
(To be executed if this Bond is not accompanied by an executed Registration  

Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas) 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond Resolution 
described in the text of this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion or replacement of, or 
in exchange for, a bond, bonds, or a portion of a bond or bonds of a Series which originally was approved 
by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the 
State of Texas. 

Dated: __________________  BOKF, NA 
  Dallas, Texas 

 
 
 

  By___________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 

 

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT  
 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto 

Please Insert Social Security or 
Other Identifying Number of Assignee 
/____________________________/ 

 

(Name and Address of Assignee) 
 
the within Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ______________________ to 
transfer said Bond on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the 
premises. 

 



19 

 

 
  

Date: ____________ 
 
Signature Guaranteed: _________________________ 

NOTICE:  The signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears upon the face of 
the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatever; and 

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a 
Securities Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 

Section 8. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS. In addition to the definitions heretofore provided for, 
the following terms as used in this Resolution shall have the meanings set forth below, unless the text 
hereof specifically indicates otherwise: 

The term "Additional Bonds" shall mean the additional parity revenue bonds permitted to be 
authorized in the future on a parity with the Bonds, as hereinafter provided in Sections 21 and 22 hereof. 

The term "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the District, being the governing body of 
the District, and it is further resolved that the declarations and covenants of the District contained in this 
Resolution are made by, and for and on behalf of the Board and the District, and are binding upon the 
Board and the District for all purposes. 

The terms "Bond Resolution" and "Resolution" shall mean this resolution authorizing the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds; and it is hereby resolved and provided that Sections 8 through 24 of this Bond 
Resolution are applicable to all of the Bonds, as hereinafter defined, and substantially restate and are 
supplemental to and cumulative of Sections 8 through 24 of each of the Series 2015 Bond Resolution, the 
Series 2015A Bond Resolution, the Series 2016 Bond Resolution, the Series 2016A Bond Resolution, the 
Series 2017 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020B Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2020C Bond Resolution, the Series 2022 Bond Resolution, the Series 2024 Bond 
Resolution, and the 2025 Bond Resolution with the appropriate changes and additions which are required 
with respect to the issuance of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 

The term "Bonds" shall mean collectively (i) the unpaid and unrefunded Series 2015 Bonds, 
Series 2015A Bonds, Series 2016 Bonds, Series 2016A Bonds, Series 2017 Bonds, Taxable Series 2020 
Bonds, Taxable Series 2020B Bonds, Series 2020C Bonds, the Series 2022 Bonds, the Series 2024 
Bonds, and the Series 2025 Bonds to be outstanding at any time after the delivery of the Initial Bond, and 
(ii) the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 

The term "Contracts" shall mean collectively: (a) the "Tarrant County Regional Water Supply 
Facilities Contract", dated as of August 29, 1979, among the District and the Cities of Fort Worth and 
Mansfield, Texas, the "Tarrant County Regional Water Supply Facilities Supplemental Contract For 
Trinity River Authority of Texas", dated as of March 12, 1979, between the District and Trinity River 
Authority of Texas, and the "Tarrant County Regional Water Supply Facilities Amendatory Contract", 
dated September 1, 1982, among the District, the Cities of Fort Worth, Arlington, and Mansfield, Texas, 
and Trinity River Authority of Texas, which last named amendatory contract consolidates the previous 
contracts between such parties with respect to the System into one instrument and sets forth the entire 
agreement between such parties with respect to the System; and 

(b) all water supply contracts heretofore or hereafter executed between the District and other 
cities and customers in connection with the District's Water System. 



20 

 

 

The terms "District" and "Issuer" shall mean Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District. 

The term "District's Water System," "Issuer's Water System," or "System" shall mean all of the 
District's existing water storage, treatment, transportation, distribution, and supply facilities, including all 
dams, reservoirs, and other properties, wherever located, (a) which are currently being used for water 
supply purposes and, to the extent financed with the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds or Additional 
Bonds or moneys from the Contingency Fund (hereinafter created), all facilities acquired or constructed 
in the future, and all improvements to any of the foregoing, and (b) all other facilities which in the future 
are deliberately and specifically, at the option of the Board, made a part of the System by resolution of the 
Board, but such term does not include any oil, gas, and other mineral properties owned by the District or 
property disposed of from time to time in accordance with the provisions of Section 23(g) hereof, 
provided that any property acquired in substitution therefor shall be included in the System, along with all 
repairs to and other replacements of the System. In particular such term includes and shall include (i) all 
of the District's existing Cedar Creek Project, a dam and reservoir on Cedar Creek in Henderson and 
Kaufman Counties, Texas, and Eagle Mountain Dam and Reservoir and Bridgeport Dam and Reservoir, 
which are water supply facilities of the District on the West Fork of the Trinity River, Richland-Chambers 
Reservoir in Navarro and Freestone Counties, Texas, and all transportation, storage, and other facilities 
related to all of the foregoing and (ii) the Projects which were financed or refinanced with the proceeds 
from the sale of bonds originally authorized by the Series 1983 Bond Resolution, the Series 1986 Bond 
Resolution, Series 1999 Bond Resolution, the Series 2002 Bond Resolution, the Series 2006 Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2008A Bond Resolution, the Series 2008B Bond Resolution, the Series 2009 Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2010 Bond Resolution, the Series 2010A Bond Resolution, the Series 2010B Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2012 Bond Resolution, the Series 2012A Bond Resolution, the Series 2014 Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2015 Bond Resolution, the Series 2015A Bond Resolution, the Series 2016 Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2016A Bond Resolution, the Series 2017 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020 
Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020B Bond Resolution, the Series 2020C Bond Resolution, the 
Series 2022 Bond Resolution, the Series 2024 Bond Resolution, the Series 2025 Bond Resolution, and the 
Master Resolution and made a part of the System. Unless deliberately added to the System by the Board, 
at its option, in the manner prescribed above, said term does not include any District flood control 
facilities or facilities which provide waste treatment or other wastewater services of any kind. Said term 
does not include any facilities acquired or constructed by the District with the proceeds from the issuance 
of "Special Facilities Bonds," which are hereby defined as being revenue obligations of the District, 
which are not issued as Additional Bonds, and which are payable from any source, contract, or revenues 
whatsoever other than the Pledged Revenues; and Special Facilities Bonds may be issued for any lawful 
purpose and made payable from any source, contract, or revenues whatsoever other than the Pledged 
Revenues. 

The term "ECP Series A Refunding Bonds" shall mean collectively the Initial Bond as described 
and defined in Sections 1, 2, and 3 of this Bond Resolution, and all substitute bonds exchanged therefor, 
as well as all other substitute bonds and replacement bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution, all as 
provided for herein; and the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds are Additional Bonds issued to be payable 
from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues equally and ratably on a parity 
with all of the other Bonds, as permitted by Sections 21 and 22 of the Series 2015 Bond Resolution, the 
Series 2015A Bond Resolution, the Series 2016 Bond Resolution, the Series 2016A Bond Resolution, the 
Series 2017 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020B Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2020C Bond Resolution, the Series 2022 Bond Resolution, the Series 2024 Bond 
Resolution, and the Series 2025 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Gross Revenues of the System" shall mean all of the revenues, income, rentals, rates, 
fees, and charges of every nature derived by the Board or the District from the operation and/or ownership 



21 

 

 

of the System (except as hereinafter provided), including specifically all payments and amounts received 
by the Board or the District from Contracts, and any interest income from the investment of money in any 
Funds created or maintained pursuant to any resolution authorizing the issuance of Bonds or Additional 
Bonds, excepting only any Construction Fund created pursuant to any resolution authorizing any Bonds 
or Additional Bonds. There is excepted from such term, and such term does not include (i) revenues 
derived by the District from the production of oil, gas, and other minerals owned by the District, or the 
revenues derived from the granting, sale, or lease of the right to explore for and produce same, or (ii) the 
royalties, rentals, license fees, and other income (other than from water sales) derived by the District from 
(a) lands and assets owned by the District as flood control facilities or (b) property of the District at Eagle 
Mountain Dam and Reservoir and Bridgeport Dam and Reservoir on the West Fork of the Trinity River. 

The term "Master Resolution" shall have meaning given to it in the Preamble hereto. 

The term "Operating and Maintenance Expenses of the System" or "Current Expenses" shall 
mean all reasonable and necessary current costs of operation and maintenance of the System including, 
but not limited to, repairs and replacements, operating personnel, utilities, supervision, engineering, 
accounting, auditing, legal services, insurance premiums, paying agents fees, and any other supplies and 
services, administration of the System, and equipment necessary for proper operation and maintenance of 
the System, as well as payments made for the use or operation of any property, and payments made by the 
District in satisfaction of judgments or other liabilities resulting from claims not covered by the District's 
insurance. Neither depreciation nor any other expense which does not represent a cash expenditure shall 
be considered an item of Operation and Maintenance Expense. 

The terms "Net Revenues of the District's Water System", "Net Revenues of the System", and 
"Net Revenues" shall mean the Gross Revenues of the System less the Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses of the System. 

The term "Pledged Revenues" shall mean: (a) the Net Revenues of the System and (b) any 
additional revenues, income, receipts, grants, donations, or other resources, received or to be received 
from any public or private source, whether pursuant to an agreement or otherwise, which in the future 
may, at the option of the District, be pledged to the payment of the Bonds or the Additional Bonds. 

The term "Refundable Bonds" shall have the meaning give to it in the Preamble hereto. 

The term "Refunded Bonds" shall mean those Refundable Bonds to be refunded as designated by 
the Authorized Officer in the Approval Certificate. 

The term "Series 1983 Bond Resolution" shall mean the resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on May 18, 1983, authorizing the Tarrant County Water Control and 
Improvement District Number One Water Revenue Bonds, Series 1983. 

The term "Series 1986 Bond Resolution" shall mean the resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on July 15, 1986, authorizing the Tarrant County Water Control and 
Improvement District Number One Water Revenue Bonds, Series 1986. 

The term "Series 1999 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on May 18, 1999, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1999. 

The term "Series 2002 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on December 17, 2002, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 



22 

 

 

Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2002. 

The term "Series 2006 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on March 21, 2006, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2006. 

The term "Series 2008A Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on June 17, 2008, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A. 

The term "Series 2008B Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on June 17, 2008, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B. 

The term "Series 2009 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on January 20, 2009, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2009. 

The term "Series 2010 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on January 19, 2010, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010. 

The term "Series 2010A Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on May 18, 2010, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A. 

The term "Series 2010B Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on May 18, 2010, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B. 

The term "Series 2012 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on January 17, 2012, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2012. 

The term "Series 2012A Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on September 18, 2012, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2012A. 

The term "Series 2014 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on January 21, 2014, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2014. 

The term "Series 2015 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on January 20, 2015, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2015. 

The term "Series 2015 Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2015 Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2015 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2015A Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on October 20, 2015, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 



23 

 

 

Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A. 

The term "Series 2015A Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2015A Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2015A Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2016 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on January 19, 2016, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2016. 

The term "Series 2016 Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2016 Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2016 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2016A Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on March 15, 2016, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A. 

The term "Series 2016A Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2016A Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2016A Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2017 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on July 18, 2017, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017. 

The term "Series 2017 Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2017 Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2017 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2020C Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on October 20, 2020, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020C. 

The term "Series 2020C Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2020C Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2020C Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2022 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on June 21, 2022, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2022. 

The term "Series 2022 Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2022 Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2022 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2024 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on April 16, 2024, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2024. 

The term "Series 2024 Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2024 Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2024 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Series 2025 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the District on June 17, 2025, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control 
and Improvement District, Water Revenue ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, Series 2025. 



24 

 

 

The term "Series 2025 Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Series 2025 Bonds 
authorized by the Series 2025 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Taxable Series 2020 Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the District on January 21, 2020, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a 
Water Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020. 

The term "Taxable Series 2020 Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Taxable Series 
2020 Bonds authorized by the Taxable Series 2020 Bond Resolution. 

The term "Taxable Series 2020B Bond Resolution" shall mean the Resolution adopted by the 
Board of Directors of the District on October 20, 2020, authorizing Tarrant Regional Water District, a 
Water Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020B. 

The term "Taxable Series 2020B Bonds" shall mean all unpaid and unrefunded Taxable Series 
2020B Bonds authorized by the Taxable Series 2020B Bond Resolution. 

The terms "year" and "fiscal year" shall mean the District's fiscal year, which currently ends on 
September 30, but which subsequently may be any other 12 month period hereafter established by the 
District as a fiscal year for the purposes of the System and any resolution authorizing the Bonds or any 
Additional Bonds. 

Section 9.  PLEDGE. (a) That the Bonds, as defined above, and any Additional Bonds, and the 
interest thereon, are and shall be secured equally and ratably on a parity by and payable from a first lien 
on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues; and the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds are Additional Bonds 
payable from and secured by a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues, as permitted by Sections 
21 and 22 of the Series 2015 Bond Resolution, the Series 2015A Bond Resolution, the Series 2016 Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2016A Bond Resolution, the Series 2017 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020 
Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020B Bond Resolution, the Series 2020C Bond Resolution, the 
Series 2022 Bond Resolution, the Series 2024 Bond Resolution, and the Series 2025 Bond Resolution. 

(b)  That Chapter 1208, Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the pledge of 
the revenues granted by the Issuer under this Section, and is therefore valid, effective, and perfected. 
Should Texas law be amended at any time while the Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, the result of such 
amendment being that the pledge of the revenues granted by the Issuer under this Section is to be subject 
to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, in order to preserve to the registered 
owners of the Bonds a security interest in said pledge, the Issuer agrees to take such measures as it 
determines are reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of 
Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code and enable a filing of a security interest in said pledge to occur. 

Section 10.  REVENUE FUND. That there has been created and established, and there shall be 
maintained on the books of the District, and accounted for separate and apart from all other funds of the 
District, a special fund to be entitled the "Tarrant Regional Water District Water Revenue Bonds Revenue 
Fund" (hereinafter called the "Revenue Fund"). All Gross Revenues of the System (except investment 
interest and income from the other Funds hereinafter described and maintained) shall be credited to the 
Revenue Fund immediately upon receipt. All Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the System shall be 
paid from such Gross Revenues credited to the Revenue Fund, as a first charge against same. 

Section 11.  INTEREST AND REDEMPTION FUND. That for the sole purpose of paying the 
principal of and interest on all Bonds and any Additional Bonds, as the same come due, either upon 
redemption or at maturity, there has been created and established, and there shall be maintained, at an 



25 

 

 

official depository bank of the District, a separate fund to be entitled the "Tarrant Regional Water District 
Revenue Bonds Interest and Redemption Fund" (hereinafter called the "Interest and Redemption Fund"). 

Section 12. THE CONTINGENCY AND IMPROVEMENT FUND AND THE RESERVE 
FUND. (a) That there has been created and established and there shall be maintained, at an official 
depository bank of the District, a separate fund to be entitled the "Tarrant Regional Water District Water 
Revenue Bonds Contingency and Improvement Fund" (hereinafter called the "Contingency Fund"). The 
Contingency Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the costs of improvements, 
enlargements, extensions, additions, or other capital expenditures relating to the System, and unexpected 
or extraordinary replacements of the System, for which System funds are not otherwise available, or for 
paying unexpected or extraordinary Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the System for which 
System Funds are not otherwise available, or for paying principal of and interest on any Bonds or 
Additional Bonds, when and to the extent the amount in the Interest and Redemption Fund is insufficient 
for such purpose. 

(b)  That there has been created and established and there shall be maintained at an official 
depository bank of the District, a separate fund to be entitled the "Tarrant Regional Water District Water 
Revenue Bonds Reserve Fund" (hereinafter called the "Reserve Fund"), solely for the further security and 
benefit of the Bonds and any Additional Bonds. The Reserve Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of 
(i) finally retiring the last of the Bonds and any Additional Bonds, and (ii) paying principal of and interest 
on the Bonds or any Additional Bonds when and to the extent the amounts in the Interest and Redemption 
Fund and Contingency Fund are insufficient for such purpose. There is now on deposit the Reserve Fund 
an aggregate amount of money and/or investments not less in market value than the principal and interest 
requirements of the Bonds during the fiscal year in which such requirements are scheduled to be the 
greatest. When and so long as the money and investments in the Reserve Fund are not less in market 
value than a "Required Amount" equal to the principal and interest requirements of the Bonds during the 
fiscal year in which such requirements are scheduled to be the greatest, no deposits shall be made to the 
credit of the Reserve Fund; but when and if the Reserve Fund at any time thereafter contains less than 
said "Required Amount" in market value, then, subject and subordinate to making the required deposits to 
the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund, the District shall transfer from Pledged Revenues and 
deposit to the credit of the Reserve Fund, semiannually on or before the 25th days of each February and 
each August of each year, a sum equal to 1/10th of the "Required Amount" until the Reserve Fund is 
restored to said "Required Amount." So long as the Reserve Fund contains said "Required Amount" in 
market value, all amounts in excess of said "Required Amount," if any, shall, at least annually, on or 
before the 25th day of February of each year, be deposited to the credit of the Interest and Redemption 
Fund. 

Section 13. DEPOSITS OF PLEDGED REVENUES; INVESTMENTS. (a) That the Pledged 
Revenues shall be deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund, the Reserve Fund, and the 
Contingency Fund, when and as required by this Bond Resolution, Sections 8 through 24 of which are 
cumulative of and supplemental to Sections 8 through 24 of the Series 2015 Bond Resolution, the Series 
2015A Bond Resolution, the Series 2016 Bond Resolution, the Series 2016A Bond Resolution, the Series 
2017 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020 Bond Resolution, the Taxable Series 2020B Bond 
Resolution, the Series 2020C Bond Resolution, the Series 2022 Bond Resolution, the Series 2024 Bond 
Resolution, and the Series 2025 Bond Resolution, and Sections 8 through 24 of this Bond Resolution 
shall be applicable to all of the Bonds. 

(b)  That money in any Fund maintained pursuant to this Bond Resolution may, at the option of 
the District, be placed in time deposits or certificates of deposit secured by obligations of the type 
hereinafter described, or be invested in direct obligations of the United States of America, obligations 
guaranteed or insured by the United States of America, which, in the opinion of the Attorney General of 



26 

 

 

the United States, are backed by its full faith and credit or represent its general obligations, or invested in 
indirect obligations of the United States of America, including, but not limited to, evidences of 
indebtedness issued, insured, or guaranteed by such governmental agencies as the Federal Land Banks, 
Federal Intermediate Credit Banks, Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Home Loan Banks, Government 
National Mortgage Association, United States Postal Service, Farmers Home Administration, Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Association, Small Business Administration, Federal Housing Association, or 
Participation Certificates in the Federal Assets Financing Trust; provided that all such deposits and 
investments shall be made in such manner that the money required to be expended from any Fund will be 
available at the proper time or times. Such investments shall be valued by the District in terms of current 
market value as of the 20th day of February of each year. All interest and income derived from such 
deposits and investments immediately shall be credited to, and any losses debited to, the Fund from which 
the deposit or investment was made, and surpluses in any Fund shall be disposed of as herein provided. 
Such investments shall be sold promptly when necessary to prevent any default in connection with the 
Bonds or Additional Bonds. 

Section 14. FUNDS SECURED. That money in all Funds described in this Bond Resolution shall 
be secured in the manner prescribed by law for securing funds of the District. 

Section 15.  DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. (a) That promptly after the delivery of the 
Initial Bond the District shall cause to be deposited to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund all 
accrued interest, if any, received from the sale and delivery of the Initial Bond, and any such deposit shall 
be used to pay part of the interest coming due on the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 

(b) That the District shall transfer from the Pledged Revenues and deposit to the credit of 
the Interest and Redemption Fund the amounts, at the times, as follows: 

 
1) such amounts, deposited semiannually on or before the 25th day of each 

February and each August of each year, as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, 
then on hand in the Interest and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay the 
interest scheduled to accrue and come due on all Bonds on the next succeeding interest payment 
date; and 

2) such amounts, deposited annually, on or before the 25th day of each 
February, as will be sufficient, together with other amounts, if any, then on hand in the Interest 
and Redemption Fund and available for such purpose, to pay all principal scheduled to mature 
and come due on all Bonds on the next succeeding March 1, and to pay all principal of all Bonds, 
if any, scheduled to be redeemed prior to maturity on the next succeeding March 1 in accordance 
with the mandatory redemption provisions and schedules set forth in any applicable Bond 
Resolution. 

Section 16.  CONTINGENCY REQUIREMENTS. That there is now on deposit to the credit of 
the Contingency Fund an amount equal to at least $1,100,000. No additional deposits are required to be 
made to the credit of the Contingency Fund unless and until such amount therein is reduced or depleted. If 
and when such amount in the Contingency Fund is reduced or depleted then, subject and subordinate to 
making the required deposits to the credit of the Interest and Redemption Fund and the Reserve Fund, 
such reduction or depletion shall be restored from amounts which shall be provided for such purpose in 
the District's Annual Budget for the next ensuing fiscal year or years; provided that the District is not 
required to budget more than $100,000 for such purpose during any one fiscal year; but the District shall 
have the right to budget additional amounts for such purpose if it is deemed necessary or advisable by the 
Board. So long as the Contingency Fund contains money and investments not less than the amount of 
$1,100,000 in market value, any surplus in the Contingency Fund over said amount shall, semiannually 



27 

 

 

on or before February 15 and August 15 of each year, be withdrawn, deposited to the credit of the 
Revenue Fund, commingled with other revenues from the operation of the System, and used for any 
lawful purpose for which Gross Revenues of the System may be used. 

Section 17. DEFICIENCIES; EXCESS PLEDGED REVENUES. (a) That if on any occasion 
there shall not be sufficient Pledged Revenues to make the required deposits into the Interest and 
Redemption Fund, the Reserve Fund, and the Contingency Fund, then such deficiency shall be made up 
as soon as possible from the next available Pledged Revenues, or from any other sources available for 
such purpose. 

(b) That, subject to making the required deposits to the credit of the Interest and Redemption 
Fund, the Reserve Fund, and the Contingency Fund, when and as required by this Bond Resolution, or 
any resolution authorizing the issuance of Additional Bonds, the excess Pledged Revenues may be used 
for any lawful purpose. 

Section 18. BONDS AND ADDITIONAL BONDS NOT PAYABLE FROM TAXES. It is 
specifically provided that the District is not authorized to, and shall not, levy, collect, or use any tax of 
any nature to pay the principal of or interest on any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds. 

Section 19.  PAYMENT OF BONDS AND ADDITIONAL BONDS. Semiannually on or before 
each March 1 and September 1 while any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds are outstanding and unpaid, 
the District shall make available to the paying agents therefor, ratably and on a parity out of the Interest 
and Redemption Fund, and/or the Contingency Fund, or, from the Reserve Fund, money sufficient to pay 
such interest on and such principal of the Bonds or Additional Bonds as will accrue or mature, or which is 
scheduled to be redeemed prior to maturity, on each such March 1 and September 1, respectively. The 
paying agents shall destroy all paid Bonds or Additional Bonds, and the coupons, if any, appertaining 
thereto, and furnish the District with an appropriate certificate of cancellation or destruction. 

Section 20.  DEFEASANCE OF BONDS. (a) Any Bond and the interest thereon shall be deemed 
to be paid, retired, and no longer outstanding (a "Defeased Bond") within the meaning of this Resolution, 
except to the extent provided in subsection (d) of this Section, when payment of the principal of such 
Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date (whether such due date be by reason of maturity, or otherwise) 
either (i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof or (ii) shall 
have been provided for on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with an escrow agreement or other instrument (the "Future 
Escrow Agreement") for such payment (1) lawful money of the United States of America sufficient to 
make such payment or (2) Defeasance Securities that mature as to principal and interest in such amounts 
and at such times as will insure the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for 
such payment, and when proper arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar for the payment of its services until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and 
payable. At such time as a Bond shall be deemed to be a Defeased Bond hereunder, as aforesaid, such 
Bond and the interest thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable from, or entitled to the benefits of, 
the revenues herein pledged as provided in this Resolution, and such principal and interest shall be 
payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities. Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Resolution to the contrary, it is hereby provided that any determination not to redeem Defeased Bonds 
that is made in conjunction with the payment arrangements specified in subsection 20(a)(i) or (ii) shall not 
be irrevocable, provided that: (1) in the proceedings providing for such payment arrangements, the Issuer 
expressly reserves the right to call the Defeased Bonds for redemption; (2) the Issuer gives notice of the 
reservation of that right to the owners of the Defeased Bonds immediately following the making of the 
payment arrangements, and (3) the Issuer directs that notice of the reservation be included in any 
redemption notices that it authorizes. 



28 

 

 

(b) Any moneys so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written direction of 
the Issuer also be invested in Defeasance Securities, maturing in the amounts and times as 
hereinbefore set forth, and all income from such Defeasance Securities received by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar that is not required for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon, with 
respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Issuer, or 
deposited as directed in writing by the Issuer. Any Future Escrow Agreement pursuant to which 
the money and/or Defeasance Securities are held for the payment of Defeased Bonds may contain 
provisions permitting the investment or reinvestment of such moneys in Defeasance Securities or 
the substitution of other Defeasance Securities upon the satisfaction of the requirements specified 
in subsection 20(a)(i) or (ii). All income from such Defeasance Securities received by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the Defeased Bonds, with respect to 
which such money has been so deposited, shall be remitted to the Issuer or deposited as directed 
in writing by the Issuer. 

(c) The term "Defeasance Securities" means (i) direct, noncallable obligations of the United 
States of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of 
America, (ii) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, 
including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and 
that, on the date of the purchase thereof are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized 
investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, and (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or 
an agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and 
that, on the date the governing body of the Issuer adopts or approves the proceedings authorizing the 
financial arrangements are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating 
firm not less than AAA or its equivalent. 

(d) Until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Bonds the same as if they had not 
been defeased, and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide and pay for such services as 
required by this Resolution. 

(e) In the event that the Issuer elects to defease less than all of the principal amount of Bonds 
of a maturity, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select, or cause to be selected, such amount of Bonds by 
such random method as it deems fair and appropriate. 

Section 21.  ADDITIONAL BONDS. (a) That the District shall have the right and power at any 
time and from time to time, and in one or more Series or issues, to authorize, issue, and deliver additional 
bonds (herein called "Additional Bonds"), which may be payable from and secured by a first lien on and 
pledge of the Pledged Revenues. No Additional Bonds shall be payable from or secured by ad valorem or 
other taxes. 

(b) Additional Bonds, if and when authorized, issued, and delivered in accordance with the 
provisions hereof, shall be payable from the Interest and Redemption Fund, and shall be payable from and 
secured by a first lien on and pledge of the Pledged Revenues, equally and ratably on a parity with the 
Bonds and all other outstanding Additional Bonds. 

(c) That the principal of all Additional Bonds must be scheduled to be paid or mature on 
March 1 of the years in which such principal is scheduled to be paid or mature; and all interest thereon 
must be payable on March 1 and September 1. 

Section 22. FURTHER REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITIONAL BONDS. (a) That Additional 
Bonds shall be issued only in accordance with the provisions hereof, and then applicable laws, and may 



29 

 

 

be issued in any amounts, for any lawful purpose relating to the System, including the refunding of any 
Bonds or Additional Bonds. No installment, Series, or issue of Additional Bonds shall be issued or 
delivered unless the President and the Secretary or other authorized officer of the Board sign a written 
certificate to the effect (i) that the District is not in default as to any covenant, condition, or obligation in 
connection with all outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds, and the resolutions authorizing the same, 
(ii) that the Interest and Redemption Fund and the Reserve Fund contain the amount then required to be 
therein, and (iii) that either (1) the Pledged Revenues in each fiscal year, commencing (A) with the third 
complete fiscal year following the execution of such certificate or report, or (B) with the fiscal year 
following the estimated completion date of any project for which the then proposed Additional Bonds are 
being issued (whichever of (A) or (B) is later) are estimated, based on a report of an independent engineer 
or firm of engineers, to be at least equal to 1.25 times the average annual principal and interest 
requirements of all Bonds and Additional Bonds to be outstanding after delivery of the then proposed 
Additional Bonds, or (2) based upon an opinion of legal counsel to the District, there are Contracts then in 
effect pursuant to which parties to such Contracts are obligated to make minimum payments to the 
District on a "take or pay" basis at such times and in such amounts as shall be necessary to provide to the 
District Pledged Revenues sufficient to pay when due all principal of and interest on all Bonds and 
Additional Bonds. 

(b) That each resolution authorizing the issuance of Additional Bonds shall confirm the 
Reserve Fund as additional security for all such Additional Bonds, and the Reserve Fund shall be 
increased to the extent required to cause the Reserve Fund to be maintained in an amount not less than the 
principal and interest requirements, during the fiscal year in which such requirements are scheduled to be 
the greatest, of all Bonds and Additional Bonds to be outstanding after the issuance of such then proposed 
Additional Bonds (or any greater amount as may, at the option of the District, be provided for in any 
resolution authorizing the issuance of any Additional Bonds), and shall make provision for funding such 
Reserve Fund from Pledged Revenues, or, at the option of the District, from bond proceeds or other 
available sources. Such Reserve Fund may be funded in whole or in part initially, or may be funded in 
whole or in part from Pledged Revenues by approximately equal periodic payments, not less than annual, 
and within not more than five years from the date of such then proposed Additional Bonds. 

(c) That all calculations of principal and interest requirements of any bonds made in 
connection with the issuance of any then proposed Additional Bonds shall be made as of the date of such 
Additional Bonds; and also in making calculations for such purpose, or for any other purpose under any 
resolution authorizing any Bonds or Additional Bonds, the principal amounts of any Bonds or Additional 
Bonds which must be redeemed prior to maturity pursuant to any applicable mandatory redemption 
requirements shall be deemed to be maturing amounts of principal. 

Section 23.GENERAL COVENANTS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND WARRANTIES. That the 
District further covenants, represents, warrants, and agrees that: 

(a) PERFORMANCE. It will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, 
undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in each resolution authorizing the issuance of the 
Bonds and any Additional Bonds, and in each and every Bond and Additional Bond; that it will promptly 
pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on every Bond and Additional Bond, on the dates and 
in the places and manner prescribed in such resolutions and Bonds or Additional Bonds, and that it will, 
at the times and in the manner prescribed, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts required to be 
deposited into the Interest and Redemption Fund; and any holder of the Bonds or Additional Bonds may 
require the District, its Board, and its officials and employees, to carry out, respect, or enforce the 
covenants and obligations of each resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and any Additional 
Bonds, by all legal and equitable means, including specifically, but without limitation, the use and filing 
of mandamus proceedings, in any court of competent jurisdiction, against the District, its Board, and its 



30 

 

 

officials and employees. 

(b) DISTRICT'S LEGAL AUTHORITY. It is a duly created and existing conservation and 
reclamation district of the State of Texas pursuant to Article 16, Section 59, of the Texas Constitution, 
and the laws of the State of Texas, and is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to create 
and issue the Bonds; that all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Bonds has been duly 
and effectively taken, and that the Bonds in the hands of the holders and owners thereof are and will be 
valid and enforceable obligations of the District in accordance with their terms. 

(c) TITLE. It has acquired and constructed, and will operate and maintain the System, and 
has or will obtain lawful title to, or the lawful right to use and operate, the lands, buildings, and facilities 
constituting the System, that it warrants that it will defend the title to or lawful right to use and operate, 
all of the aforesaid lands, buildings, and facilities, and every part thereof, for the benefit of the holders 
and owners of the Bonds and Additional Bonds against the claims and demands of all persons 
whomsoever, and is lawfully qualified to pledge the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Bonds and 
Additional Bonds in the manner prescribed herein, and has lawfully exercised such rights. 

(d) LIENS. It will from time to time and before the same become delinquent pay and 
discharge all taxes, assessments, and governmental charges, if any, which shall be lawfully imposed upon 
it, or the System, that it will pay all lawful claims for rents, royalties, labor, materials, and supplies which 
if unpaid might by law become a lien or charge thereon, the lien of which would be prior to or interfere 
with the liens hereof, so that the priority of the liens granted hereunder shall be fully preserved in the 
manner provided herein, and that it will not create or suffer to be created any mechanic's, laborer's, 
materialman's, or other lien or charge which might or could be prior to the liens hereof, or do or suffer 
any matter or thing whereby the liens hereof might or could be impaired; provided, however, that no such 
tax, assessment, or charge, and that no such claims which might be used as the basis of a mechanic's, 
laborer's, materialman's, or other lien or charge, shall be required to be paid so long as the validity of the 
same shall be contested in good faith by the District. 

(e) OPERATION OF THE SYSTEM. While the Bonds or any Additional Bonds are 
outstanding and unpaid it will cause the System to be continuously and efficiently operated and 
maintained in good condition, repair, and working order, and at a reasonable cost. 

(f) FURTHER ENCUMBRANCE. While the Bonds or any Additional Bonds are 
outstanding and unpaid, it will not additionally encumber the Pledged Revenues in any manner, except as 
permitted hereby in connection with Additional Bonds, unless said encumbrance is made junior and 
subordinate in all respects to the liens, pledges, covenants, and agreements of each resolution authorizing 
the issuance of the Bonds and any Additional Bonds; but the right of the District and the Board to issue 
revenue bonds for any lawful purpose payable from a subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues is 
specifically recognized and retained. This Resolution does not and is not intended to affect, limit, or 
prohibit the issuance of bonds payable solely from ad valorem taxes. 

(g) SALE OF PROPERTY. While the Bonds or any Additional Bonds, are outstanding and 
unpaid, it will maintain its current legal corporate status as a conservation and reclamation district, and it 
will not sell, convey, mortgage, or in any manner transfer title to, or lease or otherwise dispose of the 
entire System, or any significant or substantial part thereof; provided that whenever the District deems it 
necessary to dispose of any real or personal property, machinery, fixtures, or equipment, it may sell or 
otherwise dispose of such real or personal property, machinery, fixtures, or equipment when it has made 
arrangements to replace the same or provide substitutes therefor, unless it is determined by resolution of 
the Board that no such replacement or substitute is necessary; and all proceeds from the sale thereof shall 
be credited to the Revenue Fund. In all events counsel to the Issuer shall opine as to the validity of the 



31 

 

 

Resolution, as supplemented and amended and counsel to the Contracting Parties shall opine on the 
validity of the obligation of the Contracting Parties under the Contract. 

(h) INSURANCE. (1) It will carry or cause to be carried such insurance as usually would be 
carried by corporations or other business entities operating like properties and engaged in similar 
activities, with a responsible insurance company or companies; provided that no insurance shall be 
required to the extent that the Board determines, based on the advise of legal counsel, that no substantial 
liability can or will arise under a particular hazard. At any time while any contractor engaged in 
construction work shall be fully responsible therefor, the District shall not be required to carry insurance 
on the works being constructed, if the contractor is required to carry appropriate insurance. All such 
policies shall be open to the inspection of the owners or holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds and 
their representatives at all reasonable times. 

(2)  Upon the happening of any loss or damage covered by insurance from one or 
more of said causes, the District shall make due proof of loss and shall do all things necessary or 
desirable to cause the insuring companies to make payment in full directly to the District. The 
proceeds of insurance covering such property, together with any other funds necessary and available 
for such purpose, shall be used forthwith by the District for repairing the property damaged or 
replacing the property destroyed; provided, however, that if said insurance proceeds and other funds 
are insufficient for such purpose, then said insurance proceeds pertaining to the System shall be used 
promptly as follows: 

(a) for the redemption prior to maturity of the Bonds and Additional Bonds, if any, 
ratably in the proportion that the outstanding principal of each Series or issue of Bonds or 
Additional Bonds bears to the total outstanding principal of all Bonds and Additional Bonds; 
provided that if on any such occasion the principal of any such Series or issue is not subject to 
redemption, it shall not be regarded as outstanding in making the foregoing computation; or 

(b) if none of the outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds is subject to redemption, then 
for the purchase on the open market and retirement of said Bonds and Additional Bonds, in the 
same proportion as prescribed in the foregoing clause (a), to the extent practicable; provided that 
the purchase price for any such Bond or Additional Bonds shall not exceed the redemption price 
of such Bond or Additional Bond on the first date upon which it becomes subject to redemption; 
or 

(c) to the extent that the foregoing clauses (a) and (b) cannot be complied with at the 
time, the insurance proceeds, or the remainder thereof, shall be deposited in a special and separate 
trust fund, at an official depository of the District, to be designated the Insurance Account. The 
Insurance Account shall be held until such time as the foregoing clauses (a) and/or (b) can be 
complied with, or until other funds become available which, together with the Insurance Account, 
will be sufficient to make the repairs or replacements originally required, whichever of said 
events occurs first. 

(3) The annual audit hereinafter required shall contain a list of all such insurance policies 
carried, together with a statement as to whether or not all insurance premiums upon such policies have 
been paid. 

(i) RATE COVENANT. It will fix, establish, maintain, revise (if and when necessary), and 
collect such rates, charges, and fees for the sale of water from the System and for the use and availability 
of the System as are necessary to produce Gross Revenues of the System sufficient, together with any 
other Pledged Revenues and any taxes as may be levied by the District for such purpose, (1) to pay all 



32 

 

 

Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the System, and (2) to produce Pledged Revenues adequate to 
provide for all payments and deposits required to be made into the Interest and Redemption Fund, the 
Reserve Fund, and the Contingency Fund, when and as required by the resolutions authorizing all Bonds 
and Additional Bonds. 

(j) RECORDS. It will keep proper books of records and accounts in which full, true, and 
correct entries will be made of all dealings, activities, and transactions relating to the System, the Pledged 
Revenues, and all Funds created pursuant to each resolution authorizing the issuance of the Bonds and 
Additional Bonds; and all books, documents, and vouchers relating thereto shall at all reasonable times be 
made available for inspection upon request of any bondholder. 

(k) AUDITS. Each year while any of the Bonds or Additional Bonds are outstanding, an 
audit will be made of its books and accounts relating to the System and the Pledged Revenues by an 
independent certified public accountant or an independent firm of certified public accountants. As soon as 
practicable after the close of each year, and when said audit has been completed and made available to the 
District, a copy of such audit for the preceding year shall be mailed to the Municipal Advisory Council of 
Texas and to any bondholders who shall so request in writing. Such annual audit reports shall be open to 
the inspection of the owners or holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds and their agents and 
representatives at all reasonable times. 

(l) GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES. It will comply with all of the terms and conditions of 
any and all franchises, permits, and agreements applicable to the System and the Bonds or Additional 
Bonds entered into between the District and any governmental agency, and the District will take all action 
necessary to enforce said terms and conditions; and the District will obtain and keep in full force and 
effect all franchises, permits, and other requirements necessary with respect to the acquisition, 
construction, operation, and maintenance of the System. 

(m) CONTRACTS. It will comply with the terms and conditions of the Contracts and will 
cause the other parties to the Contracts to comply with all of their obligations thereunder by all lawful 
means; and the Contracts will not be rescinded, modified, or amended in any way which would have a 
materially adverse effect on the operation of the System or the rights of the owners of the Bonds and 
Additional Bonds. 

(n) ANNUAL BUDGET. On or before August 1 of each calendar year, it will prepare the 
preliminary Annual Budget of Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the System for the ensuing fiscal 
year, and such budget shall include a showing as to the proposed expenditures for such ensuing fiscal 
year, and shall show the estimated amount of Net Revenues of the System for such year. If the owners or 
holders of 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds and Additional Bonds then outstanding shall 
so request on or before the 15th day of the aforesaid month, the Board shall hold a public hearing on or 
before the 15th day of the following month, at which any bondholder may appear in person or by agent or 
attorney and present any objections he may have to the final adoption of such budget. Notice of the time 
and place of such hearing shall be published twice, once in each of two successive weeks, in a newspaper 
of general circulation published in the District, with the date of the first publication to be at least fourteen 
days before the date fixed for the hearing; and copies of such notice shall be mailed at least ten days 
before the hearing to each bondholder who shall have filed his name and address with the Secretary of the 
Board for such purpose. The District further covenants that on or before October 1 of each calendar year 
it will finally adopt the Annual Budget of Operation and Maintenance Expenses of the System for such 
fiscal year (hereinafter sometimes called the "Annual Budget"). If for any reason the Board shall not have 
adopted the Annual Budget before the first day of any fiscal year, the budget for the preceding fiscal year 
shall be deemed to be in force until the adoption of the Annual Budget. The Operation and Maintenance 
Expenses of the System incurred in any fiscal year will not exceed the reasonable and necessary amount 



33 

 

 

thereof. The District may, at any time deemed necessary by the Board, adopt an Amended or 
Supplemental Budget for the remainder of the then current fiscal year. 

Section 24.  AMENDMENT OF RESOLUTION. (a) The holders and registered owners of Bonds 
and Additional Bonds (hereinafter collectively called "holders") aggregating 51% in principal amount of 
the aggregate principal amount of then outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds shall have the right from 
time to time to approve any amendment to any resolution authorizing the issuance of any Bonds or 
Additional Bonds, which may be deemed necessary or desirable by the District, provided, however, that 
nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed to permit the amendment of the terms and 
conditions in said resolutions or in the Bonds or Additional Bonds so as to: 

1) Make any change in the maturity of the outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds; 

2) Reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the outstanding Bonds or Additional Bonds; 

3) Reduce the amount of the principal payable on the outstanding Bonds or Additional 
Bonds; 

4) Modify the terms of payment of principal of or interest on the outstanding Bonds or 
Additional Bonds, or impose any conditions with respect to such payment; 

5) Effect any change in the rights of the holders of the Bonds and Additional Bonds then 
outstanding, other than a change which similarly affects all such holders; 

6) Change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of Bonds and Additional Bonds 
necessary for consent to such amendment. 

(b) If at any time the District shall desire to amend a resolution under this Section, the 
District shall cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published in a financial newspaper or journal 
published in The City of New York, New York, once during each calendar week for at least two 
successive calendar weeks. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed amendment and 
shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal office of each Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
Bonds and Additional Bonds, for inspection by all holders of Bonds and Additional Bonds. Such 
publication is not required, however, if notice in writing is given to each holder of Bonds and Additional 
Bonds. 

(c) Whenever at any time not less than thirty days, and within one year, from the date of the 
first publication of said notice or other service of written notice the District shall receive an instrument or 
instruments executed by the holders of at least 51% in aggregate principal amount of all Bonds and 
Additional Bonds then outstanding, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed 
amendment described in said notice and which specifically consent to and approve such amendment in 
substantially the form of the copy thereof on file as aforesaid, the District may adopt the amendatory 
resolution in substantially the same form. 

(d) Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution pursuant to the provisions of this 
Section, the resolution being amended shall be deemed to be amended in accordance with the amendatory 
resolution, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations of the District and all the holders of then 
outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds and all future Additional Bonds shall thereafter be determined, 
exercised, and enforced hereunder, subject in all respects to such amendment. 

(e) Any consent given by the holder of a Bond or Additional Bonds pursuant to the 



34 

 

 

provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of the first 
publication of the notice provided for in this Section, and shall be conclusive and binding upon all future 
holders of the same Bond or Additional Bond during such period. Such consent may be revoked at any 
time after six months from the date of the first publication of such notice by the holder who gave such 
consent, or by a successor in title, by filing notice thereof with each Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds 
and Additional Bonds, and the District, but such revocation shall not be effective if the holders of 51% in 
aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding Bonds and Additional Bonds as in this Section defined 
have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented to and approved the amendment. 

(f) For the purpose of this Section, the fact of the holding of Bonds or Additional Bonds by 
any holder of Bonds or Additional Bonds which are not registered and which are payable to bearer, and 
the amount and numbers of such registered Bonds and Additional Bonds, and the date of their holding 
same, may be provided by the affidavit of the person claiming to be such holder, or by a certificate 
executed by any trust company, bank, banker, or any other depository wherever situated showing that at 
the date therein mentioned such person had on deposit with such trust company, bank, banker, or other 
depository, the Bonds or Additional Bonds described in such certificate. The District may conclusively 
assume that such ownership continues until written notice to the contrary is served upon the District. All 
matters relating to the ownership of registered Bonds and Additional Bonds shall be determined from the 
bond registration books kept by the registrar therefor. 

Section 25.   DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DESTROYED ECP SERIES A 
REFUNDING BONDS. (a) Replacement Bonds. In the event any outstanding ECP Series A Refunding 
Bond is damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause to be 
printed, executed, and delivered, a new bond of the same principal amount, maturity, and interest rate, as 
the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bond, in replacement for such ECP Series A Refunding 
Bond in the manner hereinafter provided. 

(b) Application for Replacement Bonds. Application for replacement of damaged, mutilated, 
lost, stolen, or destroyed ECP Series A Refunding Bonds shall be made by the registered owner thereof to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar. In every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a ECP Series A Refunding 
Bond, the registered owner applying for a replacement bond shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar such security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless 
from any loss or damage with respect thereto. Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a ECP 
Series A Refunding Bond, the registered owner shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction of such ECP Series A 
Refunding Bond, as the case may be. In every case of damage or mutilation of a ECP Series A Refunding 
Bond, the registered owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation the ECP Series 
A Refunding Bond so damaged or mutilated. 

(c) No Default Occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in the 
event any such ECP Series A Refunding Bond shall have matured, and no default has occurred which is 
then continuing in the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bond, the Issuer may authorize the payment of the same (without surrender thereof 
except in the case of a damaged or mutilated ECP Series A Refunding Bond) instead of issuing a 
replacement ECP Series A Refunding Bond, provided security or indemnity is furnished as above 
provided in this Section. 

(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Bonds. Prior to the issuance of any replacement bond, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the registered owner of such ECP Series A Refunding Bond with 
all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection therewith. Every replacement bond issued pursuant to 
the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any ECP Series A Refunding Bond is lost, stolen, 



35 

 

 

or destroyed shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen, or 
destroyed ECP Series A Refunding Bond shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, and 
shall be entitled to all the benefits of this Resolution equally and proportionately with any and all other 
ECP Series A Refunding Bonds duly issued under this Resolution. 

(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Bonds. In accordance with Chapter 1201, Texas 
Government Code, this Section of this Resolution shall constitute authority for the issuance of any such 
replacement bond without necessity of further action by the governing body of the Issuer or any other 
body or person, and the duty of the replacement of such bonds is hereby authorized and imposed upon the 
Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds in the form and manner and with the effect, as provided in this Resolution for ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds issued in conversion and exchange for other ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 

Section 26. CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds; BOND COUNSEL'S OPINION, CUSIP NUMBERS, PREAMBLE, AND INSURANCE. The 
President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond 
issued hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to said Initial Bond pending its 
delivery and its investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, 
and its registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. Upon registration of said 
Initial Bond said Comptroller of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in writing to act for said 
Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller's Registration Certificate on said Initial Bond, and the 
seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on said Initial Bond. The approving 
legal opinion of the Issuer's Co-Bond Counsel and the assigned CUSIP numbers may, at the option of the 
Issuer, be printed on said Initial Bond or on any ECP Series A Refunding Bonds issued and delivered in 
conversion of and exchange or replacement of any ECP Series A Refunding Bond, but neither shall have 
any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the registered owners of the 
ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. The preamble to this Resolution is hereby adopted and made a part 
hereof for all purposes. If insurance is obtained by the Underwriter (as defined in Section 31 hereof) on 
any of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, the Initial Bond and all the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds so 
insured shall bear an appropriate legend concerning insurance as provided by the insurer. 

Section 27. COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION. If the ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds are to be issued on a tax-exempt basis, the following shall apply: 

(a) Covenants. The Issuer covenants to take any action necessary to assure, or refrain from 
any action that would adversely affect, the treatment of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds as obligations 
described in section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the interest on 
which is not includable in the "gross income" of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds holder for purposes 
of federal income taxation. In furtherance thereof, the Issuer covenants as follows: 

(1) to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds of the 
ECP Series A Refunding Bonds (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund, if any) are used for 
any "private business use," as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the Code or, if more than 10 percent 
of the proceeds or the projects financed therewith are so used, such amounts, whether or not 
received by the Issuer, with respect to such private business use, do not, under the terms of this 
Resolution or any underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the 
payment of more than 10 percent of the debt service on the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, in 
contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code; 

(2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the "private business use" 
described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds 5 percent of the proceeds of the ECP Series A 



36 

 

 

Refunding Bonds or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, 
if any) then the amount in excess of 5 percent is used for a "private business use" that is "related" 
and not "disproportionate," within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the 
governmental use; 

(3) to take any action to assure that no amount that is greater than the lesser of 
$5,000,000, or 5 percent of the proceeds of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds (less amounts 
deposited into a reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons, 
other than state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c) of the Code; 

(4) to refrain from taking any action that would otherwise result in the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds being treated as "private activity bonds" within the meaning of section 141(b) 
of the Code; 

(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds being "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code; 

(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds, directly or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds that were used, directly or indirectly, 
to acquire investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) that produces a 
materially higher yield over the term of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, other than 
investment property acquired with  

(A) proceeds of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds invested for a reasonable 
temporary period of 3 years or less or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a 
period of 90 days or less until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for 
which the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds are issued,  

(B) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning of 
section 1.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and  

(C) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement fund to 
the extent such amounts do not exceed 10 percent of the proceeds of the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds; 

(7) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds or amounts treated as proceeds of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, as may be 
necessary, so that the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds do not otherwise contravene the 
requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage); 

(8) to refrain from using the proceeds of the Bonds or proceeds of any prior bonds to 
pay debt service on another issue more than 90 days after the date of issue of the Bonds in 
contravention of the requirements of section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings); 
and 

(9) to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year period 
(beginning on the date of delivery of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds) an amount that is at 
least equal to 90 percent of the "Excess Earnings," within the meaning of section 148(f) of the 
Code and to pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds have been paid in full, 100 percent of the amount then required to be paid as a 
result of Excess Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code. 



37 

 

 

(b) Rebate Fund. In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (a)(9), a "Rebate 
Fund" is hereby established by the Issuer for the sole benefit of the United States of America, and such 
Fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without limitation the Bondholders. 
The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of compliance with section 148 of the Code. 

(c) Compliance with Code. The Issuer understands that the term "proceeds" includes 
"disposition proceeds" as defined in the Treasury Regulations and, in the case of refunding bonds, 
transferred proceeds (if any) and proceeds of the refunded bonds expended prior to the date of issuance of 
the refunding bonds. It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants contained herein are intended 
to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings promulgated by the U.S. Department of 
the Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated that 
modify or expand provisions of the Code, as applicable to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, the Issuer 
will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein to the extent that such failure to 
comply, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, will not adversely affect the exemption 
from federal income taxation of interest on the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds under section 103 of the 
Code. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated that impose additional 
requirements applicable to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, the Issuer agrees to comply with the 
additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, to 
preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds 
under section 103 of the Code. In furtherance of such intention, the Issuer hereby authorizes and directs 
the President of the Board of Directors, the General Manager, the Deputy General Manager, or the Chief 
Financial Officer to execute any documents, certificates or reports required by the Code and to make such 
elections, on behalf of the Issuer, that may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the purpose for 
the issuance of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 

(d) Written Procedures. Unless superseded by another action of the Issuer to ensure 
compliance with the covenants contained herein regarding private business use, remedial actions, 
arbitrage and rebate, the Issuer hereby adopts and establishes the instructions attached hereto as Exhibit A 
as their written procedures applicable to the Bonds and any Additional Bonds. 

Section 28. ALLOCATION OF, AND LIMITATION ON, EXPENDITURES FOR THE 
PROJECT. If the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds are issued on a tax-exempt basis, the Issuer covenants 
to account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the purposes 
described in Section 1 of this Resolution (the "Project") on its books and records by allocating proceeds to 
expenditures within 18 months of the later of the date that (1) the expenditure is made, or (2) the Project 
is completed; but in no event later than three years after the date on which the original expenditure is paid 
The foregoing notwithstanding, the Issuer shall not expend sale proceeds or investment earnings thereon 
more than 60 days after the earlier of (1) the fifth anniversary of the delivery of the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds, or (2) the date the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds are retired, unless the Issuer obtains 
an opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel that such expenditure will not adversely affect the tax-
exempt status of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. For purposes hereof, the Issuer shall not be 
obligated to comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not 
adversely affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest. 

Section 29. DISPOSITION OF PROJECT. If the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds are issued on a 
tax-exempt basis, the Issuer covenants that the property constituting the Project refinanced by the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt 
by the Issuer of cash or other compensation, unless the Issuer obtains an opinion of nationally-recognized 
bond counsel that such sale or other disposition will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds. For purposes of the foregoing, the portion of the property comprising personal 
property and disposed in the ordinary course shall not be treated as a transaction resulting in the receipt of 



38 

 

 

cash or other compensation. For purposes hereof, the Issuer shall not be obligated to comply with this 
covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for 
federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest. 

Section 30.  CONTINUING DISCLOSURE. (a) Definitions. As used in this Section, the 
following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms below: 

"Authority" means Trinity River Authority. 

"Cities" means the Cities of Arlington, Fort Worth and Mansfield. "MSRB" means the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 

"Obligated Person" means the Issuer, the Authority, and the Cities, or any person, including an 
issuer of municipal securities, who is either generally or through an enterprise, fund, or account of such 
person committed by contract or other arrangement to support payment of all, or part of the Bonds (other 
than providers of municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities) in the Rule. 

"Rule" means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. "SEC" means the United States 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 

(b) General. Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement by and among the Issuer, the 
Cities, and the Authority, the Issuer, the Cities and the Authority have undertaken for the benefit of the 
beneficial owners of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, to the extent set forth therein, to provide 
continuing disclosure of financial information and operating data with respect to the Issuer, Cities and 
Authority in accordance with the Rule as promulgated by the SEC. 

(c) Annual Reports. (i) The Issuer shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six months 
after the end of the most recent fiscal year, financial information and operating data with respect to the 
Issuer of the general type included in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 32 of this 
Resolution, being the information described in Exhibit B. Any financial statements so to be provided shall 
be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in Exhibit B thereto, or such other 
accounting principles as the Issuer may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or 
regulation, and audited, if the Issuer commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed 
within the period during which they must be provided. If the audit of such financial statements is not 
complete within such period, then the Issuer shall provide audited financial statements for the applicable 
fiscal year to the MSRB, when and if the audit report on such statements become available.  

(ii)  If the Issuer changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date of 
the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Issuer otherwise would be required to provide 
financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. The financial information and operating 
data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be 
included by specific reference to any document (including an official statement or other offering 
document, if it is available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB, or filed 
with the SEC. 

(d) Disclosure Event Notices. The Issuer shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any 
of the following events with respect to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, not in excess of ten Business 
Days after occurrence of the event: 

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 



39 

 

 

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material; 

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the security, or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the security; 

7. Modifications to the rights of security holders, if material; 

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 

9. Defeasances; 

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if material; 

11. Rating changes; 

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer, any of the Cities or 
the Authority; 

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer or the 
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, any of the Cities, or the 
Authority, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive 
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement 
relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if 
material; 

15. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or an Obligated Person, if material, or 
agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms 
of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or an Obligated Person, any of which affect 
security holders, if material; and 

16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar 
events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or an Obligated Person, any 
of which reflect financial difficulties. 

For these purposes, (a) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (12) is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or 
similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any other 
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction 
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by 
leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers of the Issuer in possession but subject to the 
supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of 



40 

 

 

reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, and (b) as used in clauses 15 and 
16 above, the term "Financial Obligation" means: (i) a debt obligation; (ii) a derivative instrument entered 
into in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (iii) a guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term Financial Obligation shall not include Municipal 
Securities as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule; 
the term "Municipal Securities" means securities which are direct obligations of, or obligations 
guaranteed as to principal or interest by, a state or any political subdivision thereof, or any agency or 
instrumentality of a state or any political subdivision thereof, or any municipal corporate instrumentality 
of one or more states and any other Municipal Securities described by Section 3(a)(29) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

The Issuer shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Issuer to provide 
financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 30(c) of this Resolution by the time 
required by such Section. As used in clause 12 above, the phrase "bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or 
similar event" means the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for the Issuer in a 
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in 
which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the Issuer, or if jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the Board of Directors and official 
or officers of the Issuer in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental 
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a 
court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the Issuer. 

(e) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments. (i) The Issuer shall be obligated to observe 
and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, the Issuer 
remains an "obligated person" with respect to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds within the meaning of 
the Rule, except that the Issuer in any event will give notice of any deposit made in accordance with this 
Resolution or applicable law that causes ECP Series A Refunding Bonds no longer to be outstanding. 

(ii)  The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the holders and beneficial 
owners of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give 
any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The Issuer 
undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices 
which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby undertake to 
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the Issuer's 
financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided in 
accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein. The Issuer does not make 
any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or 
sell ECP Series A Refunding Bonds at any future date. 

(iii) UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE ISSUER BE LIABLE TO THE 
HOLDER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY ECP Series A Refunding Bond OR ANY OTHER 
PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART 
FROM ANY BREACH BY THE ISSUER, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS 
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY 
OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH 
BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC 
PERFORMANCE. 

(iv) No default by the Issuer in observing or performing its obligations under this Section 



41 

 

 

shall comprise a breach of or default under this Resolution for purposes of any other provision of this 
Resolution. Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the 
duties of the Issuer under federal and state securities laws. 

(v) The provisions of this Section may be amended by the Issuer from time to time to adapt 
to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in 
the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Issuer, but only if (1) the provisions of this 
Section, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell ECP Series A Refunding 
Bonds in the primary offering of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking 
into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule since such offering as well as such changed 
circumstances and (2) either (a) the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater 
amount required by any other provision of this Resolution that authorizes such an amendment) of the 
Outstanding ECP Series A Refunding Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is 
unaffiliated with the Issuer (such as bond counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially 
impair the interest of the holders and beneficial owners of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. If the 
Issuer so amends the provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended financial information or 
operating data next provided in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section an explanation, in narrative 
form, of the reason for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial 
information or operating data so provided. The Issuer may also amend or repeal the provisions of this 
continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the Rule or a 
court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to 
the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing 
or selling ECP Series A Refunding Bonds in the primary offering of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds. 

Section 31. SALE OF ECP SERIES A REFUNDING BONDS. Pursuant to the authorizations in 
Section 3 hereof, as approved by the Authorized Officer, the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds may be sold 
either pursuant to the taking of bids therefor as provided in the Official Notice of Sale or pursuant to a 
purchase agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with a purchaser or purchasers (collectively, the 
"Underwriters") to be approved by the Authorized Officer, and any supplements thereto which may be 
necessary to accomplish the issuance of Bonds. Such Purchase Agreement is hereby authorized to be 
dated, executed and delivered on behalf of the Issuer by an Authorized Officer, with such changes therein 
as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer, the execution thereof by the Authorized Officer to 
constitute evidence of such approval. The delegation of authority to the Authorized Officer to approve the 
final terms of the Bonds as set forth in this Resolution is, and the decisions made by the Authorized 
Officer pursuant to such delegated authority will be, in the best interests of the Issuer, and the Authorized 
Officer is authorized to make a finding to such effect in the Approval Certificate. 

Section 32. APPROVAL OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT. A Preliminary Official Statement 
relating to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, will be approved and authorized to be distributed to 
prospective investors and other interested parties in connection with the underwriting and sale of the ECP 
Series A Refunding Bonds, with such changes therein as shall be approved by an Authorized Officer, 
including such changes as are necessary for distribution as a final Official Statement. The use and 
distribution by the Underwriters of the Official Statement relating to the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, 
is hereby approved. For the purpose of review by the Underwriters prior to purchasing the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds, an Authorized Officer may deem said Preliminary Official Statement to have been 
"final as of its date" within the meaning of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12. 

Section 33.  REFUNDING OF REFUNDED BONDS. (a) The Refunded Bonds shall be paid 
upon the earlier of their stated maturity dates or the earliest redemption dates for which notice of 
redemption can be given pursuant to the Master Resolution, in each case at a price of par plus accrued 
interest to the date of payment. As soon as practicable after sale of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, 



42 

 

 

appropriate notices of redemption shall be delivered to the paying agent/registrar for the Refunded Bonds 
to notify, in accordance with the requirements of the Master Resolution, the owners of the Refunded 
Bonds of the call for redemption thereof. 

(b) Concurrently with the delivery of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, the Issuer shall 
cause to be deposited an amount from the proceeds from the sale of the ECP Series A Refunding Bonds, 
together with, to the extent necessary, available funds of the Issuer, with the paying agent/registrar for the 
Refunded Bonds, sufficient to provide for the refunding and redemption, on the date or dates fixed for 
redemption, of all of the Refunded Bonds, in accordance with Subchapter C of Chapter 1207, Texas 
Government Code, as amended. The President of the Board of Directors of the Issuer and the Secretary or 
other authorized officer of the Board of Directors of the Issuer are hereby authorized, for and on behalf of 
the Issuer, to execute a Deposit Agreement in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit C hereto to 
accomplish such purpose. In addition, the Authorized Officer is authorized to transfer and deposit such 
cash from available funds (including surplus funds in the Interest and Redemption Fund and/or the 
Reserve Fund), as may be necessary for the Payment Account described in such Deposit Agreement. It is 
hereby found and determined that the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, which consist of bonds in an 
extendable commercial paper mode, makes it impracticable to determine the maximum amount by which 
the aggregate amount of payments to be made under the Bonds exceeds the aggregate amount of 
payments that would have been made under the terms of the Refunded Bonds for purposes of Section 
1207.008(a)(2), Texas Government Code. 

Section 34. ATTORNEY GENERAL FEES. The Issuer hereby authorizes and directs payment, 
from legally available funds of the Issuer, of the nonrefundable examination fee of the Attorney General 
of the State of Texas required by Section 1202.004, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 35.  FURTHER PROCEDURES. The President and the Secretary of the Board of 
Directors, the General Manager, the Deputy General Manager, and the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Issuer, and all other officers, employees, and agents of the Issuer, and each of them, shall be and they are 
hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and directed from time to time and at any time to do and 
perform all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge, and deliver in the name and on behalf of 
the Issuer all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in 
order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Resolution, and all details in connection therewith. In 
case any officer whose signature shall appear on any ECP Series A Refunding Bond shall cease to be such 
officer before the delivery of such ECP Series A Refunding Bond, such signature shall nevertheless be 
valid and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such delivery. 

Section 36.  REPEAL OF CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS. All resolutions and all parts of any 
resolutions which are in conflict or inconsistent with this Resolution are hereby repealed and shall be of 
no further force or effect to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency. 

Section 37.  PUBLIC NOTICE. It is hereby officially found and determined that public notice of 
the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given, all as required by the Government Code, Chapter 
551. 

Section 38.  EFFECTIVENESS. This Resolution shall be effective from the date and after the 
date of adoption by the Issuer; provided, however, if an Approval Certificate for the ECP Series A 
Refunding Bonds authorized by this Resolution is not executed prior to October 21, 2026, this Resolution 
shall be void ab initio and shall be of no force and effect. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



A-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

WRITTEN PROCEDURES RELATING TO CONTINUING 
COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL TAX COVENANTS 

 
A. Arbitrage. With respect to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the ECP Series A 

Refunding Bonds and any Additional Bonds (the "Obligations") the Issuer's General Manager, 
Deputy General Manager, and Chief Financial Officer (the "Responsible Persons") will: 

For Obligations issued for newly acquired property or constructed property: 

 instruct the appropriate person or persons that the construction, renovation or acquisition 
of the facilities must proceed with due diligence and that binding contracts for the 
expenditure of at least 5%of the proceeds of the Obligations will be entered into within 6 
months of the Issue Date; 

 monitor that at least 85% of the proceeds of the Obligations to be used for the 
construction, renovation or acquisition of any facilities are expended within 3 years of the 
date of delivery of the Obligations ("Issue Date"); 

 restrict the yield of the investments (other than those in the Reserve Fund) to the yield on 
the Obligations after 3 years of the Issue Date; 

 monitor all amounts deposited into a sinking fund or funds, e.g., the Interest and 
Redemption Fund and the Reserve Fund, to assure that the maximum amount invested at 
a yield higher than the yield on the Obligations does not exceed an amount equal to the 
debt service on the Obligations in the succeeding 12 month period plus a carryover 
amount equal to one-twelfth of the principal and interest payable on the Obligations for 
the immediately preceding 12-month period; 

 assure that no more than 50% of the proceeds of the Obligations are invested in an 
investment with a guaranteed yield for 4 years or more; 

 assure that the maximum amount of the Reserve Fund invested at a yield higher than the 
yield on the Obligations will not exceed the lesser of (1) 10% of the original principal 
amount of the Obligations, (2) 125% of the average annual debt service on the 
Obligations measured as of the Issue Date, or (3) 100% of the maximum annual debt 
service on the Obligations as of the Issue Date; 

For Obligations issued for refunding purposes: 

 monitor the actions of the escrow agent (to the extent an escrow is funded with proceeds) 
to assure compliance with the applicable provisions of the escrow agreement, including 
with respect to reinvestment of cash balances; 

For all Obligations: 

 maintain any official action of the Issuer (such as a reimbursement resolution) stating its 
intent to reimburse itself with the proceeds of the Obligations any amount expended prior 
to the Issue Date for the acquisition, renovation or construction of the facilities; 



A-2 

 

 

 assure that the applicable information return (e.g., IRS Form 8038-G, 8038-GC, or any 
successor forms) is timely filed with the IRS; 

 assure that, unless excepted from rebate and yield restriction under section 148(f) of the 
Code, excess investment earnings are computed and paid to the U.S. government at such 
time and in such manner as directed by the IRS (i) at least every 5 years after the Issue 
Date and (ii) within 30 days after the date the Obligations are retired. 

B. Private Business Use. With respect to the use of the facilities financed or refinanced with the 
proceeds of the Obligations the Responsible Persons will: 

 monitor the date on which the facilities are substantially complete and available to be 
used for the purpose intended; 

 monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than the 
Issuer, the employees of the Issuer, the agents of the Issuer or members of the general 
public has any contractual right (such as a lease, purchase, management or other service 
agreement) with respect to any portion of the facilities; 

 monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than the 
Issuer, the employees of the Issuer, the agents of the Issuer or members of the general 
public has a right to use the output of the facilities (e.g., water, gas, electricity); 

 monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than the 
Issuer, the employees of the Issuer, the agents of the Issuer or members of the general 
public has a right to use the facilities to conduct or to direct the conduct of research; 

 determine whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than 
the Issuer, has a naming right for the facilities or any other contractual right granting an 
intangible benefit; 

 determine whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, the facilities are sold or 
otherwise disposed of; and 

 take such action as is necessary to remediate any failure to maintain compliance with the 
covenants contained in the resolution authorizing the Obligations. 

C. Record Retention. The Responsible Persons will maintain or cause to be maintained all records 
relating to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the Obligations and the use of the 
facilities financed or refinanced thereby for a period ending three (3) years after the complete 
extinguishment of the Obligations. If any portion of the Obligations is refunded with the proceeds 
of another series of tax-exempt obligations, such records shall be maintained until the three (3) 
years after the refunding obligations are completely extinguished. Such records can be maintained 
in paper or electronic format. 

D. Responsible Persons. Each Responsible Person shall receive appropriate training regarding the 
Issuer's accounting system, contract intake system, facilities management and other systems 
necessary to track the investment and expenditure of the proceeds and the use of the facilities 
financed with the proceeds of the Obligations. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Responsible 
Persons are authorized and instructed to retain such experienced advisors and agents as may be 
necessary to carry out the purposes of these instructions. 



B-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following information is referred to in Section 30 of this Resolution. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data of the Issuer 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the Issuer to be provided annually in 
accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or under the headings of the 
Official Statement and Tables referred to) below: 

Tables 1 through 9 in the Official Statement and in Appendix B  

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are the accounting principles described in the notes 
to the financial statements referred to in paragraph 1 above. 

EXHIBIT "C" 

FORM OF DEPOSIT AGREEMENT DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

THIS DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated as of ____________, made by and 
between Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District (the "Issuer"), a 
political subdivision of the State of Texas acting by and through the President and Secretary or other 
authorized officer of the Board of Directors of the Issuer (the "Board"), and 

U.S. Bank National Association (the "Bank"), a banking association organized and existing under 
the laws of the United States of America, 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has heretofore issued and delivered and there is currently outstanding the 
obligations described on Exhibit "A" hereto (hereinafter called the "Refunded Obligations"); and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code (the 
"Act"), the Issuer is authorized to sell refunding bonds in an amount sufficient to provide for the full and 
complete payment of obligations, deposit the proceeds of such refunding bonds with the place of payment 
for the obligations being refunded and enter into an escrow or similar agreement with such place of 
payment for the safekeeping, investment, reinvestment, administration and disposition of such deposit, 
upon such terms and conditions as the parties may agree; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer on ____________, pursuant to a resolution (the "Bond Resolution") 
passed and adopted by the Board, authorized the issuance of bonds known as "Tarrant Regional Water 
District, a Water Control and Improvement District, Water Revenue ECP Series A Refunding Bonds" (the 
"Bonds"), and such Bonds are being issued to refund, discharge and make final payment of the principal 
of and interest on the Refunded Obligations; and 



C-2 

 

 

WHEREAS, a portion of the proceeds of sale of the Bonds, together with other available funds of 
the Issuer, are to be deposited with the Bank under this Agreement, which deposit of funds will be 
sufficient to pay and redeem in full the Refunded Obligations on ____________, (the Redemption Date); 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained and the 
payment to the Bank of amounts provided in Section 8 hereof, and to secure the payment of the principal 
of and the interest on the Refunded Obligations, the Issuer and the Bank hereby agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. A trust clearing account (hereinafter called the "Payment Account") shall be 
maintained at the Bank for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Obligations, and, 

immediately following the delivery of the Bonds, the Issuer agrees and covenants to cause to be 
deposited with the Bank for the credit of the Payment Account the sum of $____________. 

The Bank agrees to establish such Payment Account and further agrees to receive said moneys, 
apply the same as set forth herein, and to hold uninvested the cash deposited and credited to the Payment 
Account for application and disbursement for the payment and redemption of the Refunded Obligations 
on the Redemption Date. 

SECTION 2. In reliance upon the Sufficiency Certificate of Financial Advisor, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit "B", the Issuer represents that the amount deposited to the credit of the 
Payment Account, as provided in Section 1 hereof, will be sufficient to pay and redeem in full all the 
Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date, and the Bank acknowledges the sufficiency of the deposit 
for said purpose. 

The Bank acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Bond Resolution providing for the redemption of 
the Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date at the price of par and accrued interest and 
acknowledges receipt of the form of notice of redemption attached hereto. The Bank will give the notice 
of redemption as required by the order authorizing the issuance of the Refunded Bonds. 

SECTION 3. The Bank agrees that all funds held in the Payment Account shall constitute a 
dedicated interest and sinking fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Refunded 
Obligations which will mature and become due on and after the date of this Agreement, such funds 
deposited to the credit of the Payment Account shall be applied solely in accordance with the provisions 
of this Agreement and the Issuer shall have no right or title with respect thereto, except as otherwise 
provided herein. Such funds shall not be subject to checks or drafts drawn by the Issuer. 

SECTION 4. If, for any reason, the funds on hand in the Payment Account shall be insufficient to 
pay the redemption price of the Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date, notice of any such 
insufficiency shall be immediately given by the Bank to the Issuer by the fastest means possible. 

SECTION 5. The Bank represents that the deposit covered by this Agreement shall constitute 
firm banking arrangements to insure payment of the Refunded Obligations and such deposit is 
collateralized to insure against any loss or diminution by virtue of any action of the Bank or as a result of 
its lack of financial integrity by a pledge of direct obligations of the United States of America, in the par 
or face amount at least equal to the principal amount of said monies to the extent such money is not 
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

SECTION 6. The Bank, as paying agent for the Refunded Obligations, shall, without further 
direction from anyone, including the Issuer, cause to be paid with funds on deposit in the Payment 
Account the amount required to pay and redeem in full the Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date 



C-3 

 

 

when such obligations are presented for payment in accordance with their terms. 

SECTION 7. The Bank shall have no lien whatsoever upon any of the moneys deposited to the 
credit of the Payment Account for payment of services rendered hereunder, services rendered as Paying 
Agent for the Refunded Obligations, or for any costs or expenses incurred hereunder and reimbursable 
from the Issuer. 

SECTION 8. Moneys on deposit in the Payment Account shall be held uninvested pending the 
disbursement of moneys. In consideration for the services rendered hereunder, the Issuer shall pay to the 
Bank the sum of $____________. No investment of funds deposited to the credit of the Payment Account 
shall be made on or after the Redemption Date. Neither the Issuer nor the Bank shall invest any moneys 
deposited in the Payment Account. 

SECTION 9. The Bank hereby agrees that the compensation noted in Section 8 is full and 
complete payment for the administration of this Agreement, and the Bank acknowledges and agrees that 
such amount is and represents the total amount of compensation due the Bank for services rendered as 
paying agent for the Refunded Obligations. The Bank hereby agrees to pay, assume and be fully 
responsible for any additional charges that it may incur in the performance of its duties and 
responsibilities as paying agent for the Refunded Obligations. 

SECTION 10. The Bank shall not be responsible for any recital herein, except with respect to its 
organization, its powers and authority and to the safety and security of the deposit of funds to be made by 
the Issuer hereunder. As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact relating to the Issuer or as to the 
sufficiency or validity of any instrument, paper or proceedings relating to the Issuer, the Bank shall be 
entitled to rely upon a certificate signed on behalf of the Issuer by its Issuer Secretary or other authorized 
officer as sufficient evidence of the facts therein contained. The Bank may accept a certificate of the 
Secretary or other authorized officer of the Board under the Issuer's seal, to the effect that a resolution or 
other instrument in the form therein set forth has been adopted by the Board, as conclusive evidence that 
such resolution or other instrument has been duly adopted and is in full force and effect. 

The duties and obligations of the Bank shall be determined solely by the express provisions of 
this Agreement, and the Bank shall not be liable except for the performance of such duties and obligations 
as are specifically set forth in this Agreement, and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into 
this Agreement against the Bank. 

In the absence of bad faith on the part of the Bank, the Bank may conclusively rely, as to the truth 
of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon any certificate or opinion 
furnished to the Bank, conforming to the requirements of this Agreement; but notwithstanding any 
provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in the case of any such certificate or opinion or any evidence 
which by any provision hereof is specifically required to be furnished to the Bank, the Bank shall be 
under a duty to examine the same to determine whether it conforms to the requirements of this 
Agreement. 

The Bank shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible 
Officer or Officers of the Bank unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in ascertaining or 
acting upon the pertinent facts. The Bank shall not be responsible or liable to any person in any manner 
whatever for the sufficiency, correctness, genuineness, effectiveness, or validity of the deposits made 
pursuant to this Agreement, or for the form or execution thereof, or for the identity or authority or any 
person making or executing such deposits. 

 



C-4 

 

 

The term "Responsible Officers" of the Bank, as used in this Agreement, shall mean and include 
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President and any Second Vice President, 
the Secretary and any Assistant Secretary, the Treasurer and any Assistant Treasurer, and ever other 
officer and assistant officer of the Bank customarily performing functions similar to those performed by 
the persons who at the time shall be officers, respectively, or to whom any corporate trust matter is 
referred, because of his knowledge of an familiarity with a particular subject; and the term "Responsible 
Officer" of the Bank, as used in this Agreement, shall mean and include any of said officers or persons. 

SECTION 11. This Agreement is between the Issuer and the Bank only, and in connection 
herewith the Bank is authorized by the Issuer to rely upon the representations of the Issuer with respect to 
this Agreement and the deposits made pursuant hereto and as to the Issuer's right and power to execute 
and deliver this Agreement, and the Bank shall not be liable in any manner as a result of such reliance. 
The duties of the Bank hereunder shall only be to the Issuer and the holders of the Refunded Obligations. 
In the event conflicting demands or notices are made upon the Bank growing out of or relating to this 
Agreement or the Bank in good faith is in doubt as to what action should be taken hereunder, the Bank 
shall have the right at its election to: 

(b) Withhold and stop all further proceedings in, and performance of, this Agreement with 
respect to the issue in question and of all instructions received hereunder in regard to 
such issue; and 

(c) File a suit in interpleader and obtain an order from a court of appropriate jurisdiction 
requiring all persons involved to interplead and litigate in such court their several claims 
and rights among themselves. 

In the event the Bank becomes involved in litigation in connection with this Section, the Issuer, to 
the extent permitted by law agrees to indemnify and save the Bank harmless from all loss, cost, damages, 
expenses and attorney fees suffered or incurred by the Bank as a result thereof. The obligations of the 
Bank under this Agreement shall be performable at the principal corporate office of the Bank in Dallas, 
Texas. 

The Bank may consult with legal counsel in the event of any dispute or question regarding the 
construction of any of the provisions hereof or its duties hereunder, and in the absence of negligence or 
bad faith on the part of the Bank, no liability shall be incurred by the Bank for any action taken pursuant 
to this Section and the Bank shall be fully protected in acting in accordance with the opinion and 
instructions of legal counsel that is knowledgeable and has expertise in the field of law addressed in any 
such legal opinion with respect to the instructions given. 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require the Bank to expend or risk its own funds 
in the performance of any of its duties or the exercise of any of its rights hereunder. 

SECTION 12. Time shall be of the essence in the performance of obligations from time to time 
imposed upon the Bank by this Agreement. 

SECTION 13. Following the final payment and redemption of the Refunded Obligations, the 
Bank shall forward by letter to the Issuer, to the attention of the President, or other designated official of 
the Issuer, a final accounting statement with respect to the payment and discharge of the Refunded 
Obligations, together with all canceled Refunded Obligations. 

 



C-5 

 

 

SECTION 14. Any notice, authorization, request or demand required or permitted to be given 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when mailed by registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid addressed as follows: 

Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District  
800 East North Side Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102-1097  
Attention: Chief Financial Officer 
 
U.S. Bank National Association  
100 Wall Street, Suite 1600  
New York, New York 10005 
Attention: Corporate Trust Services 

The United States Post Office registered or certified mail receipt showing delivery of the 
aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence of the date and fact of delivery. Any party hereto may change the 
address to which notices are to be delivered by giving to the other parties not less than ten (10) days prior 
notice thereof. 

SECTION 15. Whenever under the terms of this Agreement the performance date of any 
provision hereof, including the date of maturity of interest on or principal of the Refunded Obligations, 
shall be a Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on which the Bank is authorized by law to close, then the 
performance thereof, including the payment of principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations, 
need not be made on such date but may performed or paid, as the case may be, on the next succeeding 
business day of the Bank with the same force and effect as if made on the date of performance or payment 
and with respect to a payment, no interest shall accrue for the period after such date. 

SECTION 16. The Issuer covenants that it will faithfully perform at all times any and all 
covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained in this Agreement, in any and every said 
Refunded Obligation as executed, authenticated and delivered and in all proceedings pertaining thereto as 
said Refunded Obligations shall have been modified as provided in this Agreement. The Issuer covenants 
that it is duly authorized under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas to execute and deliver this 
Agreement, that all actions on its part for the payment of said Refunded Obligations as provided herein 
and the execution and delivery of this Agreement have been duly and effectively taken and that said 
Refunded Obligations and coupons in the hands of the holders and owners thereof are and will be valid 
and enforceable obligations of the Issuer according to the import thereof as provided in this Agreement. 

SECTION 17. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in this Agreement on 
the part of the parties to be performed should be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
contrary to law, such covenant or agreement shall be deemed and construed to be severable from the 
remaining covenants and agreements herein contained and shall in no way affect the validity of the 
remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 18. This Agreement shall terminate either (i) when the Refunded Obligations and 
coupons appertaining thereto have been paid and discharged in accordance with the provisions of this 
Agreement or (ii) at the expiration of four (4) years after the Redemption Date, whichever circumstance 
shall first occur. Subject to applicable unclaimed property laws of the State, moneys held in the Payment 
Account at the termination of this Agreement shall be remitted and transferred to the Issuer. 

 



C-6 

 

 

SECTION 19. Neither the Issuer nor the Bank shall assign or attempt to assign or transfer any 
interest hereunder or any portion of any such interest. Any such assignment or attempted assignment shall 
be in direct conflict with this Agreement and be without effect. 

SECTION 20. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Bank and the 
Issuer and their respective successors. 

SECTION 21. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all or any of which shall 
be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and be but one and the same instrument. 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 



C-7 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their duly authorized officers and attested as of the date first written above. 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT,  
A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

President 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 

Secretary 
 
 

(Issuer Seal) 

 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

 

______________________________________ 
Title: _________________________________



 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 

 

Schedule of Refunded Obligations 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 12 
 
DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, UNLIMITED TAX REFUNDING BONDS; 
LEVYING AN AD VALOREM TAX IN SUPPORT OF THE BONDS; 
ESTABLISHING THE PROCEDURES OF SELLING AND DELIVERING 
THE BONDS; AND AUTHORIZING OTHER MATTERS RELATED TO 
THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS 

 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends approval of a resolution authorizing the issuance of Tarrant 
Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District, Unlimited Tax 
Refunding Bonds; Levying an Ad Valorem Tax in support of the Bonds; establishing the 
procedures of selling and delivering the bonds; and authorizing other matters related to 
the issuance of the bonds. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The resolution authorizes the sale of Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds to refund any ECP 
Bonds Series B outstanding under the District’s Extendable Commercial Paper Financing 
Program. This resolution gives the District the flexibility to refund the Extendable 
Commercial Paper Bonds (“ECP”) to long-term fixed rate bonds at any time over the next 
12 months. This Resolution is necessary should the District need quick access to the 
bond market if the ECP Bonds are no longer marketable at a cost effective interest rate. 
The decision to refund will depend on the market conditions, costs and/or market 
accessibility. There are currently no outstanding ECP Bonds issued on this program.  
 
The District’s financial advisors and Bond Counsel have advised the District on the need 
for this resolution.  Please see attached the resolution for the sale. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Finance Committee on October 13, 2025. 
 
Submitted By: 
 
Sandy Newby 
Chief Financial Officer 



 

 

ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TARRANT REGIONAL WATER 
DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, UNLIMITED TAX 
REFUNDING BONDS; LEVYING AN AD VALOREM TAX IN SUPPORT OF THE BONDS; 
ESTABLISHING THE PROCEDURES OF SELLING AND DELIVERING THE BONDS; 
AND AUTHORIZING OTHER MATTERS RELATED TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS      § 
COUNTY OF TARRANT      § 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT § 
 
WHEREAS, Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District, 

(formerly known as "Tarrant County Water Control and Improvement District Number One") (the 
"Issuer" or the "District") is a political subdivision of the State of Texas, being a conservation and 
reclamation district created and functioning under Article 16, Section 59 of the Texas 
Constitution, pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas, including Chapters 49 and 51, 
Texas Water Code, and pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 268, Acts of 1957, 55th Legislature 
of Texas, Regular Session, as amended (collectively the "District Act"); and 

 
WHEREAS, among other bonds, pursuant to a Master Resolution Establishing the 

Tarrant Regional Water District, A Water Control and Improvement District Extendable 
Commercial Paper Financing Program, Series B And Authorizing Extendable Commercial Paper 
Mode Bonds, Series B, adopted on October 16, 2018 (the "Master Resolution"), the Issuer has 
previously authorized to be outstanding the following described bonds: 

Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District Extendable 
Commercial Paper Mode, Series B (Tax-Exempt) and Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water 
Control and Improvement District Extendable Commercial Paper Mode Bonds, Series B 
(Taxable), in the original principal amount not to exceed $150,000,000 (collectively, the "ECP 
Series B Bonds"); and 

 
WHEREAS, at an election held on May 5, 2018 (the "Bond Election"), the voters of the 

District authorized the Board of Directors (the "Board") of the District to issue bonds of the 
District maturing serially or otherwise over a period or periods not exceeding forty (40) years 
from their date or dates, bearing interest at a rate not to exceed the maximum authorized by law 
at the time such bonds are issued (in whole or in part thereof), all as may be determined by the 
Board, in the maximum amount of two hundred fifty million dollars ($250,000,000) for the 
purpose of purchasing, constructing, acquiring, owning, leasing, operating, repairing, improving, 
or extending land, improvements, facilities, plants, equipment, and appliances for flood control 
and drainage facilities in order to gather, conduct, divert, and control local harmful excesses of 
water, as well as all expenses in any manner incidental thereto, all in accordance with the 
engineer's report filed in the office of the district; making payments under contracts pursuant to 
section 49.213 of the Texas Water Code; refunding bond anticipation notes; and paying such 
expenses as are incidental to the administration and financing of the District, which under 
applicable law may properly be paid from the proceeds of such bonds; and in an amount not in 
excess of one and one-half times the amount of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness 



 

 

previously issued by the District for the purpose of refunding any bonds or other evidences of 
indebtedness issued by the District for any of the foregoing purposes; and shall the Board be 
authorized to provide for the payment of the principal of and the interest and redemption price on 
all of such bonds by the levy and collection annually of a sufficient tax upon all taxable property 
within the District which, together with other funds of the district available therefor, will be 
sufficient to pay the bonds, as authorized by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, 
including particularly (but not by way of limitation Chapter 268, Acts of the 55th Legislature of 
the State of Texas, Regular Session, 1957, as amended) Chapters 49 and 51 of the Texas Water 
Code, to the extent applicable, together with all amendments and additions thereto. 

 
WHEREAS, the District now desires to issue refunding bonds to refund all or part of the 

of the outstanding ECP Series B Bonds (the "Refundable Bonds," and those Refundable Bonds 
designated by the Authorized Officer in the Approval Certificate, each as defined herein, the 
"Refunded Bonds"); and 

 
WHEREAS, all the Refunded Bonds mature or are subject to redemption prior to maturity 

within 20 years of the date of the bonds hereinafter authorized; and 
 
WHEREAS, the refunding bonds hereafter authorized are being issued and delivered 

pursuant to Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, as amended ("Chapter 1207"); and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 1207 authorizes the District to issue refunding bonds and to deposit 

the proceeds from the sale thereof together with any other available funds or resources, directly 
with a place of payment (paying agent) for the Refunded Bonds or eligible trust company or 
commercial bank, and such deposit, if made before such payment dates, shall constitute the 
making of firm banking and financial arrangements for the discharge and final payment of the 
Refunded Bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 1207 further authorizes the District to enter into an escrow or 

similar agreement with respect to the safekeeping, investment, reinvestment, administration and 
disposition of any such deposit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Deposit Agreement hereinafter authorized, constitutes an agreement of 

the kind authorized and permitted by Chapter 1207; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board hereby specifies that to the extent the principal amount of the 

refunding bonds authorized hereby, together with any net premium thereon, exceeds the principal 
amount of the Refunded Bonds, such difference shall be counted against the amount authorized 
by the Bond Election for refunding purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the issuance of the Bonds and the application of the proceeds of the Bonds 

to refund the Refunded Bonds, which consist of bonds in an extendable commercial paper mode, 
makes it impracticable to determine the maximum amount by which the aggregate amount of 
payments to be made under the Bonds exceeds the aggregate amount of payments that would have 
been made under the terms of the Refunded Bonds for purposes of Section 1207.008(a)(2), Texas 
Government Code; and 



 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District deems it advisable and in the best 
interest of the District to refund the Refunded Bonds, among other information and terms to be 
included in a Approval Certificate to be executed by the Authorized Officer, both as hereinafter 
defined, all in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 1207 including Section 1207.007 
thereof, and 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
ARTICLE ONE 

 
PREAMBLE 

 
SECTION 1.01   INCORPORATION OF PREAMBLE. The Board of Directors of the 

District hereby incorporates the recitals set forth in the preamble hereto as if set forth in full at 
this place and further finds and determines that the recitals are true and correct. 

 
ARTICLE TWO 

 
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

 
SECTION 2.01.   DEFINITIONS. When used in this Order, except in Article Six, and 

in any resolution or order amendatory or supplemental hereto, the terms listed below shall have 
the meanings specified below, unless it is otherwise expressly provided or unless the context 
otherwise requires: 

 
"Additional Bonds" means the additional bonds payable from ad valorem taxes which the 

Board of Directors expressly reserves the right to issue in Section 11.01 of this Order. 
 
"Approval Certificate" means the certificate to be executed and delivered pursuant to 

Section 3.02 hereof in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. 
 
"Authorized Denominations" means the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple 

thereof with respect to the Bonds. 
 
"Authorized Investments" means authorized obligations as set forth in the Public Funds 

Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code and the District's Investment Policy. 
 
"Authorized Officer" means the President, Vice President, Secretary or Assistant 

Secretary of the District. 
 
"Authorized Representative" means the General Manager, the Deputy General Manager, 

and the Chief Financial Officer of the District authorized, appointed, and designated to act on 
behalf of the District as provided herein. 



 

 

"Bank" means U.S. Bank National Association, as paying agent for the Refunded Bonds. 

"Board of Directors" or "Board" means the governing body of the District. 

"Bond Election" means the election held on May 5, 2018, at which the issuance of a 
maximum amount of $250,000,000 in bonds was authorized to be issued by the District for the 
purpose of providing flood control and drainage facilities and an amount not exceeding one and 
one- half times the amount of bonds or other evidences of indebtedness previously issued by the 
District was authorized for the purpose of refunding bonds or other obligations of the District 
issued for providing flood control and drainage facilities. 

 
"Bond Order" or "Order" means, this Order of the Board of Directors authorizing the 

issuance of the Bonds. 
 
"Bonds" means the Bonds, as defined in section 3.01 of the Order, issued and delivered 

pursuant to this Order and all substitute Bonds exchanged therefor, as well as all other substitute 
bonds and replacement bonds issued pursuant hereto, and the term "Bond" shall mean any of the 
Bonds. 

 
"Business Day" means any day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or day on which the 

Paying Agent/Registrar is authorized by law or executive order to remain closed. 
 
"Defeasance Securities" means (i) Federal Securities, (ii) noncallable obligations of an 

agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are 
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date the 
Board of Directors adopts or approves proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds 
or otherwise provide for the funding of an escrow to effect the defeasance of the Bonds, are rated 
as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than "AAA" 
or its equivalent, and (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an agency or a county, municipality, 
or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded and that, on the date the Board of 
Directors adopts or approves proceedings authorizing the issuance of refunding bonds or 
otherwise provide for the funding of an escrow to effect the defeasance of the Bonds, are rated as 
to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment rating firm no less than "AAA" or its 
equivalent. 

 
"Deposit Agreement" means the agreement by and between the District and the Bank 

relating to the defeasance of the Refunded Bonds. 
 
"District" or "Issuer" means Tarrant Regional Water District, A Water control and 

Improvement District and any other public agency succeeding to the powers, rights, privileges, 
and functions of the District and, when appropriate, the Board of Directors of the District. 

 
"DTC" means The Depository Trust Company of New York. 
 
"ECP Series B Bonds" means the ECP Series B Bonds as defined in the Preamble 

hereto. 



 

 

"Exchange Bonds" means Bonds registered, authenticated, and delivered by the Registrar, 
as provided in Section 4.01 of this Order. 

 
"Federal Securities" means direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of 

America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of 
America (including Interest Strips of the Resolution Funding Corporation). 

 
"Fiscal Year" means the twelve-month accounting period for the District, which presently 

is the twelve-month period beginning on October 1 of each year and ending on September 30 of 
the following year, but which may be changed from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

 
"Initial Bond" means the Bond authorized, issued, and initially delivered as provided in 

Section 3.02 of this Order. 
 
"Interest Payment Date" means a date on which interest on the Bonds is due and payable. 

Interest on the Bonds is due and payable semi-annually on each March 15 and September 15, 
commencing on the Interest Payment Date set forth in the Approval Certificate thereafter until 
the earlier of maturity or redemption. 

 
"Issuance Date" means the date of initial delivery of the Bonds to the Underwriter. 

"Master Resolution" means the Master Resolution as defined in the Preamble hereto. 

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

"Outstanding" when used with reference to Bonds, means, as of a particular date, all 
Bonds theretofore and thereupon delivered except; (a) any Bond canceled by or on behalf of the 
District at or before said date, (b) any Bond defeased or no longer considered Outstanding 
pursuant to the provisions of this Order or otherwise defeased as permitted by applicable law and 
(c) any such Bond in lieu of or in substitution for which another Bond shall have been delivered 
pursuant to this Order. 

 
"Paying Agent/Registrar" or "Registrar" means BOKF, NA, or such other bank, trust 

company, financial institution, or other entity as may hereafter be designated by the District to 
act as paying agent and registrar for the Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Order. 

 
"Record Date" means the last calendar day of the month immediately preceding an Interest 

Payment Date whether or not a business day. 
 
"Redemption Date" means a date fixed for redemption of any Bond pursuant to the terms 

of this Order. 
 
"Refundable Bonds" means any of the Refundable Bonds as defined in the Preamble 

hereto.  

"Refunded Bonds" means those Refundable Bonds to be refunded as designated by the 



 

 

Authorized Representative in the Approval Certificate. 

 
"Register" means the registry system maintained on behalf of the District by the Registrar 

in which are listed the names and addresses of the Registered Owners and the principal amount 
of Bonds registered in the name of each Registered Owner. 

 
"Registered Owner" means any person or entity in whose name a Bond is registered.  

 
"Replacement Bonds" means the Bonds authorized by the District to be issued in 

substitution for lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken Bonds as provided in Section 
4.02 of this Order. 

 
"Rule" means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. "SEC" means the 

United States Securities and Exchange Commission. "Underwriter" means the initial purchaser 
or purchasers of the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 2.02.  INTERPRETATIONS. The titles and headings of the articles and 

sections and the page numbers of this Order have been inserted for convenience of reference only 
and are not to be considered a part hereof and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the 
terms or provisions hereof. This Order and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally 
construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein and to sustain the validity of the Bonds and 
the validity of the taxes levied in payment thereof. 

 
ARTICLE THREE 

 
AUTHORIZATION, REGISTRATION, EXECUTION, 

AND AUTHENTICATION OF BONDS 
 

SECTION 3.01. AMOUNT, NAME, PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZATION. 
Each Bond issued pursuant to this Order shall be issued under and by virtue of the Constitution 
and laws of the State of Texas, including particularly Article XVI, Section 59 of the Texas 
Constitution, the District Act, Chapters 1207 and 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended, 
and, to the extent applicable, Chapters 49 and 51, Texas Water Code, as amended, and shall be 
known and designated as "Tarrant Regional Water District, A Water Control and Improvement 
District Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds," shall be dated the date and shall be issued in the 
aggregate principal amount set forth in the Approval Certificate (but in no event to exceed one 
and one-half times the amount of the Refunded Bonds) for the purpose of refunding the Refunded 
Bonds and paying certain costs of issuing the Bonds. The authority of the Authorized 
Representative to execute the Approval Certificate shall expire on October 21, 2026. Bonds priced 
on or before October 21, 2026, may close after such date. 

 
SECTION 3.02. FORM, DATE, NUMBERS, AND DENOMINATION. (a) There 

initially shall be issued, sold and delivered fully registered bonds, without interest coupons, 
numbered consecutively from R-1 upward (except the initial Bonds delivered to the Attorney 
General of the State of Texas which shall be numbered T-1), payable to the respective initial 



 

 

Registered Owners thereof, or to the registered assignee or assignees of said Bonds or any portion 
or portions thereof, in Authorized Denominations, maturing not later than forty (40) years from 
their date, serially or otherwise on the dates, in the years and in the principal amounts, 
respectively, all as set forth in the Approval Certificate to be executed and delivered by the 
Authorized Representative pursuant to subsection (b) of this Section. The Approval Certificate is 
hereby incorporated in and made a part of this Order and shall be filed in the minutes of the Board 
as a part of this Order. 

 
(b) As authorized by Chapters 1207 and 1371, Texas Government Code, as amended, 

the General Manager, the Deputy General Manager, and the Chief Financial Officer of the Issuer 
are each hereby designated as an "Authorized Representative" of the Issuer, and each is hereby 
authorized, appointed, and designated as the officer or employee of the Issuer authorized to act 
on behalf of the Issuer, which actions shall be evidenced by a certificate executed by such 
Authorized Representative (the "Approval Certificate") for a period not to extend beyond October 
21, 2026, in selling and delivering the Bonds, determining which of the Refundable Bonds shall 
be refunded and constitute "Refunded Bonds" in this Order and carrying out the other procedures 
specified in this Order, including the use of a book-entry only system with respect to the Bonds 
and the execution of an appropriate letter of representations if deemed appropriate, the 
determining and fixing of the date and the date of delivery of the Bonds, any additional or different 
designation or title by which the Bond shall be known (including, if the Bonds are issued on a 
taxable basis, inclusion of an appropriate designation as such), the price at which the Bonds will 
be sold (but in no event less than 95% of the principal amount of the Bonds), the principal amount 
(but in no event to exceed one and one-half times the amount of the Refunded Bonds) of the 
Bonds, the amount of each maturity of principal thereof, the due date of each such maturity (not 
exceeding forty years from the date of the Bonds), the rate of interest, to be borne by each such 
maturity (but in no event to result in the net effective interest rate on the Bonds exceeding 10% 
per annum), the initial interest payment date, the date or dates of any optional redemption thereof, 
any mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions, and approving modifications to this Order 
and executing such instruments, documents and agreements as may be necessary with respect 
thereto, and all other matters relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Bonds and the 
refunding of the Refunded Bonds. 

 
(c) The Bonds shall bear interest calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed 

of twelve 30-day months from the dates specified in the FORM OF BOND set forth in this Order 
to their respective dates of maturity or redemption at the rates per annum set forth in the Approval 
Certificate. 

 
SECTION 3.03. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST. The Registrar is 

hereby appointed as the paying agent for the Bonds. The principal of the Bonds, shall be payable, 
without exchange or collection charges, in any coin or currency of the United States of America 
which, on the date of payment, is legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of 
America, upon their presentation and surrender as they become due and payable, whether at 
maturity or by prior redemption in the case of the Bonds, at the designated office for payment of 
the Registrar. The interest on each Bond shall be payable as provided in the Form of Bond by 
check payable on the Interest Payment Date, mailed by the Registrar on or before each Interest 
Payment Date to the Registered Owner as shown on the Register on the Record Date or, at the 



 

 

request of a Registered Owner, and at the Registered Owner's risk and expense, in such other 
manner as may be acceptable to the Registered Owner and the Registrar. Any accrued interest 
payable at maturity or earlier redemption, in the case of the Bonds, shall be paid upon presentation 
and surrender of the Bond to which such interest appertains. 

 
If the date for payment on any Bond is a Saturday, Sunday, a legal holiday, or a day on 

which banking institutions in the city where the Registrar is located are authorized by law or 
executive order to close, or the United States Postal Service is not open for business, then the date 
for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, 
or a day on which banking institutions are authorized by law or executive order to close, and 
payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment 
was due. 

 
SECTION 3.04.  SUCCESSOR REGISTRARS. The District covenants that at all times 

while any Bonds are outstanding it will provide a bank, trust company, financial institution or 
other entity duly qualified and duly authorized to act as Registrar for the Bonds. The District 
reserves the right to change the Registrar on not less than 30 days written notice to the Registrar, 
so long as any such notice is effective at such time as to not disrupt payment on the next 
succeeding principal or interest payment date on the Bonds. Promptly upon the appointment of 
any successor Registrar, the previous Registrar shall deliver the Register or copies thereof to the 
new Registrar, and the new Registrar shall notify each Registered Owner, by United States mail, 
first-class postage prepaid, of such change and of the address of the new Registrar. Each Registrar 
hereunder, by acting in that capacity, shall be deemed to have agreed to the provisions of this 
Section. 

 
SECTION 3.05.  SPECIAL RECORD DATE. If interest on any Bond is not paid on 

any Interest Payment Date and continues unpaid for 30 days thereafter, the Registrar shall 
establish a new record date for the payment of such interest, to be known as a Special Record 
Date. The Registrar shall establish a Special Record Date when funds to make such interest 
payment are received from or on behalf of the District. Such Special Record Date shall be 15 days 
prior to the date fixed for payment of such past due interest, and notice of the date of payment 
and the Special Record Date shall be sent by United States mail, first-class, postage prepaid, not 
later than 5 days prior to the Special Record Date, to each affected Registered Owner of record 
as of the close of business on the day prior to the mailing of such notice. 

 
SECTION 3.06.  REGISTERED OWNERS. The District, the Registrar and any other 

person may treat the person in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute Registered 
Owner of such Bond for the purpose of making payment of principal or interest on such Bond, 
and for all other purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue, and neither the District, nor the 
Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. All payments made to the 
person deemed to be the Registered Owner of any Bond in accordance with this Section 3.06 shall 
be valid and effectual and shall discharge the liability of the District and the Registrar upon such 
Bond to the extent of the sums paid. 

 
SECTION 3.07.   EXECUTION OF BONDS. The Bonds shall be signed on behalf of 

the District by the President of the Board of Directors and attested by the Secretary or other 



 

 

Authorized Officer of the Board, by their manual, lithographed, or facsimile signatures, and the 
official seal of the District shall be impressed or placed in facsimile thereon. The facsimile 
signatures on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if each of the Bonds had been signed 
manually and in person by each of said officers, and the facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have 
the same effect as if the official seal of the District had been manually impressed upon each of 
the Bonds. If any officer of the District whose manual or facsimile signature appears on the Bonds 
shall cease to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before the delivery of 
such Bonds, such manual or facsimile signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all 
purposes as if such officer had remained in such office. 

 
SECTION 3.08.  AUTHENTICATION. The Initial Bond shall bear thereon a certificate 

of registration of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, substantially in the 
form provided in Section 6.02 of this Order, manually executed by the Comptroller or a duly 
authorized deputy. All other Bonds shall bear a certificate of authentication, substantially in the 
form provided in Section 6.03 of this Order, manually executed by an authorized officer of the 
Registrar. No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless either the registration 
certificate of the Comptroller or the authentication certificate of the Registrar has been signed by 
a duly authorized officer thereof. 

 
ARTICLE FOUR 

 
REGISTRATION, TRANSFER, AND EXCHANGE 

 
 SECTION 4.01. REGISTRATION, TRANSFER, AND EXCHANGE. So long as 
any Bonds remain outstanding, the Registrar shall keep at its designated office for payment the 
Register, in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Registrar shall 
provide for the registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with the terms of this Order. 

 
Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the 

designated office for payment of the Registrar, duly endorsed for transfer, or accompanied by an 
assignment duly executed by the Registered Owner or an authorized representative in form 
satisfactory to the Registrar. Upon due presentation of any Bond for transfer, the Registrar shall 
authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor, within 72 hours after such presentation, a new Bond 
or Bonds of the same type, registered in the name of the transferee or transferees, in authorized 
denominations and of the same maturity and aggregate principal amount, and bearing interest at 
the same rate as the Bond or Bonds so presented. 

 
All Bonds shall be exchangeable upon presentation and surrender thereof at the designated 

office for payment of the Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and interest rate and 
in any authorized denomination, in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal 
amount of the Bond or Bonds presented for exchange. The Registrar shall be and is hereby 
authorized to authenticate and deliver exchange Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this 
Section 4.01. Each Bond delivered in accordance with this Section 4.01 shall be entitled to the 
benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which such 
Bond is delivered. 

 



 

 

The District or the Registrar may require the Registered Owner of any Bond to pay a sum 
sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in connection with 
the transfer or exchange of such Bond. Any fee or charge of the Registrar for such transfer or 
exchange shall be paid by the District. 

 
 SECTION 4.02. MUTILATED, LOST,  OR STOLEN   BONDS. Upon the 
presentation and surrender to the Registrar of a mutilated Bond, the Registrar shall authenticate 
and deliver in exchange therefor a replacement Bond of like maturity, interest rate and principal 
amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding. If any Bond is lost, destroyed, or 
wrongfully taken, the District, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the 
absence of notice or knowledge that such Bond has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall 
execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver a replacement Bond of like amount, 
bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding. 

 
The District or the Registrar may require the Registered Owner of a mutilated Bond to 

pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in 
connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith, including the fees and 
expenses of the Registrar. The District or the Registrar may require the Registered Owner of a 
lost, destroyed or wrongfully taken Bond, before any replacement Bond is issued, to: 

 
(a) furnish to the District and the Registrar satisfactory evidence of the ownership of 

and the circumstances of the loss, destruction or theft of such Bond; 
 
(b) furnish such security or indemnity as may be required by the Registrar and the 

District to save them harmless; 
 
(c) pay all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, 

printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Registrar and any tax or other governmental 
charge that may be imposed; and 

 
(d) meet any other reasonable requirements of the District and the Registrar. 
 
If, after the delivery of such replacement Bond, a bona fide purchaser of the original Bond 

which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such original Bond, the District 
and the Registrar shall be entitled to recover such replacement Bond from the person to whom it 
was delivered or any person taking therefrom, except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled 
to recover upon the security or indemnity provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost 
or expense incurred by the District or the Registrar in connection therewith. 

 
If any such mutilated, lost, destroyed or wrongfully taken Bond has become or is about to 

become due and payable, the District in its discretion may, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, 
authorize the Registrar to pay such Bond. 

 
Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section 4.02 shall be entitled to 

the benefits and security of this Order to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of which 
such replacement is delivered. 



 

 

SECTION 4.03. BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM. (a) The Bonds issued in exchange 
for the Initial Bond shall be issued in the form of a separate single fully registered Bond for each 
of the maturities thereof registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC and except as 
provided in subsection (b) hereof, all of the outstanding Bonds shall be registered in the name of 
Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. 

 
With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the 

District and the Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain other organizations on whose 
behalf DTC was created to hold securities to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities 
transactions among DTC participants (the "DTC Participant") or to any person on behalf of whom 
such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the Bonds. Without limiting the immediately 
preceding sentence, the District and the Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with 
respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect 
to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other 
person, other than a Registered Owner, as shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to 
the Bonds, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any person, other than a Registered 
Owner, as shown on the Register Books of any amount with respect to principal of or interest on 
the Bonds. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the contrary, but to the extent 
permitted by law, the District and the Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person 
in whose name each Bond is registered in the Registration Books as the absolute owner of such 
Bond for the purpose of payment of principal of and interest, with respect to such Bond, for the 
purposes of registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes of 
registering transfers with respect to such Bonds, and for all other purposes whatsoever. The 
Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the 
respective Registered Owners, as shown in the Register as provided in this Order, or their 
respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective 
to fully satisfy and discharge the District's obligations with respect to payment of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than a Registered 
Owner, as shown in the Registration Books, shall receive a Bond evidencing the obligation of the 
District to make payments of principal, and interest pursuant to this Order. Upon delivery by DTC 
to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute 
a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions in this Order with respect to 
interest checks being mailed to the registered owner at the close of business on the Record Date 
the word "Cede & Co." in this Order shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

 
(b) Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System. In the 

event that the District determines to discontinue the book-entry system through DTC or a 
successor or DTC determines to discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds, the 
District shall either (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to act as such under 
Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC 
Participants of the appointment of such successor securities depository and transfer one or more 
separate Bonds to such successor securities depository or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants 
of the availability through DTC of Bonds and transfer one or more separate Bonds to DTC 
Participants having Bonds credited to their DTC accounts. In such event, the Bonds shall no 
longer be restricted to being registered in the Register Books in the name of Cede & Co., as 



 

 

nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its 
nominee, or in whatever name or names the Registered Owner transferring or exchanging Bond 
shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Order. 

 
(c) Payments to Cede & Co. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Order to the 

contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all 
payments with respect to principal of, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to 
such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Letter of 
Representations of the District to DTC. 

 
(d) DTC Blanket Letter of Representations. The District authorizes execution of a 

Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations with DTC establishing the Book-Entry-Only System 
which will be utilized with respect to the Bonds. 

 
(e) Cancellation of Initial Bond. On the closing date, one Initial Bond representing the 

entire principal amount of the Bonds, payable in stated installments to the order of the Underwriter 
of the Bonds or its designee set forth in Section 15.01 of this Order, executed by manual or 
facsimile signature of the President and Secretary or other Authorized Officer of the Board, 
approved by the Attorney General of Texas, and registered and manually signed by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, will be delivered to such Underwriter or 
its designee set forth in Section 15.01 of this Order. Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the 
Registrar shall cancel the Initial Bond and deliver to DTC on behalf of such Underwriter one 
registered definitive Bond for each year of maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate principal 
amount of all the Bonds for such maturity. 

 
SECTION 4.04.  CANCELLATION OF BONDS. All Bonds paid in accordance with 

this Order, and all Bonds in lieu of which exchange Bonds or replacement Bonds are 
authenticated, registered, and delivered in accordance herewith, shall be canceled and disposed 
of upon the making of proper records regarding such payment, redemption, exchange, or 
replacement. The Registrar shall furnish the District with appropriate certificates of disposition 
of such Bonds. 

 
ARTICLE FIVE 

 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY 

 
SECTION 5.01. REDEMPTION OF BONDS. The Bonds shall be subject to 

redemption, including redemption at the option of the District, as set forth in the FORM OF 
BOND in Section 6.01. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE SIX 



 

 

 
FORM OF BOND 

 
SECTION 6.01. FORM OF BOND. The Bonds authorized by this Order shall be in 

substantially the following form, with such omissions, insertions, and variations, including 
variations in form, spacing, and style, as may be necessary and desirable and consistent with the 
terms of this Order and the Approval Certificate. The District shall provide sufficient printed bond 
forms, duly executed by the District, to the Registrar for registration, authentication, and delivery 
of the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Order. 

 
FORM OF BOND 

 
Unless this Bond is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 

Company, a New York corporation ("DTC") to the District or its agent for registration of transfer, 
exchange, or payment, and any Bond issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or in such 
other name as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC (and any payment is made to 
Cede & Co. or to such other entity as is requested by an authorized representative of DTC), ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE, OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR 
TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL inasmuch as the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has 
an interest herein. 

 
As provided in the Bond Order referred to herein, until the termination of the system of 

book-entry-only transfers through DTC, and notwithstanding any other provision of the Bond 
Order to the contrary, this Bond may be transferred, in whole but not in part, only to a nominee 
of DTC, or by a nominee of DTC to DTC or a nominee of DTC, or by DTC or a nominee of DTC 
to any successor securities depository or any nominee thereof. 

 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA  

STATE OF TEXAS 
 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, 
A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ECP SERIES B 

UNLIMITED TAX REFUNDING BONDS 
 

NO. R-  PRINCIPAL  
AMOUNT 

$_____________* 
INTEREST 

RATE DATE OF BONDS 
MATURITY 

DATE CUSIP NO. 
 _______, ____* September 15, 

_____ 
 

 
 

*   From Approval Certificate.. 



 

 

 
REGISTERED OWNER: 

 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 

 
ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above, TARRANT REGIONAL WATER 

DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (the "District"), 
being a political subdivision of the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to the Registered 
Owner set forth above, or registered assign (hereinafter called the "Registered Owner") the 
principal amount set forth above, and to pay interest thereon (calculated on the basis of a 360-day 
year of twelve 30- day months) from  ,   *, at the interest rate per annum specified above. 
Interest is payable semiannually on each March 15 and September 15 (each, an "Interest Payment 
Date"), commencing on  15,   ,* to the maturity date specified above, or the date of 
redemption prior to maturity, at the interest rate per annum specified above; except that if this 
Bond is required to be authenticated and the date of its authentication is later than the first Record 
Date (hereinafter defined), such principal amount shall bear interest from the Interest Payment 
Date next preceding the date of authentication, unless such date of authentication is after any 
Record Date but on or before the next following Interest Payment Date, in which case such 
principal amount shall bear interest from such next following Interest Payment Date; provided, 
however, that if on the date of authentication hereof the interest on the Bond or Bonds, if any, for 
which this Bond is being exchanged or converted from is due but has not been paid, then this 
Bond shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, during any period in which ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book 
entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, any payment to the securities depository, or its 
nominee or registered assigns, shall be made in accordance with existing arrangements between 
the District and the securities depository. 

 
THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Bond are payable in lawful money of 

the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The principal of this Bond 
shall be paid to the Registered Owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at 
maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption prior to maturity at BOKF, NA, which is the 
"Registrar" or "Paying Agent/Registrar" for this Bond at its designated office for payment in 
Dallas, Texas. The payment of interest on this Bond shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar 
to the Registered Owner hereof on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft, dated as of such 
Interest Payment Date, drawn by the Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the District 
required by the order authorizing the issuance of the Bonds (the "Bond Order") to be on deposit 
with the Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check or draft shall be sent 
by the Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on or before each such Interest 
Payment Date, to the Registered Owner hereof, at its address as it appeared on the last calendar 
day of the month next preceding each such date (the "Record Date") on the Register kept by the 
Registrar listing the names and addresses of the Registered Owners (the "Register"). In addition, 
interest may be paid by such other method, acceptable to the Registrar, requested by, and at the 
risk and expense of, the Registered Owner. In the event of a non-payment of interest on a 

*   From Approval Certificate. 
 



 

 

scheduled payment date, and for 30 calendar days thereafter, a new record date for such interest 
payment (a "Special Record Date") will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when 
funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the District. Notice of the Special 
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (which shall be 15 calendar 
days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least 5 business days prior to the Special 
Record Date by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the address of each Registered 
Owner as it appears on the Register at the close of business on the last business day next preceding 
the date of mailing of such notice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during any period in which 
ownership of the Bond is determined only by a book entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, 
any payment to the securities depository, or its nominee or registered assigns, shall be made in 
accordance with existing arrangements between the District and the securities depository. 

 

ANY ACCRUED INTEREST due at maturity or upon the redemption of this Bond prior 
to maturity as provided herein shall be paid to the Registered Owner upon presentation and 
surrender of this Bond for payment at the designated office for payment of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. The District covenants with the Registered Owner of this Bond that on or before 
each principal payment date, interest payment date, and any redemption date for this Bond it will 
make available to the Registrar, from the "Debt Service Fund" created by the Bond Order, the 
amounts required to provide for the payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of 
and interest on the Bonds, when due. 

 
IF THE DATE for any payment due on this Bond shall be a Saturday, Sunday, a legal 

holiday, or a day on which banking institutions in the city where the designated office for payment 
of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to close, or the 
United States Postal Service is not open for business, then the date for such payment shall be the 
next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking 
institutions are authorized to close, or the United States Postal Service is not open for business; 
and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date 
payment was due. 

 
THIS BOND is one of a series of Bonds dated as of  ,  * and authorized to be 

issued pursuant to the Bond Order adopted by the Board of Directors of the District in the principal 
amount of $ * FOR THE PURPOSE OF REFUNDING BONDS OF THAT 
ISSUE OF TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT EXTENDABLE COMMERCIAL PAPER MODE BONDS, 
SERIES B AND PAYING CERTAIN COSTS OF ISSUING THE BONDS. 

 
ON SEPTEMBER 15,   *, OR ON ANY DATE THEREAFTER, the Bonds maturing 

on and after September 15,   *, may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, at the option 
of the District, with funds derived from any available and lawful source, at a redemption price 
equal to the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption 
as a whole, or from time to time in part, and, if in part, the particular Bonds, or portions thereof, 

*   From Approval Certificate. 
 



 

 

to be redeemed shall be selected and designated by the District, and if less than all of a maturity 
is to be redeemed the Registrar shall determine by lot or other customary method of random 
selection the Bonds, or portions thereof within such maturity to be redeemed (provided that a 
portion of a Bond may be redeemed only in integral multiples of $5,000 of principal amount). 

 
**[THE BONDS MATURING ON   AND   
(the "Term Bonds") are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption by lot prior to maturity in 
the following amounts on the following dates and at a price of par plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date. 

 
 
 
 

Term Bonds maturing on _________ 

Redemption Date 
 

Principal Amount 
   
   

Term Bonds maturing on _________ 

Redemption Date  Principal Amount 
   
   

 
THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT of the Term Bonds required to be redeemed pursuant to 

the operation of the mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions shall be reduced, at the 
direction of the District by the principal amount of any Term Bonds of the stated maturity which, 
at least 50 days prior to a mandatory redemption date, (1) shall have been acquired by the District 
at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Term Bonds plus accrued interest to the 
date of purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, (2) shall 
have been purchased and canceled by the Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the District 
with monies in the Debt Service Fund at a price not exceeding the principal amount of the Term 
Bonds plus accrued interest to the date of purchase thereof, or (3) shall have been redeemed 
pursuant to the optional redemption provisions and not theretofore credited against a mandatory 
sinking fund redemption requirement.] 

 
AT LEAST 30 calendar days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Bonds or 

portions thereof prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Registrar 
by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, to the Registered Owner of each Bond to be 
redeemed at its address as it appeared on the Register on the 45th calendar day prior to such 
redemption date at least 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption and to major securities 
depositories and bond information services. By the date fixed for any such redemption due 
provision shall be made with the Registrar for the payment of the required redemption price for 

*   From Approval Certificate. 
** From Approval Certificate, if applicable. 



 

 

the Bonds or portions for which such payment is made, all as provided above. The Bonds or 
portions thereof which are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed 
prior to their scheduled maturities, and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for 
redemption, and they shall not be regarded as being outstanding except for the right of the 
Registered Owner to receive the redemption price from the Registrar out of the funds provided 
for such payment. If a portion of any Bond shall be redeemed, a substitute Bond or Bonds having 
the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any authorized denomination or 
denominations, at the written request of the Registered Owner, and in aggregate principal amount 
equal to the unredeemed portion thereof, will be issued to the Registered Owner upon the 
surrender thereof for cancellation, at the expense of the District, all as provided in the Bond Order. 

 
DURING ANY PERIOD in which ownership of the Bonds is determined only by a book 

entry at a securities depository for the Bonds, if fewer than all of the Bonds of the same maturity 
and bearing the same interest rate are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds of such maturity and 
bearing such interest rate shall be selected in accordance with the arrangements between the 
District and the securities depository. 

 

WITH RESPECT TO any optional redemption of the Bonds, unless certain prerequisites 
to such redemption required by the Bond Order have been met and moneys sufficient to pay the 
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall have been 
received by the Paying Agent/Registrar prior to the giving of such notice of redemption, such 
notice shall state that said redemption may, at the option of the District, be conditional upon the 
satisfaction of such prerequisites and receipt of such moneys by the Paying Agent/Registrar on or 
prior to the date fixed for such redemption, or upon any prerequisite set forth in such notice of 
redemption. If a conditional notice of redemption is given and such prerequisites to the 
redemption and sufficient moneys are not received, such notice shall be of no force and effect, 
the District shall not redeem such Bonds and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice, in the 
manner in which the notice of redemption was given, to the effect that the Bonds have not been 
redeemed. 

 
ALL BONDS OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered Bonds, without 

interest coupons, in the principal denomination of any integral multiple of $5,000. As provided 
in the Bond Order, this Bond may, at the request of the Registered Owner or the assignee or 
assignees hereof, be assigned, transferred, converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate 
amount of fully registered Bonds, without interest coupons, payable to the appropriate Registered 
Owner, assignee or assignees, as the case may be, having any authorized denomination or 
denominations as requested in writing by the appropriate Registered Owner, assignee or 
assignees, as the case may be, upon surrender of this Bond to the Registrar for cancellation, all in 
accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the Bond Order. Among other requirements 
for such assignment and transfer, this Bond must be presented and surrendered to the Registrar, 
together with proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures 
satisfactory to the Registrar, evidencing assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof 
in any authorized denomination to the assignee or assignees in whose name or names this Bond 
or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be registered. The Form of Assignment printed 
or endorsed on this Bond may be executed by the Registered Owner to evidence the assignment 



 

 

hereof, but such method is not exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the 
Registrar may be used to evidence the assignment of this Bond or any portion or portions hereof 
from time to time by the Registered Owner. The Registrar's reasonable standard or customary 
fees and charges for assigning, transferring, converting and exchanging any Bond or portion 
thereof will be paid by the District. In any circumstance, any taxes or governmental charges 
required to be paid with respect thereto shall be paid by the one requesting such assignment, 
transfer, conversion or exchange, as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege. The 
Registrar shall not be required to make any such transfer, conversion or exchange of any Bond or 
any portion thereof (i) during the period commencing with the close of business on any Record 
Date and ending with the opening of business on the next following principal or Interest Payment 
Date or (ii) within 45 calendar days prior to its redemption date; provided, however, such 
limitation on transferability shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Registered Owner of 
the unredeemed balance hereof in the event of its redemption in part. 

 
WHENEVER the beneficial ownership of this Bond is determined by a book entry at a 

securities depository for the Bonds, the foregoing requirements of holding, delivering or 
transferring this Bond shall be modified to require the appropriate person or entity to meet the 
requirements of the securities depository as to registering or transferring the book entry to produce 
the same effect. 

 

IN THE EVENT any Registrar for the Bonds is changed by the District, resigns, or 
otherwise ceases to act as such, the District has covenanted in the Bond Order that it promptly 
will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and cause written notice thereof 
to be mailed to the Registered Owners of the Bonds. 

 
THE BONDS are payable from the proceeds of an ad valorem tax, without legal limit as 

to rate or amount, levied upon all taxable property within the District. The Bond Order further 
provides that the pledge of taxes to the payment of the Bonds shall terminate at such time, if ever, 
as (i) money and/or Defeasance Securities (as defined in the Bond Order) are deposited with or 
made available to the Registrar in accordance with the Bond Order or (ii) the District is abolished 
and the obligations of the District are assumed pursuant to existing Texas law. 

 
THE BONDS are issued pursuant to the Bond Order, whereunder the District covenants 

to levy a continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax, without legal limit as to rate or amount, on 
taxable property within the District, for each year while any part of the Bonds are considered 
outstanding under the provisions of the Bond Order, in sufficient amount to pay interest on the 
Bonds as it becomes due, to provide a sinking fund for the payment of the principal of the Bonds 
when due or the redemption price at any earlier required redemption date with respect to the 
Bonds, and to pay the expenses of assessing and collecting such tax, all as more specifically 
provided in the Bond Order. Reference is hereby made to the Bond Order for provisions with 
respect to the custody and application of funds, remedies in the event of a default hereunder or 
thereunder, and the other rights of the Registered Owners of the Bonds. By acceptance of this 
Bond the Registered Owner hereof consents to all of the provisions of the Bond Order, a certified 
copy of which is on file in the office of the District. 

 



 

 

THE OBLIGATION to pay the principal of and the interest on this Bond is solely and 
exclusively the obligation of the District until such time, if ever, as the District is abolished and 
this Bond is assumed as described above. No other entity, including the State of Texas, any 
political subdivision thereof other than the District, or any other public or private body, is 
obligated, directly, indirectly, contingently, or in any other manner, to pay the principal of or the 
interest on this Bond from any source whatsoever. No part of the physical properties of the 
District, including the properties refinanced by the proceeds of the Bonds, is encumbered by any 
lien for the benefit of the Registered Owner of this Bond. 

 
THE DISTRICT RESERVES THE RIGHT to issue additional bonds heretofore or 

hereafter duly authorized at elections held in the District payable from a lien on and pledge of 
taxes; bonds, notes and other obligations of inferior liens, and revenue bonds, notes and other 
obligations payable solely from revenues of the District or revenues to be received under contracts 
with other persons, including private corporations, municipalities and political subdivisions or 
from any other source. The District further reserves the right to issue refunding bonds in any 
manner permitted by law to refund any bonds (including the Bonds) at or prior to their respective 
dates of maturity or redemption. 

 

TO THE EXTENT permitted by and in the manner provided in the Bond Order, the terms 
and provisions of the Bond Order and the rights of the Registered Owners of the Bonds may be 
modified with, in certain circumstances, the consent of the Registered Owners of a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds affected thereby; provided, however, that, without the 
consent of the Registered Owners of all of the Bonds affected, no such modification shall (i) 
extend the time or times of payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, reduce the 
principal amount thereof or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms of 
payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds, (ii) give any preference to any Bond over 
any other Bond, or (iii) reduce the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required for consent 
to any such modification. 

 
THIS BOND shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any benefit 

under the Bond Order unless this Bond either (a) is registered by the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas as evidenced by execution of the registration certificate endorsed 
hereon or (b) is authenticated as evidenced by execution of the authentication certificate endorsed 
hereon by the Registrar. 

 
IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED, COVENANTED, AND REPRESENTED that all acts, 

conditions, and things necessary to be done precedent to the issuance of the Bonds in order 
to render the same legal, valid, and binding obligations of the District have happened and have 
been accomplished and performed in regular and due time, form, and manner, as required by law; 
that provision has been made for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds by the 
levy of a continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax upon all taxable property within the District 
and that issuance of the Bonds does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation. In the 
event that any provisions herein contained do or would, presently or prospectively, operate to 
make any part hereof void or voidable, such provisions shall be without effect or prejudice to the 
remaining provisions hereof, which shall nevertheless remain operative, and such violative 



 

 

provisions, if any, shall be reformed by a court of competent jurisdiction within the limits of the 
laws of the State of Texas. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has caused this Bond to be signed with the 

manual or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Directors of the District and 
countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary or other Authorized Officer 
of the Board of Directors of the District, and has caused the official seal of the District to be duly 
impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Bond. 

 

 

TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT,  
A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
   
xxxxxxxxxxxx  xxxxxxxxxxxxx 
Secretary, Board of Directors  President, Board of Directors 

(SEAL)   

 

SECTION 6.02.    REGISTRATION  OF  INITIAL  BOND  BY STATE 
COMPTROLLER AND CERTIFICATE. The Initial Bond shall be registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas as provided by law. The registration 
certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas shall be printed on the face 
of the Initial Bond and shall be in substantially the following form: 

 
COMPTROLLER'S REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE:  REGISTER NO. 

 
I hereby certify that this Bond has been examined, certified as to validity, and approved 

by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Bond has been registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 
Witness my signature and seal this 

 

 

Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas 

(COMPTROLLER'S SEAL) 

 
 SECTION 6.03. FORM OF AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE. The 
following form of authentication certificate shall be printed on the face of each of the Bonds other 
than the Initial Bond: 



 

 

 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE 

 
(To be executed if this Bond is not accompanied by an executed Registration Certificate of 

the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas) 

It is hereby certified that this Bond has been issued under the provisions of the Bond Order 
described in the text of this Bond; and that this Bond has been issued in conversion or replacement 
of, or in exchange for, a Bond, Bonds, or a portion of a Bond or Bonds of a series which originally 
was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the Comptroller of 
Public Accounts of the State of Texas. 

 
Dated: __________________  BOKF, NA 
  Dallas, Texas 

 
 
 

  By___________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 

 

SECTION 6.04. FORM OF ASSIGNMENT. A form of assignment shall be 
printed on the back of each of the Bonds and shall be in substantially the following form: 

 
ASSIGNMENT 

 
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 
 
Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee 
 

 
 

(Please print or typewrite name and address, including zip code of Transferee) 
 

 
the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and 

appoints 
 , attorney, to register the transfer of the 

within Bond on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the 
premises. 



 

 

 
Dated:    
Signature Guaranteed: 
 
 
NOTICE: Signature(s) must be 

guaranteed by a member firm of the New 
York Stock Exchange or a commercial 
bank or trust company. 

NOTICE: The signature above must 
correspond with the name  of the Registered 
Owner as it a appears upon the front of this 
Bond in every particular, with- out 
alteration or enlargement or any change 
whatsoever 

 
SECTION 6.05.  CUSIP REGISTRATION. The President of the Board of Directors 

may secure the printing of identification numbers on the Bonds through the CUSIP Global 
Services, managed by S&P Global Market Intelligence on behalf of the American Bankers 
Association. 

 
SECTION 6.06. LEGAL OPINION AND BOND INSURANCE. (a) The 

approving opinions of McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., Dallas, Texas, and Kintop Smith, 
PLLC, Dallas, Texas may be printed on the back of the Bonds over the certification of the 
Secretary of the Board of Directors which may be executed in facsimile. If bond insurance is 
obtained for the Bonds, a Statement of Insurance may be placed on the back of, or attached to, 
the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 6.07.   INITIAL BOND. The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in this 

Section, except that: 
A. immediately above the name of the Bond, the two paragraphs with respect to DTC 

shall be removed. 

B. immediately under the name of the Bond, the headings "INTEREST RATE" and 
"MATURITY DATE" shall both be completed with the words "As shown in below" and "CUSIP 
NO." shall be deleted. 

C. the principal amount specified in the Approval Certificate shall be entered under 
the heading "PRINCIPAL AMOUNT." 

D. the first paragraph shall be deleted and the following will be inserted: "TARRANT 
REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT, A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (the "District"), being a political subdivision, hereby promises to pay to the Registered 
Owner specified above, or registered assigns (hereinafter called the "Registered Owner"), the 
principal amount specified above, payable in annual installments on September 15 in each of the 
years and in the principal amounts and bearing interest at the per annum rates set forth in the 
following schedule: 

 



 

 

Year  
Principal 
Amount  Interest Rate 

     

     

 
(Information from Approval Certificate to be inserted) 

 
The District promises to pay interest (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 

30-day months) on the unpaid principal amount hereof from  ,   *, at the respective interest 
rate per annum specified above. Interest is payable semiannually on each March 15 and 
September 15, commencing   15,  ,* thereafter to the date of payment of the principal installment 
specified above; except, that if this Bond is required to be authenticated and the date of its 
authentication is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such principal amount shall 
bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication, unless such 
date of authentication is after any Record Date but on or before the next following interest 
payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest from such next following 
interest payment date; provided, however, that if on the date of authentication hereof the interest 
on the Bond or Bonds, if any, for which this Bond is being exchanged is due but has not been 
paid, then this Bond shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full." 

 
E. The Initial Bond shall be numbered "T-1." 
 

ARTICLE SEVEN 
 

SECURITY OF THE BONDS 
 

SECTION 7.01. SECURITY OF BONDS AND PERFECTION OF LIEN. The 
Bonds are secured by and payable from the levy of a continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax, 
without legal limitation as to rate or amount, upon all taxable property within the District. 

 
Chapter 1208, Texas Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Bonds and the 

pledge of the ad valorem taxes granted by the District under this Article Seven, and is therefore 
valid, effective, and perfected. If Texas law is amended at any time while the Bonds are 
outstanding and unpaid such that the pledge of the ad valorem taxes granted by the District under 
this Section is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce Code, 
then in order to preserve to the Owners of the Bonds the perfection of the security interest in said 
pledge, the District agrees to take such measures as it determines are reasonable and necessary 
under Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 9, Business & Commerce 
Code and enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said pledge to occur. 

 
SECTION 7.02.  LEVY OF TAX. To pay the interest on the Bonds, and to create a 

* From Approval Certificate 



 

 

sinking fund for the payment of the principal thereof when due, and to pay the expenses of 
assessing and collecting such taxes, there is hereby levied, and there shall be assessed and 
collected in due time, a continuing, direct annual ad valorem tax without legal limit as to rate or 
amount on all taxable property in the District for each year while any of the Bonds are outstanding. 
All of the proceeds of such collections, except expenses incurred in that connection, shall be paid 
into the Debt Service Fund, and the aforementioned tax and such payments into such fund shall 
continue until the Bonds and the interest thereon have been fully paid and discharged, and such 
proceeds shall be used for such purposes and no other. While said Bonds, or any of them, are 
outstanding and unpaid, an ad valorem tax that will be ample and sufficient to provide funds to 
pay the interest on said Bonds and to provide the necessary sinking fund to pay the principal when 
due, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of collection, together with revenues 
and receipts from other sources that are legally available for such purpose, shall be levied and 
collected and applied to the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds, as follows: 

 
(a) By September 1 in each year, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the Board shall 

consider the taxable property in the District and determine the actual rate per $100 valuation of 
taxable property which is to be levied in that year and levy the tax against all taxable property in 
the District. 

 
(b) In determining the actual rate to be levied in each year, the Board shall consider 

among other things: 
 

(i) the amount which should be levied for maintenance and operation purposes; 
 
(ii) the amount which should be levied for the payment of principal, interest, 

and redemption price of each series of bonds or notes payable in whole or 
in part from taxes; 

(iii) the amount which should be levied for the purpose of paying all other 
contractual obligations of the District payable in whole or in part from taxes; 
and 

 
(iv) the percentage of anticipated tax collections and the cost of collecting the 

taxes. 
 
(c) In determining the amount of taxes which should be levied each year, the Board 

shall consider whether proceeds from the sale of Bonds have been placed in the Debt Service Fund 
(as defined in Section 8.01 of this Order) to pay interest on the Bonds and whether the Board 
reasonably expects to have revenue or receipts available from other sources which are legally 
available to pay debt service on the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 7.03. PAYMENT OF BONDS AND PERFORMANCE 

OF OBLIGATIONS. The District covenants to pay promptly the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds as the same become due and payable, whether at maturity or by prior redemption, in 
accordance with the terms of the Bonds and this Order, and to keep and perform faithfully all of 
its covenants, undertakings, and agreements contained in this Order, or in any Bond executed, 
authenticated, and delivered hereunder. 



 

 

 
SECTION 7.04.  ABOLITION OF DISTRICT. To the extent provided by law, the 

pledge of taxes set forth in Section 7.02 will terminate if properties and assets are taken over, all 
debts, liabilities, and obligations are assumed, and all functions and services of the District are 
assumed, and the District is abolished pursuant to law. 

 
ARTICLE EIGHT 

 
FLOW OF FUNDS AND INVESTMENTS 

 
SECTION 8.01.  FUNDS. The ECP Series B Refunding Debt Service Fund is hereby 

created or confirmed. The Debt Service Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds 
of the District. Each fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds of the District. The 
Debt Service Fund shall constitute a trust fund which shall be held in trust for the benefit of the 
owners of the Bonds. All funds shall be used solely as provided in this Order until all of the Bonds 
have been retired, both as to principal and interest. 

 
SECTION 8.02.  SECURITY OF FUNDS. Any cash balance in any fund, to the extent 

not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or its successor, shall be continuously 
secured in the manner provided by law for the security of funds of counties of the State of Texas. 

 
SECTION 8.03. DEPOSIT AND USE OF DEBT SERVICE FUND. The District 

shall deposit or cause to be deposited into the Debt Service Fund the aggregate of the following 
at the time specified: 

(a) As soon as practicable after the Bonds are sold, accrued interest on the Bonds from 
their date to the date of their delivery; and 

 
(b) The proceeds from collection of the ad valorem taxes levied, assessed and collected 

for and on account of the Bonds pursuant to Section 7.02 hereof, less costs of 
collection, as collected. 

 
On or before the date for payment of the principal and/or Interest Payment Date on the 

Bonds, the Board of Directors shall cause the transfer of moneys out of the Debt Service Fund to 
the Registrar in an amount not less than that which is sufficient to pay the principal which matures 
on such date and the interest which accrues on such date. The District shall pay fees and charges 
of the Registrar for its services as paying agent and registrar for the Bonds from the Debt Service 
Fund. 

 
SECTION 8.04.  INVESTMENTS; EARNINGS. Moneys deposited into the Debt 

Service Fund and any other fund or funds which the District may lawfully create may be invested 
or reinvested in Authorized Investments. All investments and any profits realized from and 
interest accruing on investments made from any fund may be transferred to the Debt Service 
Fund. If any moneys are so invested, the District shall have the right to have sold in the open 
market a sufficient amount of such investments to meet its obligations in the event any fund does 
not have sufficient uninvested funds on hand to meet the obligations payable out of such fund. 
After such sale the moneys resulting therefrom shall belong to the fund from which the moneys 



 

 

for such investments were initially taken. The District shall not be responsible to the Registered 
Owners for any loss arising out of the sale of any investments. 

 
ARTICLE NINE 

 
APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS 

 
SECTION 9.01.  BOND PROCEEDS. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be 

disbursed in accordance with this Article. 
 
SECTION 9.02.  ACCRUED INTEREST. Moneys received from the Underwriter of 

the Bonds representing accrued interest on the Bonds from their date to the date of their actual 
delivery shall be deposited into the Debt Service Fund. 

 
SECTION 9.03.  DEPOSIT AGREEMENT. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds 

after making the deposit provided in Section 9.02 and paying or making provisions for the 
payment of the costs in connection with issuing the Bonds, shall be deposited pursuant to the 
instructions of an Authorized Representative or the District's financial advisor, Hilltop Securities 
Inc., including deposits required by the Deposit Agreement to be made into the Payment Account 
created therein. The Deposit Agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A", 
is hereby approved and the President and any Vice President is authorized and directed, for and 
on behalf of the District, to execute, and the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary or other 
Authorized Officer of the Board is authorized to attest, the Deposit Agreement with such changes 
as approved by such Officers. 

ARTICLE TEN 
 

PROVISIONS CONCERNING FEDERAL INCOME TAX EXCLUSION 
 

SECTION 10.01. COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF 
INTEREST ON THE BONDS. If the Bonds are to be issued on a tax-exempt basis, the following 
shall apply: 

 
(a) Covenants. The District covenants to take any action necessary to assure, or refrain from 
any action which would adversely affect, the treatment of the Bonds as obligations described in 
section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the interest on which 
is not includable in the "gross income" of the holder for purposes of federal income taxation. In 
furtherance thereof, the District covenants as follows: 

 
(1) to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds of the 

Bonds or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited to a reserve fund, if any) are 
used for any "private business use," as defined in section 141(b)(6) of the Code or, if more than 
10 percent of the proceeds or the projects financed therewith are so used, such amounts, whether 
or not received by the District, with respect to such private business use, do not, under the terms 
of this Order or any underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secure or provide for the 
payment of more than 10 percent of the debt service on the Bonds, in contravention of section 
141(b)(2) of the Code; 



 

 

 
(2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the "private business use" described 

in subsection (1) hereof exceeds 5 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds or the projects financed 
therewith (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, if any) then the amount in excess of 5 
percent is used for a "private business use" which is "related" and not "disproportionate," within 
the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the Code, to the governmental use; 

 
(3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of 

$5,000,000, or 5 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds (less amounts deposited into a reserve fund, 
if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons, other than state or local 
governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c) of the Code; 

 
(4) to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the Bonds being 

treated as "private activity bonds" within the meaning of section 141(b) of the Code; 
 
(5) to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Bonds being "federally 

guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code; 
 
(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, directly or indirectly, 

to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly or indirectly, to acquire investment 
property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code) which produces a materially higher yield 
over the term of the Bonds, other than investment property acquired with – 

 
 

(A) proceeds of the Bonds invested for a reasonable temporary period of 3 years or less 
or, in the case of a refunding bond, for a period of 90 days or less, until such 
proceeds are needed for the purpose for which the Bonds are issued, 

 
(B) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning of section 

l.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and 
 
(C) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement fund to the 

extent such amounts do not exceed 10 percent of the proceeds of the Bonds; 
 
(7) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Bonds or amounts treated as 

proceeds of the Bonds, as may be necessary, so that the Bonds do not otherwise contravene the 
requirements of section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage); 

 
(8) to refrain from using the proceeds of the Bonds or proceeds of any prior bonds to 

pay debt service on another issue more than 90 days after the date of issue of the Bonds in 
contravention of the requirements of section 149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings); 
and 

 
(9) to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year period 

(beginning on the date of delivery of the Bonds) an amount that is at least equal to 90 percent of 
the "Excess Earnings," within the meaning of section 148(f) of the Code and to pay to the United 



 

 

States of America, not later than 60 days after the Bonds have been paid in full, 100 percent of 
the amount then required to be paid as a result of Excess Earnings under section 148(f) of the 
Code. 

 
(b) Compliance with Code. The District understands that the term "proceeds" includes 

"disposition proceeds" as defined in the Treasury Regulations and, in the case of refunding bonds, 
transferred proceeds (if any) and proceeds of the refunded bonds expended prior to the date of 
issuance of the Bonds. It is the understanding of the District that the covenants contained herein 
are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings promulgated by 
the U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that regulations or rulings are 
hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code, as applicable to the Bonds, 
the District will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein to the extent that 
such failure to comply, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel, will not adversely 
affect the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Bonds under section 103 of 
the Code. In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose 
additional requirements which are applicable to the Bonds, the District agrees to comply with the 
additional requirements to the extent necessary, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond 
counsel, to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Bonds under 
section 103 of the Code. In furtherance of such intention, the District hereby authorizes and directs 
any Authorized Representative to execute any documents, certificates or reports required by the 
Code and to make such elections, on behalf of the District, which may be permitted by the Code 
as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance of the Bonds. The District covenants to comply 
with the covenants contained in this section after defeasance of the Bonds. 

 

(c) Disposition of Project. The District covenants that the property refinanced with the 
proceeds of the Bonds (the "Project") will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction 
resulting in the receipt by the District of cash or other compensation, unless the District obtains 
an opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel that such sale or other disposition will not 
adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. For purposes of the foregoing, the portion of 
the property comprising personal property and disposed in the ordinary course shall not be treated 
as a transaction resulting in the receipt of cash or other compensation. For purposes hereof, the 
District shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such 
failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from 
gross income of the interest on the Bonds. 

 
(d) Allocation of, and Limitation on, Expenditures for the Project. The District 

covenants to account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings on its books 
and records by allocating proceeds to expenditures within 18 months of the later of the date that 
(1) the expenditure is made, or (2) the Project is completed. The foregoing notwithstanding, the 
District shall not expend sale proceeds or investment earnings thereon more than 60 days after 
the later of (1) the fifth anniversary of the delivery of the Bonds, or (2) the date the Bonds are 
retired, unless the District obtains an opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel that such 
expenditure will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. For purposes hereof, the 
District shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such 
failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from 
gross income of the interest. 



 

 

 
(e) Rebate Fund. In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (a)(9), a 

"Rebate Fund" is hereby established by the District for the sole benefit of the United States of 
America, and such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without 
limitation, the bondholders. The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of 
compliance with section 148 of the Code. 

 
(f) Written Procedures. Unless superseded by another action of the District to ensure 

compliance with the covenants contained herein regarding private business use, remedial actions, 
arbitrage and rebate, the District hereby adopts and establishes the instructions attached hereto as 
Exhibit "B" as their written procedures applicable to the Bonds and Additional Bonds. 

 
ARTICLE ELEVEN 

 
ADDITIONAL BONDS AND REFUNDING BONDS 

 
SECTION 11.01.  ADDITIONAL BONDS. The District expressly reserves the right to 

issue, in one or more installments, for the purpose of purchasing, constructing, acquiring, owning, 
operating, maintaining, repairing, improving, or extending the System, or for any other lawful 
purpose: 

 
(a) the unissued unlimited tax bonds which were authorized pursuant to the Bond 

Elections; and 

(b) such other unlimited tax bonds as may hereafter be authorized at subsequent 
elections. 

 
SECTION 11.02. OTHER BONDS AND OBLIGATIONS. The District further 

reserves the right to issue unlimited tax bonds and combination unlimited tax and revenue bonds, 
if authorized by election, and such other bonds or other obligations as may be lawfully issued by 
the District including any obligations issued for special projects or defined areas. 

 
SECTION 11.03.  REFUNDING BONDS. The District further reserves the right to issue 

refunding bonds in any manner permitted by law to refund the Bonds at or prior to their respective 
dates of maturity or redemption. 

 
ARTICLE TWELVE 

 
DEFAULT PROVISIONS 

 
SECTION 12.01.  REMEDIES IN EVENT OF DEFAULT. In addition to any other 

rights and remedies provided by the laws of the State of Texas, the District covenants and agrees 
that in the event of default in payment of principal of or interest on any of the Bonds when due, 
or, in the event it fails to make the payments required to be made into the Debt Service Fund, or 
defaults in the observance or performance of any other of the covenants, conditions, or obligations 
set forth in this Order, the Registered Owners shall be entitled to a writ of mandamus issued by a 
court of competent jurisdiction compelling and requiring the District and the officials thereof to 



 

 

observe and perform the covenants, obligations, or conditions prescribed in this Order. Any delay 
or omission to exercise any right or power or be construed to be a waiver of any such default or 
acquiescence therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as 
often as may be deemed expedient. 

 
SECTION 12.02.  BOND ORDER IS CONTRACT. In consideration of the purchase 

and acceptance of the Bonds authorized to be issued hereunder by the Registered Owners, the 
provisions of this Order shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract between the District 
and the Registered Owners; and the covenants and agreements herein set forth to be performed 
on behalf of the District shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of each of the 
Registered Owners. The Bonds, regardless of the time or times of their issue or maturity, shall be 
of equal rank without preference, priority, or distinction of any Bond over any other, except as 
expressly provided herein. 

 
ARTICLE THIRTEEN 

 
DISCHARGE BY DEPOSIT 

 
SECTION 13.01.  DEFEASANCE OF BONDS. (a) Any Bond and the interest thereon 

shall be deemed to be paid, retired and no longer outstanding (a "Defeased Bond") within the 
meaning of this Order, except to the extent provided in subsections (c) and (e) of this Section, 
when payment of the principal of such Bond, plus interest thereon to the due date or dates 
(whether such due date or dates be by reason of maturity, upon redemption, or otherwise) either 
(i) shall have been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof (including the 
giving of any required notice of redemption) or (ii) shall have been provided for on or before such 
due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 
such payment (1) lawful money of the United States of America sufficient to make such payment, 
(2) Defeasance Securities, certified by an independent public accounting firm of national 
reputation to mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will ensure 
the availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment and when 
proper arrangements have been made by the District with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
payment of its services until all Defeased Bonds shall have become due and payable or (3) any 
combination of (1) and (2). At such time as a Bond shall be deemed to be a Defeased Bond 
hereunder, as aforesaid, such Bond and the interest thereon shall no longer be secured by, payable 
from, or entitled to the benefits of, the ad valorem taxes herein levied as provided in this Order, 
and such principal and interest shall be payable solely from such money or Defeasance Securities. 

 
(b) The deposit under clause (ii) of subsection (a) shall be deemed a payment of a Bond 

as aforesaid when proper notice of redemption of such Bonds shall have been given, in accordance 
with this Order. Any money so deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar as provided in this 
Section may at the discretion of the Board of Directors also be invested in Defeasance Securities, 
maturing in the amounts and at the times as hereinbefore set forth, and all income from all 
Defeasance Securities in possession of the Paying Agent/Registrar pursuant to this Section which 
is not required for the payment of such Bond and premium, if any, and interest thereon with 
respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the Board of Directors. 

 



 

 

(c) Notwithstanding any provision of any other Section of this Order which may be 
contrary to the provisions of this Section, all money or Defeasance Securities set aside and held 
in trust pursuant to the provisions of this Section for the payment of principal of the Bonds and 
premium, if any, and interest thereon, shall be applied to and used solely for the payment of the 
particular Bonds and premium, if any, and interest thereon, with respect to which such money or 
Defeasance Securities have been so set aside in trust. Until all Defeased Bonds shall have become 
due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar 
for such Defeased Bonds the same as if they had not been defeased, and the District shall make 
proper arrangements to provide and pay for such services as required by this Order. 

 
(d) Notwithstanding anything elsewhere in this Order, if money or Defeasance 

Securities have been deposited or set aside or made available to with the Paying Agent/Registrar 
pursuant to this Section for the payment of Bonds and such Bonds shall not have in fact been 
actually paid in full, no amendment of the provisions of this Section shall be made without the 
consent of the registered owner of each Bond affected thereby. 

 
(e) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a) immediately above, to the extent 

that, upon the defeasance of any Defeased Bond to be paid at its maturity, the District retains the 
right under Texas law to later call that Defeased Bond for redemption in accordance with the 
provisions of the Order authorizing its issuance, the District may call such Defeased Bond for 
redemption upon complying with the provisions of Texas law and upon the satisfaction of the 
provisions of subsection (a) immediately above with respect to such Defeased Bond as though it 
was being defeased at the time of the exercise of the option to redeem the Defeased Bond and the 
effect of the redemption is taken into account in determining the sufficiency of the provisions 
made for the payment of the Defeased Bond. 

 
ARTICLE FOURTEEN 

 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
SECTION 14.01. DISTRICT'S SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. Whenever in this 

Order the District is named and referred to, it shall be deemed to include its successors and 
assigns, and all covenants and agreements in this Order by or on behalf of the District, except as 
otherwise provided herein, shall bind and inure to the benefit of its successors and assigns whether 
or not so expressed. 

 
SECTION 14.02. NO  RECOURSE  AGAINST  DISTRICT  OFFICERS OR 

DIRECTORS. No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or interest on the 
Bonds or for any claim based thereon or on this Order against any officer or director of the District 
or any person executing the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 14.03.  REGISTRAR. The Registrar shall act as agent for the payment of 

principal of and interest on the Bonds and shall maintain the Register for the Bonds, all in 
accordance with the terms of this Order. If the Registrar or its successor becomes unable for any 
reason to act as Registrar hereunder, or if the Board of Directors of the District determines that a 
successor Registrar should be appointed, a successor Registrar shall be selected by the District. 



 

 

Any successor Registrar shall be either a bank, trust company, financial institution, or other entity 
duly qualified and legally authorized to serve and perform the duties as paying agent and registrar 
for the Bonds. 

 
SECTION 14.04.  REGISTRAR MAY OWN BONDS. The Registrar, in its individual 

or any other capacity, may become the owner or pledgee of the Bonds with the same rights it 
would have if it were not Registrar. 

 
SECTION 14.05.  BENEFITS OF PROVISIONS. Nothing in this Order or in the 

Bonds, expressed or implied, shall give or be construed to give any person, firm, or corporation, 
other than the District, the Registrar, and the Registered Owners, any legal or equitable right or 
claim under or in respect of this Order, or under any covenant, condition, or provision herein 
contained, all the covenants, conditions, and provisions contained in this Order or in the Bonds 
being for the sole benefit of the District, the Registrar, and the Registered Owners. 

 
SECTION 14.06. UNAVAILABILITY OF AUTHORIZED PUBLICATION. If, 

because of the temporary or permanent suspension of any newspaper, journal, or other 
publication, or for any reason, publication of notice cannot be made meeting any requirements 
herein established, any notice required to be published by the provisions of this Order shall be 
given in such other manner and at such time or times as in the judgment of the District shall most 
effectively approximate such required publication, and the giving of such notice in such manner 
shall for all purposes of this Order be deemed to be in compliance with the requirements for 
publication thereof. 

 

SECTION 14.07.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any word, phrase, clause, sentence, 
paragraph, section, or other part of this Order, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance, shall ever be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, the remainder of this Order and the application of such word, phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph, section, or other part of this Order to any other persons or circumstances 
shall not be affected thereby. 

 
SECTION 14.08.  ACCOUNTING. The District will keep proper records and accounts 

regarding the levy and collection of taxes, which records and accounts will be made available to 
any Registered Owner on reasonable request. Each year while any of the Bonds are outstanding, 
the District shall have an audit of its books and accounts by a certified public accountant or firm 
of certified public accountants, based on its Fiscal Year, and copies of such audits will be made 
available to any Registered Owner upon request. 

 
SECTION 14.09.  FURTHER PROCEEDINGS. The President and Secretary or other 

Authorized Officer of the Board of Directors and other appropriate officials of the District are 
hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things necessary and/or convenient to carry out 
the terms of this Order. 

 
 

ARTICLE FIFTEEN 



 

 

 
SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS AND APPROVAL OF DOCUMENTS 
 
SECTION 15.01.  SALE OF BONDS. Pursuant to the authorizations in Article 3 hereof, 

as approved by the Authorized Representative, the Bonds may be sold either pursuant to the taking 
of bids therefor as provided in the Official Notice of Sale or by negotiated sale or placement 
pursuant to a purchase agreement or other agreement (the "Purchase Agreement") with a 
purchaser or purchasers (collectively, the "Underwriters") to be approved by an Authorized 
Representative, and any supplements thereto which may be necessary to accomplish the issuance 
of Bonds. Such Purchase Agreement is hereby authorized to be dated, executed and delivered on 
behalf of the Issuer by an Authorized Representative, with such changes therein as shall be 
approved by an Authorized Representative, the execution thereof by an Authorized 
Representative to constitute evidence of such approval. The delegation of authority to an 
Authorized Representative to approve the final terms of the Bonds as set forth in this Order is, 
and the decisions made by an Authorized Representative pursuant to such delegated authority will 
be, in the best interests of the Issuer, and an Authorized Representative is authorized to make a 
finding to such effect in the Approval Certificate. 

 
SECTION 15.02. APPROVAL, REGISTRATION, AND DELIVERY. The 

President of the Board of Directors of the District and representatives of McCall, Parkhurst & 
Horton L.L.P. and/or Kintop Smith, PLLC are each hereby authorized and directed to submit 
the Initial Bond and a transcript of the proceedings relating to the issuance of the Bonds to the 
Attorney General of the State of Texas for approval and, following said approval, to submit the 
Initial Bonds to the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas for registration. Upon 
registration of the Initial Bond, the Comptroller of Public Accounts (or a deputy designated in 
writing to act for the Comptroller) shall manually sign the Comptroller's registration certificate 
prescribed herein to be printed and endorsed on the Initial Bond, and the seal of the Comptroller 
shall be impressed or placed in facsimile on the Initial Bond. After the Initial Bond has been 
registered, signed, and sealed by the Comptroller, they shall be delivered to the Underwriter, but 
only upon receipt of the full purchase price. 

 
SECTION 15.03    APPROVAL OF OFFERING DOCUMENTS AND PAYING 

AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT. The Authorized Representative is hereby authorized to 
approve the Preliminary Official Statement, the Official Statement relating to the Bonds and any 
addenda, supplement or amendment thereto (collectively, the "Offering Documents"). For the 
purpose of review by the Underwriter prior to purchasing the Bonds, the District deems said 
Preliminary Official Statement to have been "final as of its date" within the meaning of the Rule. 
The District further approves the distribution of such Official Statement in the reoffering of the 
Bonds by the Underwriter in final form, with such changes therein or additions thereto as an 
Authorized Representative executing the same may deem advisable, such determination to be 
conclusively evidenced by his execution thereof. 

 
The Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement by and between the District and BOFK, NA 

("Paying Agent Agreement") in substantially the form and substance attached hereto as Exhibit 
"C" is hereby approved and the President or Vice President is hereby authorized and directed to 
complete, amend, modify and execute the Paying Agent Agreement, as necessary and the 



 

 

Secretary or Assistant Secretary or other Authorized Officer of the Board is authorized and 
directed to attest such agreement. 

 
SECTION 15.04.   REFUNDING OF REFUNDED BONDS. (a) The Refunded Bonds 

shall be paid upon the earlier of their stated maturity dates or the earliest redemption dates for 
which notice of redemption can be given pursuant to the Master Resolution, in each case at a price 
of par plus accrued interest to the date of payment. As soon as practicable after sale of the Bonds, 
appropriate notices of redemption shall be delivered to the paying agent/registrar for the Refunded 
Bonds to notify, in accordance with the requirements of the Master Resolution, the owners of the 
Refunded Bonds of the call for redemption thereof. 

 
(b)  Concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds, the Issuer shall cause to be deposited an 

amount from the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds, together with, to the extent necessary, 
available funds of the Issuer, with the paying agent/registrar for the Refunded Bonds, sufficient 
to provide for the refunding and redemption, on the date or dates fixed for redemption, of all of 
the Refunded Bonds, in accordance with Subchapter C of Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code, 
as amended. In addition, the Authorized Officer is authorized to transfer and deposit such cash 
from available funds (including surplus funds in the Interest and Redemption Fund) as may be 
necessary for the Payment Account described in such Deposit Agreement. It is hereby found and 
determined that the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, which consist of bonds in an extendable 
commercial paper mode, makes it impracticable to determine the maximum amount by which the 
aggregate amount of payments to be made under the Bonds exceeds the aggregate amount of 
payments that would have been made under the terms of the Refunded Bonds for purposes of 
Section 1207.008(a)(2), Texas Government Code. 

 
 

ARTICLE SIXTEEN 
 

OPEN MEETING AND EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
SECTION 16.01. OPEN MEETING. The Board of Directors officially finds, 

determines, and declares that this Order was reviewed, carefully considered, and adopted at a 
meeting of the Board, and that a sufficient written notice of the date, hour, place, and subject of 
this meeting was posted as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas Government 
Code, as amended, and that the meeting was open to the public as required by law at all times 
during which this Order and the subject matter hereof has been discussed, considered, and acted 
upon. The Board of Directors further ratifies, approves and confirms such written notice and the 
contents and posting thereof. 

 
SECTION 16.02. EFFECTIVE DATE OF BOND ORDER. This Order shall take 

effect and be in full force and effect upon and after its passage. 
 

 
 
 

ARTICLE SEVENTEEN 



 

 

 
AMENDMENTS 

 
SECTION 17.01. AMENDMENTS. (a) Amendment with Consent of Owners of 51% of 

Bonds. The owners of 51% in aggregate principal amount of then outstanding Bonds shall have 
the right from time to time to approve any amendment to this Order which may be deemed 
necessary or desirable by the District; provided however, that, other than as permitted by 
subsection (f) of this Section 17.01, nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed to 
permit the amendment, without the consent of the owner of each of the outstanding Bonds affected 
thereby, of the terms and conditions of this Order or the Bonds so as to: 
 
(1) change debt service requirements, interest payment dates or the maturity or maturities of 

the outstanding Bonds; 
 
(2) reduce the rate of interest borne by any of the outstanding Bonds; 
 
(3) reduce the amount of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the 

outstanding Bonds or impose any conditions with respect to such payments; 
 
(4) modify the terms of payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on 

the outstanding Bonds, or impose any conditions with respect to such payments; 
 
(5) affect the right of the Registered Owners of less than all of the Bonds then outstanding; or 
 
(6) decrease the minimum percentage of the principal amount of Bonds necessary for consent 

to any such amendment. 
 

(b) Notice of Amendment. If at any time the District shall desire to amend this Order 
it may cause a written notice of the proposed amendment to be published at least once on a 
business day in a financial newspaper, journal, or publication of general circulation in the City of New 
York, New York, or in the State of Texas. If, because of temporary or permanent suspension of the 
publication or general circulation of all such newspapers, journals, or publications, it is impossible or 
impractical to publish such notice in the manner provided herein, then such publication in lieu thereof as 
shall be made by the Registrar shall constitute a sufficient publication of notice. In addition to such 
publication, the Registrar shall cause a written notice of the proposed amendment to be given by registered 
or certified mail to Registered Owners of the Bonds as shown on the Registration Books maintained by 
the Registrar; provided, however, that failure to receive such written notice of the proposed amendment, 
or any defect therein or in the mailing thereof, shall not affect the validity of any proceeding in connection 
with, or the adoption of, such amendment. Such notice shall briefly set forth the nature of the proposed 
amendment and shall state that a copy thereof is on file at the principal office of the Registrar for inspection 
by all Registered Owners of Bonds. 

 
(c) Consent to Amendment. Whenever at any time not less than 30 days, and within 

one year, from the date of the first publication of said notice or other services of written notice 
the District shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the Registered Owners of at 
least 51% in aggregate principal amount of all Bonds then outstanding, which instrument or 
instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment described in said notice and shall specifically 



 

 

consent to and approve such amendment, the District may adopt the amendatory resolution or 
order in substantially the same form. 

 
(d) Effect of Amendment. Upon the adoption of any amendatory resolution or order 

pursuant to the provisions of this Section, this Order shall be deemed to be amended in accordance 
with such amendatory resolution or order, and the respective rights, duties, and obligations under 
such amendatory resolution or order of all the Registered Owners shall thereafter be determined 
and exercised subject in all respects to such amendments. 

 
(e) Consent of Registered Owners. Any consent given by a Registered Owner pursuant 

to the provisions of this Section shall be irrevocable for a period of six months from the date of 
the first publication of the notice provided for in this Section, and shall be conclusive and binding 
upon all future owners of the Bonds during such period. Such consent may be revoked by the 
Registered Owner who gave such consent at any time after six months from the date of the first 
giving of such notice, or by a successor in title, by filing notice thereof with the Registrar and the 
District, but such revocation shall not be effective if the Registered Owners of 51% in aggregate 
principal amount of the then outstanding Bonds have, prior to the attempted revocation, consented 
to and approved the amendment. 

 
(f) Amendments Without Consent. Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) through (e) 

of this Section, and without notice of the proposed amendment and without the consent of the 
Registered Owners, the District may, at any time, amend this Order to cure any ambiguity or to 
cure, correct, or supplement any defective or inconsistent provision contained therein, or to make 
any other change that does not in any respect materially and adversely affect the interest of the 
Registered Owners, provided that no such amendment shall be made contrary to the provision to 
Section 17.01 (a), and a duly certified or executed copy of each such amendment shall be filed 
with the Registrar. 

ARTICLE EIGHTEEN 
 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 
 

SECTION 18.01. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING. (a) 
Definitions. As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed to such terms 
below:  

 
"Authority" means Trinity River Authority. 

 
"Cities" means the Cities of Arlington, Fort Worth and Mansfield.  

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

"Obligated Person" means the Issuer, the Authority, and the Cities, or any person, 
including an issuer of municipal securities, who is either generally or through an enterprise, 
fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other arrangement to support 
payment of all, or part of the Bonds (other than providers of municipal bond insurance, 
letters of credit, or other liquidity facilities) in the Rule. 



 

 

 
"Rule" means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. "SEC" means the 
United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
(b) General. Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement by and among the Issuer, 

the Cities, and the Authority, the Issuer, the Cities and the Authority have undertaken for the 
benefit of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, to the extent set forth therein, to provide continuing 
disclosure of financial information and operating data with respect to the Issuer, Cities and 
Authority in accordance with the Rule as promulgated by the SEC. 

 
(c) Annual Reports. (i) The Issuer shall provide annually to the MSRB, within six 

months after the end of the most recent fiscal year, financial information and operating data with 
respect to the Issuer of the general type included in the final Official Statement authorized by 
Section 15.03 of this Order, being the information described in Exhibit "D". Any financial 
statements so to be provided shall be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles 
described in Exhibit "D", or such other accounting principles as the Issuer may be required to 
employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and audited, if the Issuer 
commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during 
which they must be provided. If the audit of such financial statements is not complete within such 
period, then the Issuer shall provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal year to 
the MSRB, when and if the audit report on such statements become available. 

 
(ii)  If the Issuer changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the 

date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Issuer otherwise would be 
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. The 
financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth 
in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to any document 
(including an official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the MSRB) that 
theretofore has been provided to the MSRB, or filed with the SEC. 

 
(d) Disclosure Event Notices. The Issuer shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, 

of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, not in excess of ten Business Days after 
occurrence of the event: 

 
1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
 
2. Non-payment related defaults, if material; 
 
3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
 
4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
 
5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
 
6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 

final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) 



 

 

or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
security, or other material events affecting the tax status of the security; 

 
7. Modifications to the rights of security holders, if material; 
 
8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 
 
9. Defeasances; 
 
10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the securities, if 

material; 
 
11. Rating changes; 
 
12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer, any of the Cities 

or the Authority; 
 
13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer 

or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, any of the Cities, or 
the Authority, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a 
definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive 
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; 

 
14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, 

if material; 

15. Incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or an Obligated Person, if 
material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or 
other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or an Obligated Person, 
any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

 
16. Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other 

similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the Issuer or an 
Obligated Person, any of which reflect financial difficulties. 

 
For these purposes, (a) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (12) 

is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal 
agent, or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code 
or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority 
has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such 
jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers of 
the Issuer in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental 
authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation 
by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of 
the assets or business of the Issuer, and (b) as used in clauses 15 and 16 above, the term "Financial 
Obligation" means: (i) a debt obligation; (ii) a derivative instrument entered into in connection 
with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt obligation; or 



 

 

(iii) a guarantee of (i) or (ii). The term Financial Obligation shall not include Municipal Securities 
as to which a final official statement has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule; 
the term "Municipal Securities" means securities which are direct obligations of, or obligations 
guaranteed as to principal or interest by, a state or any political subdivision thereof, or any agency 
or instrumentality of a state or any political subdivision thereof, or any municipal corporate 
instrumentality of one or more states and any other Municipal Securities described by Section 
3(a)(29) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

 
The Issuer shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the Issuer to 

provide financial information or operating data in accordance with this subsection by the time 
required. As used in clause 12 above, the phrase "bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar 
event" means the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar officer for the Issuer in a 
proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law 
in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the 
assets or business of the Issuer, or if jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the Board of 
Directors and official or officers of the Issuer in possession but subject to the supervision and 
orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan of 
reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having 
supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer. 

 
(e) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments. (i) The Issuer shall be obligated to 

observe and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long 
as, the Issuer remains an "obligated person" with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the 
Rule, except that the Issuer in any event will give notice of any deposit made in accordance with 
this Order or applicable law that causes Bonds no longer to be outstanding. 

 
(ii) The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the holders and beneficial 

owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Section, express or implied, shall give any benefit or 
any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person. The Issuer undertakes 
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and does not hereby undertake to 
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the 
Issuer's financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information 
provided in accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein. The 
Issuer does not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness 
to a decision to invest in or sell ECP Series B Refunding Bonds at any future date. 

 
(iii) UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE ISSUER BE LIABLE TO THE 

HOLDER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE ISSUER, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS 
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND 
REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT 
OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR 
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 

 



 

 

(iv) No default by the Issuer in observing or performing its obligations under this 
Section shall comprise a breach of or default under this Order for purposes of any other provision 
of this Order. Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit 
the duties of the Issuer under federal and state securities laws. 

 

(v) The provisions of this Section may be amended by the Issuer from time to time to adapt to 
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a 
change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Issuer, but only if (1) the 
provisions of this Section, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or 
sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account 
any amendments or interpretations of the Rule since such offering as well as such changed 
circumstances and (2) either (a) the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any 
greater amount required by any other provision of this Order that authorizes such an amendment) 
of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is unaffiliated with the 
Issuer (such as bond counsel) determines that such amendment will not materially impair the 
interest of the holders and beneficial owners of the Bonds. If the Issuer so amends the provisions 
of this Section, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating data next 
provided in accordance with subsection (a) of this Section an explanation, in narrative form, of 
the reason for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial information 
or operating data so provided. The Issuer may also amend or repeal the provisions of this 
continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the applicable provision of the 
Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are invalid, 
but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter 
from lawfully purchasing or selling Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds. 

 
ARTICLE NINETEEN 

 
OTHER ACTIONS 

 
SECTION 19.01. ATTORNEY GENERAL FEES. The District hereby authorizes and 

directs payment from legally available funds of the District, of the nonrefundable examination 
fee of the Attorney General of the State of Texas required by Section 1202.004, Texas 
Government Code, as amended. 

 
SECTION 19.02. OTHER ACTIONS. The President or Vice President and Secretary or 

other Authorized Officer of the Board of Directors of the District, and all other officers, 
employees and agents of the District, and each of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly 
authorized, empowered and directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such 
acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver in the name and under the corporate seal 
and on behalf of the District all instruments as may be necessary or desirable in order to carry out 
the terms and provisions of this Order, the Bonds, the sale of the Bonds and the Official Statement. 
In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the Bonds, President, Vice President or Treasurer and 
Secretary of the Board of Directors of the District, the District's Attorney and Bond Counsel are 
hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical changes or corrections to this Order or 
to any of the instruments authorized and approved by this Order necessary in order to (i) correct 
any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely document the transactions contemplated 



 

 

and approved by this Order and as described in the Official Statement, (ii) obtain a rating from 
any of the national bond rating agencies, or (iii) obtain the approval of the Bonds by the Texas 
Attorney General's office. 

 
SECTION 19.03. APPROPRIATION. To pay the debt service coming due on the Bonds 

prior to receipt of the taxes levied to pay such debt service, there is hereby appropriated from 
current funds on hand, which are hereby certified to be on hand and available for such purpose, 
an amount sufficient to pay such debt service, and such amount shall be used for no other purpose. 

 
 
 

*************** 



 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

FORM OF DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 
 

DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 
 
THIS DEPOSIT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"), dated as of  ,  , made by and 

between Tarrant Regional Water District, a Water Control and Improvement District (the 
"Issuer"), a political subdivision of the State of Texas acting by and through the President and 
Secretary or other Authorized Officer of the Board of Directors of the Issuer (the "Board"), and 
U.S. Bank National Association (the "Bank"), a banking association organized and existing under 
the laws of the United States of America, 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the Issuer has heretofore issued and delivered and there is currently 

outstanding the obligations described on Exhibit "A" hereto (hereinafter called the "Refunded 
Obligations"); and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 1207, Texas Government Code 

(the "Act"), the Issuer is authorized to sell refunding bonds in an amount sufficient to provide for 
the full and complete payment of obligations, deposit the proceeds of such refunding bonds with 
the place of payment for the obligations being refunded and enter into an escrow or similar 
agreement with such place of payment for the safekeeping, investment, reinvestment, 
administration and disposition of such deposit, upon such terms and conditions as the parties may 
agree; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Issuer on  ,   , pursuant to a resolution (the "Bond Resolution") passed 

and adopted by the Board, authorized the issuance of bonds known as "Tarrant Regional Water 
District, a Water Control and Improvement District Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds" (the 
"Bonds"), and such Bonds are being issued to refund, discharge and make final payment of the 
principal of and interest on the Refunded Obligations; and 

 
WHEREAS, a portion of the proceeds of sale of the Bonds, together with other available 

funds of the Issuer, are to be deposited with the Bank under this Agreement, which deposit of 
funds will be sufficient to pay and redeem in full the Refunded Obligations on  , (the 
Redemption Date); 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained and the 

payment to the Bank of amounts provided in Section 8 hereof, and to secure the payment of the 
principal of and the interest on the Refunded Obligations, the Issuer and the Bank hereby agree 
as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. A trust clearing account (hereinafter called the "Payment Account") shall be 

maintained at the Bank for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Obligations, and, 
immediately following the delivery of the Bonds, the Issuer agrees and covenants to cause to be 
deposited with the Bank for the credit of the Payment Account the sum of $ . 



 

 

The Bank agrees to establish such Payment Account and further agrees to receive said 
moneys, apply the same as set forth herein, and to hold uninvested the cash deposited and credited 
to the Payment Account for application and disbursement for the payment and redemption of the 
Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date. 

 
SECTION 2. In reliance upon the Sufficiency Certificate of Financial Advisor, a copy of 

which is attached hereto as Exhibit "B", the Issuer represents that the amount deposited to the 
credit of the Payment Account, as provided in Section 1 hereof, will be sufficient to pay and 
redeem in full all the Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date, and the Bank acknowledges 
the sufficiency of the deposit for said purpose. 

 
The Bank acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Bond Resolution providing for the 

redemption of the Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date at the price of par and accrued 
interest and acknowledges receipt of the form of notice of redemption attached hereto. The Bank 
will give the notice of redemption as required by the order authorizing the issuance of the 
Refunded Bonds. 

 
SECTION 3. The Bank agrees that all funds held in the Payment Account shall constitute 

a dedicated interest and sinking fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Refunded Obligations which will mature and become due on and after the date of this Agreement, 
such funds deposited to the credit of the Payment Account shall be applied solely in accordance 
with the provisions of this Agreement and the Issuer shall have no right or title with respect 
thereto, except as otherwise provided herein. Such funds shall not be subject to checks or drafts 
drawn by the Issuer. 

 
SECTION 4. If, for any reason, the funds on hand in the Payment Account shall be 

insufficient to pay the redemption price of the Refunded Obligations on the Redemption Date, 
notice of any such insufficiency shall be immediately given by the Bank to the Issuer by the fastest 
means possible. 

 
SECTION 5. The Bank represents that the deposit covered by this Agreement shall 

constitute firm banking arrangements to insure payment of the Refunded Obligations and such 
deposit is collateralized to insure against any loss or diminution by virtue of any action of the 
Bank or as a result of its lack of financial integrity by a pledge of direct obligations of the United 
States of America, in the par or face amount at least equal to the principal amount of said monies 
to the extent such money is not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

 
SECTION 6. The Bank, as paying agent for the Refunded Obligations, shall, without 

further direction from anyone, including the Issuer, cause to be paid with funds on deposit in the 
Payment Account the amount required to pay and redeem in full the Refunded Obligations on the 
Redemption Date when such obligations are presented for payment in accordance with their 
terms. 

 
SECTION 7. The Bank shall have no lien whatsoever upon any of the moneys deposited 

to the credit of the Payment Account for payment of services rendered hereunder, services 
rendered 



 

 

as Paying Agent for the Refunded Obligations, or for any costs or expenses incurred 
hereunder and reimbursable from the Issuer. 

 
SECTION 8. Moneys on deposit in the Payment Account shall be held uninvested pending 

the disbursement of moneys. In consideration for the services rendered hereunder, the Issuer shall 
pay to the Bank the sum of $ . No investment of funds deposited to the credit of the Payment 
Account shall be made on or after the Redemption Date. Neither the Issuer nor the Bank shall 
invest any moneys deposited in the Payment Account. 

 
SECTION 9. The Bank hereby agrees that the compensation noted in Section 8 is full and 

complete payment for the administration of this Agreement, and the Bank acknowledges and 
agrees that such amount is and represents the total amount of compensation due the Bank for 
services rendered as paying agent for the Refunded Obligations. The Bank hereby agrees to pay, 
assume and be fully responsible for any additional charges that it may incur in the performance 
of its duties and responsibilities as paying agent for the Refunded Obligations. 

 
SECTION 10. The Bank shall not be responsible for any recital herein, except with respect 

to its organization, its powers and authority and to the safety and security of the deposit of funds 
to be made by the Issuer hereunder. As to the existence or nonexistence of any fact relating to the 
Issuer or as to the sufficiency or validity of any instrument, paper or proceedings relating to the 
Issuer, the Bank shall be entitled to rely upon a certificate signed on behalf of the Issuer by its 
Issuer Secretary or other Authorized Officer as sufficient evidence of the facts therein contained. 
The Bank may accept a certificate of the Secretary or other Authorized Officer of the Board under 
the Issuer's seal, to the effect that a resolution or other instrument in the form therein set forth has 
been adopted by the Board, as conclusive evidence that such resolution or other instrument has 
been duly adopted and is in full force and effect. 

 
The duties and obligations of the Bank shall be determined solely by the express 

provisions of this Agreement, and the Bank shall not be liable except for the performance of such 
duties and obligations as are specifically set forth in this Agreement, and no implied covenants or 
obligations shall be read into this Agreement against the Bank. 

 
In the absence of bad faith on the part of the Bank, the Bank may conclusively rely, as to 

the truth of the statements and the correctness of the opinions expressed therein, upon any 
certificate or opinion furnished to the Bank, conforming to the requirements of this Agreement; 
but notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in the case of any such 
certificate or opinion or any evidence which by any provision hereof is specifically required to be 
furnished to the Bank, the Bank shall be under a duty to examine the same to determine whether 
it conforms to the requirements of this Agreement. 

 
The Bank shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a Responsible 

Officer or Officers of the Bank unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in 
ascertaining or acting upon the pertinent facts. The Bank shall not be responsible or liable to any 
person in any manner whatever for the sufficiency, correctness, genuineness, effectiveness, or 
validity of the deposits made pursuant to this Agreement, or for the form or execution thereof, or 
for the identity or authority or any person making or executing such deposits. 



-4 

 

 

 
The term "Responsible Officers" of the Bank, as used in this Agreement, shall mean and 

include the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President and any Second 
Vice President, the Secretary and any Assistant Secretary, the Treasurer and any Assistant 
Treasurer, and ever other officer and assistant officer of the Bank customarily performing 
functions similar to those performed by the persons who at the time shall be officers, respectively, 
or to whom any corporate trust matter is referred, because of his knowledge of an familiarity with 
a particular subject; and the term "Responsible Officer" of the Bank, as used in this Agreement, 
shall mean and include any of said officers or persons. 

 
SECTION 11. This Agreement is between the Issuer and the Bank only, and in connection 

herewith the Bank is authorized by the Issuer to rely upon the representations of the Issuer with 
respect to this Agreement and the deposits made pursuant hereto and as to the Issuer's right and 
power to execute and deliver this Agreement, and the Bank shall not be liable in any manner as a 
result of such reliance. The duties of the Bank hereunder shall only be to the Issuer and the holders 
of the Refunded Obligations. In the event conflicting demands or notices are made upon the Bank 
growing out of or relating to this Agreement or the Bank in good faith is in doubt as to what action 
should be taken hereunder, the Bank shall have the right at its election to: 

 
(a) Withhold and stop all further proceedings in, and performance of, this Agreement 

with respect to the issue in question and of all instructions received hereunder in regard to such 
issue; and 

 
(b) File a suit in interpleader and obtain an order from a court of appropriate 

jurisdiction requiring all persons involved to interplead and litigate in such court their several 
claims and rights among themselves. 

 
In the event the Bank becomes involved in litigation in connection with this Section, the 

Issuer, to the extent permitted by law agrees to indemnify and save the Bank harmless from all 
loss, cost, damages, expenses and attorney fees suffered or incurred by the Bank as a result 
thereof. The obligations of the Bank under this Agreement shall be performable at the principal 
corporate office of the Bank in  . 

 
The Bank may consult with legal counsel in the event of any dispute or question regarding 

the construction of any of the provisions hereof or its duties hereunder, and in the absence of 
negligence or bad faith on the part of the Bank, no liability shall be incurred by the Bank for any 
action taken pursuant to this Section and the Bank shall be fully protected in acting in accordance 
with the opinion and instructions of legal counsel that is knowledgeable and has expertise in the 
field of law addressed in any such legal opinion with respect to the instructions given. 

 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to require the Bank to expend or risk its own 

funds in the performance of any of its duties or the exercise of any of its rights hereunder. 



-5 

 

 

SECTION 12. Time shall be of the essence in the performance of obligations from time 
to time imposed upon the Bank by this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 13. Following the final payment and redemption of the Refunded Obligations, 

the Bank shall forward by letter to the Issuer, to the attention of the President, or other designated 
official of the Issuer, a final accounting statement with respect to the payment and discharge of 
the Refunded Obligations, together with all canceled Refunded Obligations. 

 
SECTION 14. Any notice, authorization, request or demand required or permitted to be 

given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given when mailed by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid addressed as follows: 

 
Tarrant Regional Water District,  
a Water Control and Improvement District  
800 East North Side Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76102-1097  
Attention: Chief Financial Officer 
 
U.S. Bank National Association  
100 Wall Street, Suite 1600  
New York, New York 10005 
Attention: Corporate Trust Services 
 
The United States Post Office registered or certified mail receipt showing delivery of the 

aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence of the date and fact of delivery. 
 
Any party hereto may change the address to which notices are to be delivered by giving 

to the other parties not less than ten (10) days prior notice thereof. 
 
SECTION 15. Whenever under the terms of this Agreement the performance date of any 

provision hereof, including the date of maturity of interest on or principal of the Refunded 
Obligations, shall be a Sunday or a legal holiday or a day on which the Bank is authorized by law 
to close, then the performance thereof, including the payment of principal of and interest on the 
Refunded Obligations, need not be made on such date but may performed or paid, as the case may 
be, on the next succeeding business day of the Bank with the same force and effect as if made on 
the date of performance or payment and with respect to a payment, no interest shall accrue for the 
period after such date. 

 
SECTION 16. The Issuer covenants that it will faithfully perform at all times any and all 

covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained in this Agreement, in any and 
every said Refunded Obligation as executed, authenticated and delivered and in all proceedings 
pertaining thereto as said Refunded Obligations shall have been modified as provided in this 
Agreement. The Issuer covenants that it is duly authorized under the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Texas to execute and deliver this Agreement, that all actions on its part for the payment 
of said Refunded Obligations as provided herein and the execution and delivery of this Agreement 
have been duly and effectively taken and that said Refunded Obligations and coupons in the hands 



-6 

 

 

of the holders and owners thereof are and will be valid and enforceable obligations of the Issuer 
according to the import thereof as provided in this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 17. If any one or more of the covenants or agreements provided in this 

Agreement on the part of the parties to be performed should be determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be contrary to law, such covenant or agreement shall be deemed and construed to 
be severable from the remaining covenants and agreements herein contained and shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 18. This Agreement shall terminate either (i) when the Refunded Obligations 

and coupons appertaining thereto have been paid and discharged in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement or (ii) at the expiration of four (4) years after the Redemption Date, 
whichever circumstance shall first occur. Subject to applicable unclaimed property laws of the 
State, moneys held in the Payment Account at the termination of this Agreement shall be remitted 
and transferred to the Issuer. 

 
SECTION 19. Neither the Issuer nor the Bank shall assign or attempt to assign or transfer 

any interest hereunder or any portion of any such interest. Any such assignment or attempted 
assignment shall be in direct conflict with this Agreement and be without effect. 

 
SECTION 20. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Bank 

and the Issuer and their respective successors. 
 
SECTION 21. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, all or any of 

which shall be regarded for all purposes as one original and shall constitute and be but one and 
the same instrument. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
SECTION 22. Section 2271.002, Texas Government Code. To the extent this Deposit 

Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a written verification is required 
pursuant to Section 2271.002, Texas Government Code, the value of the services provided by the 
Bank does not exceed $100,000. 

 
SECTION 23. The Bank represents that neither it nor any of its parent company, wholly- 

or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates is a company identified on a list prepared and 
maintained by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Section 2252.153 or section 
2270.0201, Texas Government Code, and posted on any of the following pages of such officer's 
internet website: https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/sudan-list.pdf, https://com 
ptroller.texas.gov/purchas in g/docs/iran-list.pdf,  or 
https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/fto-list.pdf. The foregoing representation is made 
solely to comply with Section 2252.152, Texas Government Code, and to the extent such Section 
does not contravene applicable Federal law and excludes the Bank and each of its parent company, 
wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, that the United States 
government has affirmatively declared to be excluded from its federal sanctions regime relating 
to Sudan or Iran or any federal sanctions regime relating to a foreign terrorist organization. The 
Bank understands "affiliate" to mean any entity that controls, is controlled by, or is under common 
control with the Bank and exists to make a profit. 



-7 

 

 

 
SECTION 24. Chapter 2274, Texas Government Code (No Discrimination Against 

Fossil-Fuel Companies). To the extent this Deposit Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or 
services for which a written verification is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate 
Bill 13 in the 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), Texas Government Code, as amended, 
the value of the services provided by the Bank does not exceed $100,000. 

 
SECTION 25. Chapter 2274, Texas Government Code (No Discrimination Against 

Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade Associations). To the extent this Deposit Agreement 
constitutes a contract for goods or services for which a written verification is required under 
Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 19 in the 87th Texas Legislature, Regular Session), 
Texas Government Code, the value of the services provided by the Bank does not exceed 
$100,000. 

 



-8 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their duly authorized officers and attested as of the date first written above. 

 
TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT,  
A WATER CONTROL AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

    President 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 

Secretary 
 
 

(Issuer Seal) 

 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

 

______________________________________ 
Title: _________________________________



 

 

EXHIBIT "A" 
TO DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

 
Schedule of Refunded Obligations 



 

 

EXHIBIT "B" 
TO DEPOSIT AGREEMENT 

 
Sufficiency Certificate 



 

 

EXHIBIT "B" 
 

WRITTEN PROCEDURES RELATING TO CONTINUING COMPLIANCE WITH 
FEDERAL TAX COVENANTS 

 
A. Arbitrage. With respect to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the 

Bonds and any Additional Bonds (the "Obligations") the District's Bookkeeper and Financial 
Advisor (the "Responsible Persons") will: 

 
For Obligations issued for newly acquired property or constructed property: 
 

ꞏ instruct the appropriate person or persons that the construction, renovation or acquisition 
of the facilities must proceed with due diligence and that binding contracts for the 
expenditure of at least 5%of the proceeds of the Obligations will be entered into within 6 
months of the date of delivery of the Obligations ("Issue Date"); 

 
ꞏ monitor that at least 85% of the proceeds of the Obligations to be used for the construction, 

renovation or acquisition of any facilities are expended within 3 years of the Issue Date; 
 
ꞏ restrict the yield of the investments (other than those in the Reserve Fund) to the yield on 

the Obligations after 3 years of the Issue Date; 
 
ꞏ monitor all amounts deposited into a sinking fund or funds, e.g., the Debt Service Fund, to 

assure that the maximum amount invested at a yield higher than the yield on the Obligations 
does not exceed an amount equal to the debt service on the Obligations in the succeeding 
12 month period plus a carryover amount equal to one-twelfth of the principal and interest 
payable on the Obligations for the immediately preceding 12-month period; 

 
ꞏ assure that no more than 50% of the proceeds of the Obligations are invested in an 

investment with a guaranteed yield for 4 years or more; 
 
For Obligations issued for refunding purposes: 

 
ꞏ monitor the actions of the escrow agent (to the extent an escrow is funded with proceeds) 

to assure compliance with the applicable provisions of the escrow agreement, including 
with respect to reinvestment of cash balances; 
 
For all Obligations: 
 

ꞏ maintain any official action of the District (such as a reimbursement resolution) stating its 
intent to reimburse itself with the proceeds of the Obligations any amount expended prior 
to the Issue Date for the acquisition, renovation or construction of the facilities; 



 

 

ꞏ assure that the applicable information return (e.g., IRS Form 8038-G, 8038-GC, or any 
successor forms) is timely filed with the IRS; 

 
ꞏ assure that, unless excepted from rebate and yield restriction under section 148(f) of the 

Code, excess investment earnings are computed and paid to the U.S. government at such 
time and in such manner as directed by the IRS (i) at least every 5 years after the Issue Date 
and (ii) within 30 days after the date the Obligations are retired. 
 
B. Private Business Use. With respect to the use of the facilities financed or refinanced 

with the proceeds of the Obligations the Responsible Persons will: 
 

ꞏ monitor the date on which the facilities are substantially complete and available to be used 
for the purpose intended; 

 
ꞏ monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than the 

District, the employees of the District, the agents of the District or members of the general 
public has any contractual right (such as a lease, purchase, management or other service 
agreement) with respect to any portion of the facilities; 

 
ꞏ monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than the 

District, the employees of the District, the agents of the District or members of the general 
public has a right to use the output of the facilities (e.g., water, gas, electricity); 

 
ꞏ monitor whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than the 

District, the employees of the District, the agents of the District or members of the general 
public has a right to use the facilities to conduct or to direct the conduct of research; 

 
ꞏ determine whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, any person, other than the 

District, has a naming right for the facilities or any other contractual right granting an 
intangible benefit; 

 
ꞏ determine whether, at any time the Obligations are outstanding, the facilities are sold or 

otherwise disposed of; and 
 
ꞏ take such action as is necessary to remediate any failure to maintain compliance with the 

covenants contained in the resolution authorizing the Obligations. 
 
C. Record Retention. The Responsible Persons will maintain or cause to be maintained 

all records relating to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of the Obligations and the 
use of the facilities financed or refinanced thereby for a period ending three (3) years after the 
complete extinguishment of the Obligations. If any portion of the Obligations is refunded with 
the proceeds of another series of tax-exempt obligations, such records shall be maintained until 
the three (3) years after the refunding obligations are completely extinguished. Such records can 
be maintained in paper or electronic format. 



 

 

D. Responsible Persons. Each Responsible Person shall receive appropriate training 
regarding the District's accounting system, contract intake system, facilities management and 
other systems necessary to track the investment and expenditure of the proceeds and the use of 
the facilities financed with the proceeds of the Obligations. The foregoing notwithstanding, the 
Responsible Persons are authorized and instructed to retain such experienced advisors and agents 
as may be necessary to carry out the purposes of these instructions. 



 

 

EXHIBIT "C" 
 

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT 
 

Located elsewhere in transcript 



 

 

EXHIBIT "D" 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

 
1. Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 
 
The financial information and operating data with respect to the District to be provided annually 
in accordance with such Section are of the general type included in the Offering Documents under 
the headings "PLAN OF FINANCING - Debt Service Requirements," "FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION CONCERNING THE DISTRICT (UNAUDITED)" except for "Estimated 
Overlapping Debt," "TAX DATA," and in APPENDIX A (Financial Statements of the District 
including supplemental schedules). 
 
2. Accounting Principles 
 
The accounting principles to be applied to the financial statement of the District are described in 
the financial statement contained in Appendix A to the Offering Documents. 



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 

AGENDA ITEM 13 

DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval to Accept Grant from Texas Parks and Wildlife 

Foundation for Eagle Mountain Park Expenditures 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Management recommends acceptance of a grant in the amount of $20,000 from Texas 
Parks and Wildlife Foundation to benefit Eagle Mountain Park.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Texas Parks and Wildlife Foundation received a grant of $20,000 from North Texas 
Community Foundation to be disbursed to Eagle Mountain for park usage. Texas Parks 
and Wildlife Foundation is passing this grant to Tarrant Regional Water District to be 
used for expenditures related to Eagle Mountain Park. 
 
This item was reviewed by the Finance Committee on October 13, 2025. 
 
Submitted By:  
 
Sandy Newby  
Chief Financial Officer  



TARRANT REGIONAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

AGENDA ITEM 15 
 
DATE: October 21, 2025 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Session 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, for Private Consultation with its Attorney 
about Pending or Contemplated Litigation or on a Matter in which the Duty of the Attorney 
to the Governmental Body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 
the State Bar of Texas Clearly Conflicts with this Chapter; and  
 
Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, to Deliberate the Purchase, Exchange, 
Lease or Value of Real Property Related to (1) Panther Island, and (2) the Mary’s Creek 
Indirect Water Re-Use Pipeline Project; and  
 
Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, Regarding Personnel Matters Related 
to the Annual General Manager Performance Review 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 

• Pending litigation 

• Real property issues 

• Personnel matters 
 
Submitted By: 
 
Stephen Tatum 
General Counsel 



Next Scheduled Board Meeting 
 
 

November 18, 2025, at 9:00 AM 
 

 


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. Consent Agenda
	5. J&S Valve Inc.
	6. Val-Matic Valve & Mfg. Corp.
	7. Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
	8. Weaver Excavating & Septic LLC
	9. Fair Opportunities Purchasing and Contracting Policy
	10. General Ordinance
	11. Water Revenue ECP Series A Refunding Bonds
	12. Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds
	13. Texas Parks and Wildlife Foundation
	15. Executive Session
	17. Next Board Meeting

